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Financial Highlights

MBHE

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILEE

2025 2024
2025% 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
RESULTS EF5
Continuing operations BECEETR
Revenue EER 44,857 30,693
Gross profit EH 26,834 27,173
Loss before taxation W75 A B 1R (370,973) (205,319)
Loss for the year from REFELCEEBN
continuing operations FEBE (357,778) (218,804)
Discontinued operation DRIEEEER
(Loss) profit for the year from REBKRIEEEEBLH
discontinued operation FE (BB &BF (7,521) 5,655
Loss for the year attributable ARBRREGEFE
to owners of the Company =] (365,299) (213,149)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(s =5)
Loss per share HiRESE
From continuing and discontinued REFELCERDRLE
operations R
- Basic -EXK ( (2.42)
- Diluted ¥ (0.81) (2.42)
From continuing operations REFELEER
- Basic - B (0.79) (2.49)
- Diluted - (0.79) (2.49)
As at 31 March
A3H31H
2025 2024
20255 20244
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Total assets BEE 4,842,030 5,408,807
Total liabilities weE (2,027,245) (2,361,611)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2N/ &) % 5 fE (i #E %5 2,814,785 3,047,196




Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2025 (the “Financial Year”).

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s consolidated loss attributable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was approximately
HK$365,299,000 as compared with loss of approximately HK$213,149,000
last financial year (2024). The consolidated loss from continuing operations
and discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March 2025 were
approximately HK$357,778,000 and HK$7,521,000 respectively as compared
with loss of approximately HK$218,804,000 and profit of approximately
HK$5,655,000 last financial year (2024) respectively. For the year ended 31
March 2025, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations amounted
to approximately HK$44,857,000 as compared with last financial year
(2024) of approximately HK$30,693,000, which represented an increase
of approximately HK$14,164,000 or approximately 46.1% as compared
with last financial year (2024). The Financial Year’s gross profit margin was
approximately 59.8% (2024: approximately 88.5%). The basic and diluted loss
per share of the Company from continuing and discontinued operations for
the year ended 31 March 2025 were HK$0.81 and HK$0.81 (2024: restated
basic and diluted loss per share of HK$2.42 and HK$2.42) respectively.

In face of an extraordinarily challenging year with global economic
uncertainties and continuing challenges posed by prolonged international
geopolitical tensions and potential market instability with high inflationary
pressure and interest rates, the Group continuously and closely monitors
and explores market and investment opportunities, and constantly and
prudently focuses on its core business operations in order to improve financial
performance and create long-term values to maximize the interests of its
Shareholders.

Finally, the Board and | would like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt

appreciation to our Directors, management team, staff, Shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support to the Company.

Lai Law Kau
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (the “Financial Year”) together with comparative
figures. These annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s consolidated loss attributable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was approximately
HK$365,299,000 as compared with loss of approximately HK$213,149,000
last financial year (2024). The consolidated loss from continuing operations and
discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approximately
HK$357,778,000 and HK$7,521,000 respectively as compared with loss of
approximately HK$218,804,000 and profit of approximately HK$5,655,000
last financial year (2024) respectively. The increase in consolidated loss for the
Financial Year was mainly attributable to, among other things, () the increase in
loss on changes in fair value of investment properties; (i) the increase in loss on
disposal of investment properties; (i) the increase in write-down on properties
held for development for sale and properties held for sale; (iv) the increase in the
net loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss; (v) the increase in loss on modification of terms of convertible note; and
(vi) the increase in finance costs, which were partially offset by the decrease in
taxation expenses.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations amounted to approximately HK$44,857,000 as compared with
last financial year (2024) of approximately HK$30,693,000, which represented
an increase of approximately HK$14,164,000 or approximately 46.1% as
compared with last financial year (2024). The Financial Year’'s gross profit
margin was approximately 59.8% (2024: approximately 88.5%).

The basic and diluted loss per share of the Company (the “Share(s)”) from
continuing and discontinued operations for the year ended 31 March 2025
were HK$0.81 and HK$0.81 (2024: restated basic and diluted loss per share
of HK$2.42 and HK$2.42) respectively.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (2024: nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Financial Year, the Group was principally engaged in property
development, property investment (comprising ownership and rental of

investment properties), investment in securities and others and loan financing
business which property development and property investment are the core
businesses of the Group. The review of each business segment of the Group

is set out below.

@

Property Development

One of the Group’s core businesses is property development. The
Group has extensive experience on property redevelopment, in
particular, acquisition of old buildings for renewal and redevelopment.
Below are the major projects of the Group.

@

()

Project Matheson Street

As at 31 March 2025, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, owned the property at No. 11 Matheson
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, named as “THE HEDON”.
The total site area of the property is approximately 2,857 square
feet with a gross floor area of approximately 42,854 square feet
of 27-storeys brand new Ginza-style building. Occupation permit
was obtained in February 2024.

Project King Lam Street

As at 31 March 2025, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, owned the property located at No. 121 King
Lam Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong, named as “One Two One”.
The total gross floor area of the property is approximately 7,326
square metres. The property is a brand new grade-A industrial
building 28-storeys with a total of 47 units. Occupation permit
was obtained in May 2024.

E 3 dE)

RATBFER  AEBTELEYEH
B -MERE(BREBLEEREDR) -
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@

@

Project Kennedy Town

As at 31 March 2025, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, owned all the units of (i) Nos. 1B and 1C
and Nos. 1D and 1E of Davis Street, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong
(“Davis Street”); and (i) Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong
Kong (“Catchick Street”). The combined site area of Davis Street
and Catchick Street is approximately 7,122 square feet which
will be developed into a commercial and/or residential mixed use
development to maximize its usage. Superstructure works have
been commenced and the project is expected to complete in the
last quarter of 2025.

Project Fung Wah

As at 31 March 2025, the Group, through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, owned the site at Nos. 646, 648 and 648A
Castle Peak Road, Kowloon. The total site area is approximately
9,206 square feet. In light of the current market condition, a
change of development plan may be considered.

()

(@
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Property Investment
The Group’s other core business is property investment.

During the Financial Year, the total rental income of the Group recorded
from continuing operations was approximately HK$32,354,000
(2024: approximately HK$28,751,000), representing an increase of
approximately 12.5% over the last financial year.

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the Group owns residential, commercial and industrial
units, and land with attached structure with a total carrying amount
of approximately HK$1,057,900,000 as at 31 March 2025 (2024:
approximately HK$1,176,600,000). For the year ended 31 March
2025, the Group recorded property rental income and building
management fee income from continuing operations of approximately
HK$31,558,000 (an increase of approximately 15.1% as compared
with 2024) and HK$816,000 respectively (2024: approximately
HK$27,423,000 and HK$12,000 respectively), which is primarily
attributable to the rental income from the Project Matheson Street.

Singapore

In Singapore, the Group owns nil (2024: one) residential unit with a
carrying amount of nil as at 31 March 2025 (2024: approximately
HK$73,843,000). For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group
received property rental income from continuing operations of
approximately HK$796,000 (2024: approximately HK$1,328,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 40.1% over the last financial
year, due to the disposal of the sole remaining property in October
2024.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

Pursuant to a land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022
by the Group and the municipal government, the lands and buildings in
Huzhou were resumed by the municipal government.

The financial results of the property investment in the PRC was
classified as discontinued operation. The compensation amount
was received by the Group in full in February 2024, and the Huzhou
Properties were resumed by the Huzhou Government, and accordingly,
the Huzhou Properties were no longer accounted for in the financial
statements of the Group as at 31 March 2025.

Further information can be found in the joint announcement issued by
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit”) (stock code: 1218)
and the Company dated 5 October 2022, and circular of the Company
dated 18 October 2023 respectively.

(ii)
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(iii) Investment in Securities and Others

The Group adopted a prudent attitude in its well-diversified securities
investment. During the Financial Year, the Group had acquired and
disposed of listed securities and other investment products. The
Group recorded fair value loss in securities and other investments from
continuing operations of approximately HK$20,427,000 (2024: loss of
HK$4,391,000). During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group did
not record fair value gain in investment in securities and others from
discontinued operation (2024: gain of approximately HK$204,000). As
a result, the Group reported a segment loss from continuing operations
of approximately HK$20,530,000 (2024: segment loss of approximately
HK$4,600,000) during the Financial Year. The Group received
dividend income from the listed securities investments from continuing
operations of approximately HK$37,000 (2024: approximately

HK$1,373,000) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group’s investment in equity securities listed
in Hong Kong amounted to approximately HK$41,531,000 (2024:
approximately HK$47,124,000). This value represented an investment
portfolio comprising eight (2024: eight) equity securities which are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The movements during the Financial Year were (a) net purchase
of securities investments which had a fair value of approximately
HK$5,753,000; and (b) net decrease in market value of securities

investments in the amount of approximately HK$7,565,000.

For further information, please refer to “MATERIAL NOTIFIABLE

TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS” section below.

(iii)
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7o) o Bt RABMBRFEN - KNEE
RERBELEEBEREOBEROA
20,530,000 7T (20244 : 2 ERETIEL
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The Group held significant securities investments as at 31 March 2025 20253 A31H « AEEFEFATE
as below: RBHEE -
Approximate
percentage
held to the Dividend Approximate
total issued income Fair value percentage of
share capital of Investment forthe year  (loss)/gain for total assets of
Number of  the company/ cost/cost of ended the year ended Fairvalueat  the Group at
Company name (stock code) shares held investment acquisition 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2025 31 March 2025
LA
BEf HE2025% 20255
BRE/RE BE2025E 3531 3531
ki 3H31A LEEZ 20255 HAEE
BE BRES  RERE/ LEEZ NTE 3H31AZ BEEZ
REREBRARE) RAEE Bk e REBA (BB Wi NFE BB
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
T T T T

Best Food Holding Company Limited (1488)

BRERERAR(1489) 33,126,000 2.10 38,195 - (6,625) 26,501 0.55

Pacific Legend Group Limited (8547) 14,270,000 5.21 1,604 - 380 1,884 0.04

Symphony Holdings Limited (1223)

MESERRAF(1229) 7,170,000 0.24 6,494 35 (72) 5,664 0.12

Capital Estate Limited (198)

BRMEFRAF (193 6,240,000 2.68 1,666 - 892 2,558 0.06

Easyknit International Holdings Limited (1218)

KEEAREEFRAR(1219) 2,243,000 303 7,532 - (1,911) 3813 0.08

Other listed shares”

ity ErifR(n 1,126,600 N/ATNEA 2514 2 (229) 111 0.02

Grand total:

@it 57,905 37 (7,569) 41,531 0.86

* Other listed shares included one company whose shares are listed on the GEM * EHAth BT B 45— MR X FTGEM |
of the Stock Exchange and two companies whose shares are listed on the Main TERBIRG R MBER R TER LN

Board of the Stock Exchange respectively. B R EIRRD ©
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The Group considers the prospects in respect of the investments
in securities and others remain cautiously optimistic. The Group
understands that the performance of the investments may be affected
by global economic uncertainties and degree of volatility in the
Hong Kong financial market and subject to other external factors.
Accordingly, the Group will continuously maintain a diversified portfolio
of investment of different segments of markets to minimise the possible
financial risks. The Group will also closely monitor the performance
progress of the investment portfolio in a prudent and balanced risk

management approach from time to time.

(iv) Loan Financing

The loan financing business of the Group is primarily operated by City
China International Limited (“City China”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which is a licensed money lender carrying
on business under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The borrowers of the loan financing business
are individuals and corporate entities that have short-term funding
needs and could provide sufficient collaterals, if needed, for their
borrowings. The borrowers are primarily acquired through business
referrals and introductions. City China’s source of funding is financed
by the Group’s internal resources. During the year ended 31 March
2025, the Group recorded interest income from loan financing business
from continuing operations amounting to approximately HK$1,329,000
(2024: approximately HK$1,930,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 31.1% as compared with last financial year. During the
Financial Year, the Group had not recorded any interest income from
loan financing business from discontinued operation (2024: nil). The
segment loss of loan financing business from continuing operations
was approximately HK$72,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025
(2024: segment profit of approximately HK$190,000). The outstanding
principal amount of loans receivable as at 31 March 2025 was
approximately HK$29,578,000 (2024: approximately HK$31,023,000).
During the Financial Year, reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$55,000 was recognised in profit or loss in its loan financing
business from continuing operations amounting (2024: HK$473,000).
During the Financial Year, no reversal of impairment loss (2024: nil)
was recognized in profit or loss in its loan financing business from

discontinued operation.

(iv)
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The Group has credit policies, guidelines and procedures in place
which cover key internal controls of a loan transaction including due
diligence, credit appraisal, proper execution of documentations,
continuous monitoring and collection and recovery. Before entering into
loan agreements, the Group focuses on the due diligence procedures
and credit risk assessment work, including but not limited to meeting
with each borrower, conducting research on their backgrounds,
evaluating their current business operations and financial conditions
(such as income and assets proof), market reputation and creditability,
conducting financial and recoverability analysis, and reviewing on
repayment history (including recent settlement records, and any
litigations and winding up or bankruptcy searches) and change in
career or business background and financial position of each borrower
in order to better understand the circumstances of each borrower.
The Group regularly assesses the value of the collaterals or pledges
and guarantees of the borrowers for their credit quality, and defines
credit limits to be granted to the borrowers. To minimize credit risks,
the Group may require guarantees, including collaterals or pledges
with expected realized value exceeding the loan amount, post-dated
cheques and/or personal or corporate guarantee(s). The Group closely
monitors on an ongoing review of credit risks of loans recoverability and
collection to ensure that follow-up actions (including issue of demand
letters and/or taking legal actions, if necessary) are taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group continues to adopt stringent loan review procedures
and remains prudent approach on sufficiency of loan security
by strengthening its overall credit risk management and control
mechanism in its loan financing business. For collection of overdue
loans, the Group discussed settlement plans with certain borrowers,
issued demand letters and subsequently initiated legal actions and
court proceedings in order to recover the loans. During the Financial
Year, the Group closely monitored and regularly reviewed its loan
portfolio and assessed the sufficiency of loan security for the loans
receivable.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group provided short-
term loans of maturity of not more than three years. The repayment
terms and conditions were determined by factors including the
repayment ability of the borrowers, the Group’s funding and cash flows
management strategies, and the terms and rates of the prevailing

market.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to approximately HK$29,578,000 as at 31 March
2025 (2024: approximately HK$31,023,000), from a few borrowers with
approximately 55% (2024: approximately 55%) of the balance were
secured by properties with estimated fair values of HK$18,595,000

(2024: HK$17,745,000).

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in
the absence of default by the borrowers. There have not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivable. In addition, the unsecured loans receivable as at 31 March
2025 amounting to HK$13,421,000 (2024: HK$14,052,000). The
largest borrower of the Group by itself and together with the other
four largest borrowers of the Group accounted for approximately
33% (2024: approximately 31%) and approximately 94% (2024:
approximately 93%) respectively of the loans receivable of the Group
as at 31 March 2025. During the Financial Year, the range of interest
rates on the fixed-rate loans receivable of the Group was 0% (including
an one-off upfront fee, representing 9% of the loan amount for three-
year loan period paid in one lump sum at drawdown date) to 8% (2024:
0% to 14%) per annum, and the total number of the borrowers of the

loan financing business of the Group is nine.

In view of the foreseeable increase in risk of default by the borrowers
as economic uncertainties continued, the Group reassessed the
credit ratings of individual borrowers and made necessary provisions
for potential impairment loss. As at 31 March 2025, allowance for
loans receivable amounted to approximately HK$1,022,000 (2024:
approximately HK$1,077,000). Except for those credit-impaired loans
receivable, there was no loans receivable which was past due as at 31

March 2025.
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The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on loans receivable which are subject to impairment
assessment under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
“Financial Instruments” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In particular, the
following information is taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the loans
receivable’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, such as a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the borrower;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the borrower; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environments of the
borrower that results in a significant decrease in the borrower’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimize credit risk. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation of
financial backgrounds, financial conditions and historical settlement
records, including past due rates and default rates, of the borrowers
and relevant information from public domain at the end of each
reporting period. The borrowers are assigned different grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate ECL, taking into consideration the
estimates of expected cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of
possibility of default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are
expected from foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of
obtaining and selling the collaterals.

In prior years, the management assessed, taking into account the
relevant information from public domain, such balances became credit-
impaired. Since then, the management has taken various actions
(including legal actions) against the Borrower to recover the balances.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

B 75 [ 8

For the year ended 31 March
HZ3HA3IHILEE

2025 2024 Change
2025%F 20244 =)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FET FHT FHT Epalsd
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue e 44,857 30,693 14,164 46%
Gross profit EF 26,834 27,173 (339) (1%)
Gross profit margin EVES 59.8% 88.5% - (29%)
Administrative expenses TR (48,680) (58,483) 9,803 (17%)
Finance costs BEKA (92,555) (55,074) (37,481) 68%
Loss before taxation BRELATEE (370,973) (205,319) (165,654) 81%
Taxation credit (charge) BiTaE % (Fs2) 13,195 (13,485) 26,680  N/ATNE
Loss for the year from continuing operations R F B KL EEMN
FEFE (357,778)  (218,804)  (138,974) 64%
Net loss margin R EE R R (797.6%) (712.9%) - 85%
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
(Loss) profit for the year from discontinued REEKIEEES
operation BEE (B B H (7,521) 5,655 (18,176) N/ATEFA
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the ~ N2 &A% SR FEEFE
Company E518 (365,299) (213,149) (152,150) 71%
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIALEE
2025 2024 Change
20254 20244F 2
HK$ HK$ HK$ %
BT I BT Aoth
(Restated)
=2 l))
Loss per share FREE
From continuing and discontinued REBELEEREK
operations IE R R
- Basic BE-YN (0.81) (2.42) 1.61 (67%)
- Diluted - B8 (0.81) (2.42) 1.61 67%)
From continuing operations REFFELEER
- Basic BE - (0.79) (2.49) 1.7 (68%)
- Diluted - s (0.79) (2.49) 1.7 (68%)
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations increased by approximately 46.1% to approximately
HK$44,857,000 as compared with last financial year of approximately
HK$30,693,000 which was mainly due to increase in properties sales and
rental income. For the year ended 31 March 2025, no revenue was recorded
from discontinued operation by the Group (2024: nil).

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit from continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2025 was approximately HK$26,834,000, representing a decrease
of approximately 1.2% or approximately HK$339,000 as compared to
approximately HK$27,173,000 in 2024. Gross profit margin for the Financial
Year decreased to approximately 59.8% (2024: approximately 88.5%).

Loss before Taxation

Loss before taxation from continuing operations of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2025 was approximately HK$370,973,000, as compared
with loss before taxation of approximately HK$205,319,000 for the last
financial year. Loss before taxation from discontinued operation of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2025 was approximately HK$3,752,000, as
compared with profit before taxation of approximately HK$42,980,000 for the
last financial year.

Administrative expenses from continuing operations of the Group decreased
by approximately 16.8% to approximately HK$48,680,000 as compared with
last financial year of approximately HK$58,483,000. Administrative expenses
from discontinued operation of the Group increased by approximately
HK$2,836,000 to approximately HK$4,194,000 as compared with last
financial year of approximately HK$1,358,000.

During the Financial Year, there was net loss on changes in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss from continuing operations
amounting to approximately HK$20,427,000 (2024: loss of approximately
HK$4,391,000). During the Financial Year, no gain on changes in fair value
of financial assets from discontinued operation was recorded (2024: gain of
approximately HK$204,000).

Finance costs from continuing operations of the Group for the Financial
Year were approximately HK$92,555,000, representing an increase of
approximately HK$37,481,000 or approximately 68.1% from approximately
HK$55,074,000 in 2024, of which approximately HK$20,525,000 (2024:
approximately HK$17,941,000) was the effective interest expense on
convertible note.

EEENWRE DN
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Loss Attributable to the Shareholders and Loss per Share

The consolidated loss from continuing operations for the year ended 31
March 2025 was approximately HK$357,778,000 (2024: loss of approximately
HK$218,804,000) while the consolidated loss from discontinued operation
was approximately HK$7,521,000 (2024: a profit of approximately
HK$5,655,000).

Taxation credit from continuing operations for the year ended 31 March
2025 was approximately HK$13,195,000 (2024: taxation charge of
HK$13,485,000).

Basic and diluted loss per Share from continuing and discontinued operations
for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approximately HK$0.81 and HK$0.81
respectively (2024 restated basic and diluted loss per Share of approximately
HK$2.42 and HK$2.42 respectively). Basic and diluted loss per Share from
continuing operations for the Financial Year were approximately HK$0.79
and HK$0.79 respectively (2024: restated basic and diluted loss per Share of
approximately HK$2.49 and HK$2.49 respectively).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2025, total assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$4,842,030,000 (2024: approximately HK$5,408,807,000). In terms of
financial resources as at 31 March 2025, the Group’s total bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$57,266,000 (2024: approximately
HK$299,717,000). Such decrease was mainly due to the repayment of bank
borrowings and interest paid.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,892,260,000 (2024: approximately HK$2,066,734,000). The Group’s
gearing ratio, which is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
Shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.7 (2024: approximately 0.7). As
at 31 March 2025, the Group’s current ratio was approximately 2.3 (2024:
approximately 3.2).

The Group financed its operations primarily with recurring cash flow generated
from its operations, proceeds raised from the capital market and bank
financing. For details of secured bank borrowings, please refer to note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BRREGEERSRER
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& FIEF ¥ 513,485,000/ 7T) ©

HZE2025F3A31HIEFE  RAFELE
EBRKREERIECEEBNERER RS
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Set out below are the particulars of the outstanding convertible note of the AT ABARABIR2025F3A31 AR KB 2 A

Company as at 31 March 2025: AR REFE -

2023 Convertible Note (the “2023 Convertible Note”) 2023F AR EHE ([2023F AT R T )

Holder of the 2023 Convertible Note : Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”)

2023 FrRI MR EEFE A : TRERARQA(ER]D

Principal amount : HK$209,000,000

rE TR : 209,000,000/ 7T

Outstanding principal amount : HK$70,000,000

RAEEATEHE : 70,000,000 7T

Interest : 5% per annum

ME : (SECGIE

Issue date : 20 February 2023

ETRHY : 202342 H20A

Maturity date : 19 February 2028

F|H A : 202842 H19A

Conversion price : HK$0.14* (subject to adjustments)

HifE : 0148 7L (A] FHHE)

During the Financial Year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the 2023 NARBIER AN - 2023F A8 EiE 7 i i

Convertible Note was made and the outstanding principal amount as at the BESBEWTE AR AERHEKREREN

date of this annual report is HK$70,000,000. © £ % /570,000,000 7T °

* With respect to the 2023 Convertible Note, (i) upon completion of the rights issue of * Fh2028F A B ZEME ¢ (VAN RA A K2025
the Company on 4 February 2025, the conversion price of the 2023 Convertible Note FOH4A TR EARE - 2023F A AIREEH
was adjusted from HK$0.18 to HK$0.14 per conversion share; and (i) upon completion HIREHRERALBEHO18EBTHAEE0.14
of partial redemptions during the Financial Year, the outstanding principal amount of B RIVRAMBFEANTKBOERE -
2023 Convertible Note was reduced to HK$70,000,000. Based on the adjusted current 2023 F AR EHENABELRESEERMIE
conversion price of the 2023 Convertible Note of HK$0.14 per conversion share, the 70,000,000 7T ° 1R IE20234F 0] # % 2= 1% K 45
number of conversion shares decreased to 500,000,000. FRBRBITHIBRESREBERMH0A4BTTE -

AR 8B # 2> % 500,000,0008% ©

For further information, please refer to the section headed “MATERIAL HMBERBL2B TMERETAMNZTS R
NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS” below. EH—F -
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Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2025, the total number of issued ordinary Shares was
1,014,444,348 (2024: 103,148,116 Shares) and the nominal value per Share
was HK$0.01 (31 March 2024: HK$0.01). As at the date of this annual report,
the total number of issued ordinary Shares was 1,014,444,348.

For movement of the total number of issued Shares during the Financial
Year, please refer to the sub-sections headed “Placing of New Shares under
Specific Mandate” and “The Rights Issue” below.

Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,892,260,000 (2024: approximately HK$2,066,734,000) which were
secured by the Group’s properties with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$1,057,900,000 (investment properties), approximately
HK$1,846,612,000 (properties held for development for sale) and
approximately HK$1,712,654,000 (properties held for sale) respectively
(2024: approximately HK$1,211,443,000, HK$2,520,754,000 and
HK$1,065,891,000 respectively).

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Most of the
Group’ s revenues and payments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During the Financial
Year, the Group did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The Group considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2025 (2024: nil).

N

2025 3A318 » ARRDETLEBA
251,014,444,3480% (20244 : 103,148,116
f%) - mE R EEA0.01%8 T (20244 3 A 31
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group of approximately HK$10,000
invest in the purchase of property, plant and equipment (2024: approximately
HK$681,000). These capital expenditures were financed from internal
resources and funds from previous fund raising activities of the Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no capital commitment in respect of
capital expenditures contracted for but not provided (2024: approximately
HK$4,418,000).

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

During the Financial Year, there was a loss of approximately HK$28,700,000
on changes in fair value of investment properties from continuing operations
(2024: loss of approximately HK$9,563,000). During the Financial Year, the
loss on changes in fair value of investment properties from discontinued
operation was nil (2024: nil).

Finance Costs

Finance costs from continuing operations were approximately HK$92,555,000
for the year ended 31 March 2025, representing an increase of approximately
HK$37,481,000 or approximately 68.1% from approximately HK$55,074,000
for the previous financial year. Included in the finance costs, approximately
HK$20,525,000 (2024: approximately HK$17,941,000) was the effective
interest expense on the convertible note.
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MATERIAL NOTIFIABLE TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS

Placing of New Shares under Specific Mandate

Unless otherwise stated, capitalized terms used herein this section shall
have the same meanings as those defined in Company’s announcements
dated 23 January and 17 April 2024, and the Company’s circular dated 29
February 2024. On 23 January 2024, the Company entered into a conditional
placing agreement pursuant to which a total of 235,000,000 placing shares
will be placed by the placing agent to not less than six placees at the placing
price of HK$0.18 per placing share, representing approximately 69.5% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the placing shares. The Placing Shares under the Placing rank pari
passu in all respects with the Shares in issue on the date of allotment and
issue of the Placing Shares. The aggregate nominal value of the maximum
number of the Placing Shares under the Placing is HK$2,350,000. The
Placing Price represents a discount of approximately 4.76% to the closing
price of HK$0.1890 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
Last Trading Day. The net proceeds from the placing, after deduction of the
placing commission and other related costs and expenses of the placing,
amounted to HK$41,877,000 would be used for repayment of the Group’s
bank borrowings and general working capital of the Group. The placing was
completed on 17 April 2024. As at the date of this annual report, the net
proceeds has been utilised as intended. Further information can be found in
the Company’s announcements dated 23 January and 17 April 2024, and the
Company’s circular dated 29 February 2024.

Connected Transaction — Proposed Alterations of terms of the 2023
Convertible Note and Proposed Grant of Specific Mandate to Issue
Conversion Shares

On 23 January 2024, the Company entered into a deed of amendment with
Goodco pursuant to which the conversion price of the 2023 Convertible
Note issued by the Company with principal amount of HK$209,000,000
would be adjusted from HK$3.70 to HK$0.18 per conversion share and an
early redemption provision was altered to give the Company and Goodco
the right to redeem the 2023 Convertible Note at any time, in whole or in
part. The number of conversion shares would be adjusted from 56,486,436
to 1,161,111,111. The aforesaid placing of new shares was approved in
the special general meeting of the Company on 27 March 2024 and the
conditions precedent under the deed of amendment were fulfiled on 17 April
2024. Accordingly, the placing of new shares and amendment of terms of the
2023 Convertible Note were completed on 17 April 2024. The modification
of the terms is determined to be substantial and hence will result in the
extinguishment of the original liability component of the 2023 Convertible
Note and the recognition of new liability and equity components. Accordingly,
the difference between the fair value of the new liability component and the
carrying amount of the original liability component will be recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2025. Further information can be
found in the Company’s announcements dated 23 January and 17 April 2024,
and the Company’s circular dated 6 March 2024.
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Major Transaction — Disposal of Limited Partnership Interest

On 31 May 2024, the Group entered deeds of assignment with independent
third parties pursuant to which the Group agreed to assign and transfer all
of the rights, title and interests in a limited partnership at a consideration of
USD3,700,000 (equivalent to HK$28,971,000). The disposal was approved
by the Shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company held on
17 July 2024. During the Financial Year, all the conditions precedent to the
disposal had been fulfilled and completion of the disposal took place in July
2024. Further information can be found in the Company’s announcement and
circular dated 31 May 2024 and 24 June 2024 respectively.

Major Transaction — Disposal of Property in Hong Kong

On 28 June 2024, the Group, entered into a preliminary sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to sell, and the independent third party agreed to purchase, the
property at a consideration of HK$36,000,000, subject to fulfilment of the
conditions precedent as stipulated in the preliminary sale and purchase
agreement. The property situated at Ground Floor, No. 148 Johnston
Road, Hong Kong which comprises a shop on the ground floor in a fifteen-
storey residential and commercial composite building with a saleable area
of approximately 516 sq. ft. (equivalent to approximately 47.94 sg. m.) plus
a yard of approximately 62 sq. ft. (equivalent to approximately 5.76 sg. m.).
The disposal was approved by the Shareholders at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 13 August 2024. During the Financial Year, all the
conditions precedent to the disposal had been fulfilled and completion of the
disposal took place in September 2024. Further information can be found in
the Company’s announcement and circular dated 28 June 2024 and 22 July
2024 respectively.

Major Transaction — Disposal of Property in Singapore

An agreement was entered into between the Group (as vendor) and an
independent third party (as purchaser), in relation to the grant and exercise
of the option on 24 July 2024 to purchase the four-bedroom residential
apartment units with a gross floor area of approximately 268 sqg. m. (equivalent
to approximately 2,885 sq. ft.) located on the eighteenth storey of a thirty-
storey block within a condominium development of 15 Ardmore Park
#18-02, Ardmore Park, Singapore 259959 at a sale price of S$12,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$72,216,000). The disposal was approved
by the Shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company held on 3
September 2024.

During the Financial Year, all the conditions precedent to the disposal had
been fulfilled and completion of the disposal took place in October 2024.
Further information can be found in the Company’s announcement and
circular dated 24 July 2024 and 12 August 2024 respectively.
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The Rights Issue

Unless otherwise stated, capitalized terms used herein this section shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 15 October 2024 and 29 November 2024 respectively.

On 15 October 2024, the Company announced that it proposed to raise up
to approximately HK$62.2 million before expenses by way of the issue to
the Qualifying Shareholders of a maximum of 676,296,232 Rights Shares
(assuming no change in the number of Shares in issue on or before the
Record Date) at the Subscription Price of HK$0.092 per Rights Share,
representing a discount of approximately 8.00% to the closing price of
HK$0.100 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Last Trading
Day, on the basis of two Rights Shares for every one existing Share held on
the Record Date. The Rights Issue, which is on a non-underwritten basis, is
available only to the Qualifying Shareholders and will not be extended to the
Non-Qualifying Shareholders. The Rights Shares, when allotted, fully-paid
and issued, shall rank pari passu in all respects with Shares then in issue,
including as to the right to receive all future dividends and distributions which
may be declared, made or paid on or after the date of allotment of the Rights
Shares. The aggregate nominal value of the Rights Shares is HK$6,762,962.
The net price per Rights Share (after deducting the relevant estimated
expenses) is approximately HK$0.0905. The purpose of the Rights Issue
is to repay the Group’s bank loans and obtain additional general working
capital. Approximately HK$47.0 million of the net proceeds was planned
for repayment of the Group’s bank loan(s) and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$14.2 million was planned for general working capital of the
Group.

In accordance with Rule 7.19A(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), as the Rights Issue
will increase the number of Shares by more than 50%, the Rights Issue is
subject to the approval of the Independent Shareholders at the SGM by way
of poll.

A SGM regarding the Rights Issue was held on 19 December 2024 and the
prospectus was despatched on 8 January 2025. On 3 February 2025, the
Company announced the results of the Rights Issue and the conversion price
adjustment as a result of the Rights Issue that reduced the conversion price
from HK$0.18 to HK$0.14 per conversion Share of the 2023 Convertible
Note. The dealings in the fully-paid Rights Shares on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 5 February 2025. As at the date of this annual report, the net
proceeds has been utilised as intended.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcements dated 15
October 2024 and 3 February 2025, the circular dated 29 November 2024
and the prospectus dated 8 January 2025.

Change of Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer office

On 26 February 2025, the Company announced the change of the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with effect
from 31 March 2025. Further information can be found in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 February 2025.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate governance. As far
as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its businesses
and operations of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2025, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that caused material adverse impact on the Group’s
business operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group is embedded with a strong corporate culture for corporate
social responsibilities that forms an integral part of its business strategies.
Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to the long-
term sustainability of the environment in which it operates and support the
environmental protection initiatives to conserve the natural resources. The
Group understands global implications of climate change and is committed
to place a high priority on reducing the potential impact on the environment
by its business operations through building awareness of environmental
conservation, minimizing carbon footprints, employing green office initiatives
and enhancing environmental awareness among employees and other key
stakeholders. Acting in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and to adopt effective measures in achieving efficient use of
resources, energy-saving and waste management. Details will be disclosed in
the environmental, social and governance report of the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules in due course.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects are subject to a number of directly or indirectly business risks
and uncertainties. In general, volatility in the worldwide financial markets,
fluctuations in commodity prices and increasing energy costs, uncertain
inflationary pressures, uncertain interest rate movement, political turbulence,
international trade competition and supply chain disruptions have all
contributed to the increased uncertainty of global economic prospects.

Climate change poses different risks to the Group’s businesses. Apart from
physical risks such as rising earth’s temperature and sea level, increasing
greenhouse gas and extreme weather condition, have already created
and will continue to create, resulting in a number of negative effects to
the environment and the Group’s assets, businesses and supply chain
management which may pose increased risks for the Group’s stakeholders
such as employees, customers and suppliers.

Faced with such daunting macro-economic and geo-political risks and
uncertainties, the Group devotes considerable effort to focus on developing
its core businesses and to explore new market opportunities in order to create
and realize long-term values to the Shareholders and its key stakeholders.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 38 employees (2024: 40). Staff
costs (including the Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$32,050,000 for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: approximately
HK$40,218,000). The Group regards human resources as its valuable
assets. The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The Group has participated
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all eligible employees of the
Group in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has made
contributions to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government for the PRC employees, if needed. Other benefits to employees
include medical and dental scheme and insurance coverage.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue focusing its efforts on the development of its existing
principal businesses, including property development, property investment,
investment in securities and others and loan financing business while
exploring other potential opportunities and projects with a view to providing
steady and favourable returns to the Shareholders and bringing increased
values to the Group’s stakeholders.

Despite the existing uncertainties on global economic growth in the
macroenvironment associated with uncertain inflation rate and interest rate
movements, and ongoing geopolitical tensions, the Group continuously and
closely monitors the current situation and remains prudently optimistic about
the prospects of the property and securities markets in Hong Kong and
believes these markets will continue to grow over the longer term.

In line with its investment strategy and policy, the Company will continue to
seize and identify appropriate investment and divestment opportunities during
this challenging period that fit the objective and investment criteria of the
Company, and will continue to seek attractive opportunities to replenish its
property portfolio as an ongoing business exercise. The Board would exercise
utmost caution so as to bring long-term benefits to the operating and financial
results to the Company in the foreseeable future.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to maintaining and upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures by integrating social and
environmental concerns into business operations of the Group, such that the
interests of the Shareholders and its stakeholders as well as the long-term
sustainable development of the Company can be safeguarded.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 March 2025, the Company has fully complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the CG Code, thereby ensuring that the Company is up to
the requirements as being diligent, accountable and professional, except for
the deviations with considered reasons disclosed in this annual report.
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EECEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LAl LAW KAU
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lai Law Kau, aged 64, is the chairman, chief executive officer, an
executive director (the “Director”), the chairman of the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) of the Company, and a member of the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Lai has been involved in
the textiles industry over 20 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. He is a brother-in-law
of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the deputy chairman and an executive Director; and the
vice president and an executive director of Easyknit International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1218) (“Easyknit”). Mr. Lai is also an uncle of Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy (“Ms. Candy Koon”), the president and chief executive officer,
and an executive director of Easyknit. In August 2020, he was appointed
as an executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. In October 2020,
Mr. Lai was re-designated from an executive Director and a member of
the Executive Committee to the chairman, chief executive officer, and the
chairman of the Executive Committee.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 67, is the deputy chairman, an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company, and a member of the Executive
Committee. She is also an executive director and vice president, and a
member of the executive committee of Easyknit. Ms. Lui has been involved in
the textiles industry for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as director
of various subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit. Ms. Lui was appointed
to the board of the Company (the “Board”) as an executive Director in 2003
and was appointed as deputy chairman in 2006. She is a sister-in-law of Mr.
Lai Law Kau, the chairman, chief executive officer, and an executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Lui is also the mother of Ms. Candy Koon.
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Biographical Details of Directors

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, aged 82, is an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company, and a member of the Executive
Committee. Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1965
and was admitted as Barrister-at-Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and
in Hong Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of experience in
the legal field. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board as an independent
non-executive Director in 2003, and was subsequently re-designated as
an executive Director in 2007. In 2007, he was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Kwong also serves as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and a subsidiary of Easyknit. In October
2020, he was re-designated from the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company and the chairman of the Executive Committee of the Company
to an executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee; and
resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan Ka Hon, aged 74, is an independent non-executive Director since
2003. Mr. Kan is also the chairman and a member of the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”), and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kan has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and finance.

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau Sin Ming, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director since
2004. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
auditing and is now working as a tax consultant.

MR. WU KOON YIN WELLY

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director
since 2017. Mr. Wu is also the chairman and a member of the Nomination
Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He holds a Master in Finance degree from the University of Essex
and a Bachelor of Commerce degree in the University of Sydney, Australia.
He has over 16 years of extensive experience in the brokerage industry.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company is
dedicated to maintaining and developing a good standard of corporate
governance within a sensible and practical framework with key practices
and procedures by integrating social and environmental concerns into the
business operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The
Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence are essential for upholding the interests of the stakeholders and
maximizing the shareholders’ value. The Board is committed to excellence
in corporate governance. It is responsible for developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance as well as
complying with statutory and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Corporate Culture

The Board and the management of the Group set the tone and shape
the corporate culture of people-centered, risk-prevention-oriented, legally
compliant and steady progress, which is underpinned by the core values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all levels of the Group. The
Board leads the management in defining the purpose, values and strategic
direction of the Group and in fostering a corporate culture that is building a
long-term sustainable business models where customers, partners, investors,
suppliers and employees can benefit in the shared value of corporate success.
The desired culture is developed and reflected consistently in the Group’s
business operations, workplace policies and practices as well as relationships
with the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and other
stakeholders. The Board, together with the management of the Group, create
an organizational culture of maintaining and developing an effective corporate
governance framework with stringent corporate governance practices and
procedures through workforce engagement, employee retention and training,
robust financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy and anti-corruption
policies, and legal and regulatory compliance. The Group promotes its culture
continuously by setting out various policies, including but not limited to,
the whistleblowing policy, the anti-corruption policy and the Shareholders’
communication policy. Taking into account the corporate culture in a range
of contexts, the Board has reviewed and considered that the Group’s culture,
purpose, values and strategy are aligned as at the date of this annual report.
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Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve the Group’s principal objective of enhancing long-term
values and interests to the Shareholders and other stakeholders, the Group
focuses on achieving sustainable growth in both financial and environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) performance. The Group executes disciplined
management of revenue and profitability, margin and costs, capital and
investment return and other financing activities. The Group’s core competency
in operational excellence in its various properties projects is a key initiative
to capture continuing cost and revenue opportunities in its core businesses.
The “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and the “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS” in this annual report include discussions and analyses of the
Group’s performance, the basis on which the Board directs to generate the
Group’s core values in the longer term and delivers the Group’s corporate
culture, strategy and objectives. The Group is increasingly conscious on ESG
and focusing on supporting the global low-carbon and sustainable future
transition. Further details on the Group’s ESG initiatives and relationships with
its key stakeholders are disclosed in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
ESG

The Group recognizes the significance of sound ESG practices and is
committed to the environment protection, provision of quality workplace, and
serving our community. The ESG considerations are reflected in the policies,
procedures and processes that are relevant to the Group’s daily operations.
The Board plays a key role in ESG strategy and oversight in order to create
long-term growth and sustainable value for the Group’s stakeholders. The
Group had established a ESG governance structure to advise and oversee
the Group’s sustainability and ESG-related issues and risks. The ESG
management approach and policies are overseen by the Board. The Board
identifies and evaluates the material ESG issues related to the Group’s internal
and external stakeholders, including risks to the Group’s businesses. With the
ever-changing ESG-related risks and the growing prominence of ESG-related
issues to the Group’s stakeholders, the Group will uphold and strengthen its
risk management system in order to cope with the ever-changing ESG-related
risks and opportunities. The ESG policies and performance of the Group are
contained in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT”
of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company
has fully complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, thereby ensuring
that the Company is up to the requirements as being diligent, accountable and
professional except for the deviations with considered reasons disclosed herein.
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Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
(the “Chairman”) and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year ended 31 March 2025, Mr.
Lai Law Kau (“Mr. Lai”) served as the Chairman as well as the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). This dual leadership
role has been adopted by the Company for a number of years and is deemed
appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient to have one single person
to be the Chairman as well as to discharge the executive functions of the
Chief Executive Officer thereby enabling more effective planning and better
execution of long-term strategies. In addition, the Board considers that a
balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations and
governance of the Board which comprises experienced and high-calibre
individuals, with half of them being independent non-executive Directors. The
Directors also meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the Group’s
operations. As such, the Board believes that with the support of other
executive Directors and senior management of the Group, vesting the roles
of both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in Mr. Lai can facilitate
the execution of the Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness
of its operations. The Board will review the current structure when and as it
becomes appropriate.

Code Provision D.2.5

The issuer should have an internal audit function.

Code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code stipulates that the Group should
have an internal audit function. The Group does not have an internal audit
function. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and considered
that the systems are effective and adequate, and there were no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures have been taken. In addition, the Board has put in
place adequate measures to perform the internal control functions in relation
to the Group’s critical operational cycles including the establishment of
arrangements to apply financial reporting and internal control principles in
accounting and financial matters to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules
and relevant laws and regulations. The Board considers that the existing
organization structure and close supervision by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Group can maintain sufficient risk management
and internal control of the Group. As such, the Board was of the view that
there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. An
annual review will be conducted.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested in the Board,
who assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and operational
performances, interests of all Shareholders and that all issues are considered
in an objective manner.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised six Directors, including three executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Mr. Lai Law Kau and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, both being executive Directors, are
family members. Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are
set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS”
of this annual report. Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation
at the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) for a term of up
to three years pursuant to bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) and code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process for the best interest of
the Group. The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly to
ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills
and experience to meet the needs of the business development of the Group.
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Board Independence

The independent non-executive Directors bring to the Board independent
views and judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts, and enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The established governance framework and effective
mechanisms are kept under annual review by the independent Board to
ensure their effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
representing at least one-third of the Board and with at least one of them
having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a term of
up to three years and subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM pursuant
to the Bye-laws. The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that each of
Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming has served as an independent non-
executive Director on the Board for more than nine years, the Board is of
the view that their duration of service will not interfere with their exercise of
independent judgement in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as
the independent non-executive Directors and believes that their valuable
knowledge and experience in the Group’s business will continually benefit the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Re-election of the retiring
Directors will be subject to a separate resolution at the AGM to be approved
by the Shareholders by way of poll.

The Chairman meets at least annually with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation of
the Nomination Committee to the Board and then by the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. Pursuant to the Bye-
laws, all Directors, including those appointed for a specific term, are subject
to retirement by rotation at the AGM no later than the third AGM since the last
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the next following AGM after his or her appointment, or
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM after his or her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year with at least
fourteen days’ prior notice being given to all the Directors to facilitate fullest
possible attendance. Additional meetings, if necessary, are arranged and
will be held as and when required. All Directors or Board Committee(s)
members will receive the meeting agenda and accompanying Board or
Board Committee(s) papers at least three days before the date of the regular
Board or Board Committee(s) meeting(s) pursuant to code provision C.5.8
of the CG Code; and may attend Board or Board Committee(s) meeting(s)
either in person or through electronic means of communication. A total of
five Board meetings (including four regular Board meeting(s) were held and
written resolutions of the Directors were circulated and passed for approving
significant matters during the year ended 31 March 2025. Pursuant to code
provision C.5.5 of the CG Code, draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to all Directors or Board Committee(s) members for comments
and records respectively. The attendance records of the Directors are set out
as below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE(S) MEMBERS”.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and oversight of management. It is also responsible
for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Group of every business segment,
while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through executive Directors who have
attended the Board meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
package to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the Group’s
operations, business and governance policies. In addition, our external legal
adviser meets with the new Director to ensure that he or she is fully aware
of the responsibilities as a Director under the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company provides regular updates
on the business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are
regularly updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development (the “Continuous Professional Development”) regarding the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities, and the latest updates on rules and
regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant in compliance
with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. According to the training records
confirmations received from all the existing Directors, all Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Development for the year ended
31 March 2025 in the following manner:

RIEZEEATRZ FRIGEECT.41K - K
El%mi% $/A Fi%%@@%f

Eﬁiiﬁ,fﬁua’am%ﬁé@ : LA%JE&E%)T{EZv%ﬂE%
kg UHRESCABEZEEARDE
FIEMBERATHESSHELER - BEMA
BAEFRHMNFICHERS %ﬁ@§$
REE2025F3A3TH L FEFLEEFESR
EBR BROT

Name Type of Training
HE o kil
(Note)
(M15t)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lai Law Kau FBERSTAE v/
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EEXRHZL v
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim B RARNEE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon B e v/
Mr. Lau Sin Ming 2EALEAE v
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REE L v

Note:

Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/seminars/webcast/

conferences/forums/online training/reading relevant materials

Corporate Governance Functions

With the requirement set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code in
respect of the responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties,
the Board has delegated its following responsibilities to the Audit Committee:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(©) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of the Company’s
annual report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee had performed
the abovementioned corporate governance functions by reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of any claims against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees (the “Board Committee(s)”)

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”), to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities and
to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and
holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board Committees
meetings. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are reviewed and
updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned with prevailing governance
practices. Each Board Committee is required to report to the Board on its
decisions and recommendations, where appropriate. The terms of reference
of each of the Board Committees are available on the Company’s website.
The attendance records of each member of the Board Committees are set
out as below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND BOARD COMMITTEE(S) MEMBERS”.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly and held two meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2025.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during two years after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.
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The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:
- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before publication;

- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems;

- to review the financial controls, and risk management and internal
control systems of the Company with particular regard to their
effectiveness;

- to perform the corporate governance functions;

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee members met
twice with senior management of the Group and the Company’s auditor to
review (i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management representation letters, and
management’s response in relation to the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2024 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2024; (ji) the draft consolidated financial statements of the Group in relation to
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2024 and recommended the same
to the Board for approval; and (i) the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company. The Audit Committee reviewed and
satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor and
the audit fees including non-audit services, if any, provided by the Company’s
auditor to the Group and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as the Company’s auditor for
the ensuing year at the forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2024/2025 consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with the Company’s auditor. Based on this review
and discussions with senior management of the Group, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended 31 March 2025.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group;

- to review and determine and make recommendations to the Board,
with delegated responsibility, on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the Group,
including, but not limited to, benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors, if any;

- to review and approve the compensation arrangements in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment, or
dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive Directors and senior
management of the Group which shall be fair and not excessive; and

- to review and/or approve matters relating to any share scheme(s) under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to review and approve the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management of the Group by reference to factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere within the Group and in the market; and to
make recommendations to the Board on the Directors’ fee for independent
non-executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration. Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note
8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee has discharged or will continue to discharge
its major roles to, among other things, approve the terms of the service
agreements of the Directors and senior management of the Group, make
recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration and policies
of the Directors and senior management of the Group and to review and
recommend to the Board the remuneration package including salaries,
bonuses and incentive awards for the Directors and senior management of
the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming, and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of the Directors for the
Board’s consideration;

- to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the succession planning for the Chairman and the chief executive of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review and make recommendations to the Board for approval on (i)
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board; (i) the nomination
policy and the Board diversity policy of the Company; (i) the assessment
of the independence of the existing independent non-executive Directors;
and (iv) the nomination of the retiring Directors for retirement by rotation and
re-appointment at the AGM. The Nomination Committee reviewed that the
current composition of the Board satisfied the Board diversity policy of the
Company which considered to be effective.

Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The nomination policy of the Company sets out the nomination procedures
for the nomination, appointment or re-appointment, and succession planning
of the Directors. This policy provides the key selection criteria and principles
of the Nomination Committee in making any such recommendations. In
assessing the suitability for directorship of any proposed candidate, factors
which would be considered by the Nomination Committee include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Group’s businesses and corporate
strategies, commitment in respect of time to discharge Director’s
duties, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives appropriate
to the Company’s businesses. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.
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The Board also adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieving Board diversity in the Company in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard. The
Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team of Board
members, which is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been delegated the authority
to review and assess the diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to the Board diversity policy when
identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates. The policy has been
and will be reviewed annually taking into account the Group’s structure,
business models and corporate strategy to ensure its effectiveness.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at 31 March
2025:
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ED — executive Director
INED - independent non-executive Director

Further information on the biography of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS” of this annual report.
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The Board currently has one female Director out of six Directors and is
committed to maintaining gender diversity at the Board level. At present, the
Board considers an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained and has not set any other measurable objectives. The Company
has also taken, and continues to take steps to promote diversity at all levels
of its workforce. As at 31 March 2025, total workforce of the Company
comprised 54% female and 46% male. The Group has achieved the objective
of maintaining a relatively balanced gender ratio. Based on the Board’s
review, there was no mitigating factor or circumstance which makes achieving
gender diversity across the workforce (including senior management) more
challenging or less relevant. The Company will continue to strive to achieve an
appropriate balance of gender diversity in the workforce as well as the Board
according to business needs and future development so as to develop a
pipeline of potential successors to the Board in the future.

Both the nomination policy and the Board diversity policy of the Company are
available on the Company’s website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Law Kau (chairman of the Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters of authority delegated by
the Board, the Executive Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment and
trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Deloitte has been re-appointed as the external auditor of the Company at the

2024 AGM until the conclusion of the forthcoming 2025 AGM.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the audit fee paid or payable to
the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte, represented annual audit fee of
approximately HK$1,650,000, and no non-audit fees.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE(S) MEMBERS

Details of the attendance records of each individual Director at the Board
meetings (including regular Board meetings), the Board Committee(s)
meetings, the AGM and the special general meeting of the Company (the
“SGM”) held during the year ended 31 March 2025 are as follows:
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REZE2025F3A31HIEFENRN  ERES
ERRARIBRAZEFE SR (BEE
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AABIBREFIN ARG ((REFAARE]) ZH
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Attended/Eligible to attend

i/ REREE
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Name meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM SGM
EEg ERZEE HMZEEE REZEE REAF  RRHEA
nE = = 83 a3 x& N
Executive Directors HEE
Mr. Lai Law Kau BERLE 4/5* 2/2 11 11 11 4/4
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu ERkut 56  NATER N/A T iEF N/A T iE R 11 4/4
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRALE 565  NATERE  NATEAE NATEAR 11 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon b 4/5 2/2* 11 11 11 4/4
Mr. Lau Sin Ming BlERLE 445 2/2 11 11 1A 4/4
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly RBELE 4/5 2/2 11 1/1* 1/1 4/4

* Chairman of the Board/Board Committee(s)

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2025, Mr. Lee Po Wing (“Mr. Lee”) who is
not an employee of the Company and is an external service provider of Paul
Kwong & Company, was engaged by the Company as the company secretary
of the Company; and Mr. Lee has confirmed that Mr. Lee has taken no less
than fifteen hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, the executive Director
is the contact person of Mr. Lee at the Company pursuant to code provision
C.6.1 of the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the Group’s activities,
with executive responsibility for the running of the Group’s business being
delegated to management. The management provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to discharge their duties.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually by requiring all department managers to undergo a detailed self-risk
assessment process using a common risk management framework. It covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and procedures
are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report risks. Such
risks include strategic, credit, operational (including but not limited to,
administrative, system, human resources and reputation), market, liquidity,
legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is continuously monitored
by the Board through the Audit Committee. The internal control system
includes a defined management structure with specified limits of authority.
The Board has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
division to ensure adequate checks and balances.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable financial information, and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year under
review, the Audit Committee and the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
that the systems are effective and adequate, and there were no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
appropriate measures have been taken. The Board is of the view that the
enterprise risk management and internal control systems in place for the year
and up to the date of this annual report is effective and adequate. In addition,
the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. An annual review will be conducted.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of
openness, probity and accountability. The Company encourages reporting
of concerns and actual or suspected misconduct or malpractice or unethical
acts by employees and/or external parties in any matters related to the
Company. In this regard, the Company has adopted the whistleblowing
policy which aims to provide reporting channels and guidance on reporting
possible improprieties and concerns, in confidence and anonymity. The
Board delegated the authority to the Audit Committee, which is responsible
for ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of any matters raised and appropriate follow-up actions are
taken.

Anti-corruption Policy

The Company takes a zero-tolerance approach towards all forms of bribery
and corruption and is committed to observing and upholding high standards
of business integrity, honesty, fairness, impartiality and transparency in all its
business dealings at all times. The Company has adopted the anti-corruption
policy which sets out the basic standard of conduct which applies to all
directors, officers and employees at all levels of the Group who must conduct
their activities in full compliance with this policy and all other applicable laws
relating to bribery or corruption.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the relevant accounting periods, and in compliance with all
the relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements of the
Group, the appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates are made. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements for the reporting year on a going
concemn basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and financial positions in all its
financial reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
is set out in the “INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT” on pages 86 to 91 of
this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for the Directors in their dealings in
the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiries by the Company,
all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2025. The Company has also adopted the Model Code to regulate the
dealings in the Company’s securities by its employees and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group who are likely to possess inside information relating
to the Company’s securities.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the guidelines for the Board and the Company to determine (i)
whether dividends are to be declared and paid, and (i) the level of dividend to
be paid to the Shareholders.

The Dividend Policy is to allow the Shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for its working
capital requirements and future growth.

In determining or recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year or period, the Board shall, inter alia, consider the
following factors:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(ii) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iii) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth

aspect of the business;

(iv)  the current and future liquidity position and capital requirements of the
Group;

(v) the interests of the Shareholders; and
(vi)  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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Subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim dividends as it
considers appropriate. Any final dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by the Shareholders at general meetings and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a SGM.
Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company as at the date of deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for a SGM. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at the General Meetings
The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting of the
Company:

() any number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 Shareholders holding Shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

Proposing a person for Election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“RULES AND PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE ELECTION OF DIRECTORS”,
which can be found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Enquiries by the Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board
in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@eminencehk.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company considers that effective two-way communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication policy which aims to
promote an effective communication with the Shareholders, enabling them to
exercise their rights in a timely manner so that their views and concerns are
appropriately addressed, and to furnish the investment community with ready
and equal information about the Company.

The Company maintains a website at http://www.eminence-enterprise.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through the AGMs or other general meetings
to communicate with the Shareholders. During the year ended 31 March
2025, four physical SGMs were held, and the last AGM was held on 22
August 2024.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ communication policy during the year ended 31 March 2025.
Having considered the multiple channels of communication and Shareholders’
engagement in the general meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2025, the Board is satisfied that the Shareholders’ communication policy has
been properly implemented during this year and is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not made any
changes to its Bye-laws. A consolidated version of the memorandum of
association of the Company and the Amended and Restated Bye-laws
are available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) present this annual report
together with the audited financial statements of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2025 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development, property
investment, investment in securities and others and loan financing and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 92 to 93 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including an analysis of the Group’s performance,
material events that have occurred since the year end date and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are contained in this
Directors’ report and the preceding “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and
“MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” set out on pages 5 to 27 of
this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are disclosed in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance policies and performance are reported in the “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” set out on pages 65 to 85 of this

annual report.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 210 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The board of the Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2025 by
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers and the gain/loss
arising from changes in fair value of investment properties was recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. Details of these are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on
pages 96 to 97 of this annual report and note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders of

the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) as at 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as
follows:
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31 March 2025
2025%3H31H

31 March 2024
2024%3HA31H

HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BET T
Contributed surplus NN 458,830 458,830
Accumulated profits ZEAE 273,371 261,193
732,201 720,023

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed surplus shall not be BREBREQARE  MEBEAEERARFE

distributed to the Shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(@) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$780,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 28 to 29 of this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (“Ms. Lui”), an
executive Director and Mr. Lau Sin Ming (“Mr. Lau”), an independent non-
executive Director, shall retire from office by rotation at the annual general
meeting (the “AGM”). Ms. Lui and Mr. Lau, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change in information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
Company’s latest published 2023/2024 annual report and up to the date of
this report.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors
as regards their independence to the Company for the year ended 31 March
2025. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming
has served as an independent non-executive Director on the Board for more
than nine years, the Board is of the view that their duration of service will not
interfere with their exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their
duties and responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors and
believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business
will continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, the Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM for a
term of up to three years under bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements headed
“Related Party Transactions/Connected Transactions” of this annual report,
there were no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during
the Year or at the end of the Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contracts of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the Year, and there was no contracts of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) had any interests or short positions in the
shares of the Company (the “Share(s)”), underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were
required to be (i) notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests which the Directors or the Chief Executive
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
(i) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or (jii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2025, so far as is known to the Directors and the Chief
Executive, the following persons or corporations (other than a Director or the
Chief Executive) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required to be entered in the register kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO:

Long Positions in Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares
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Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total  issued Shares
HE8T
BELER HERE BBz
ITERRER W & UL E] RHEE w3t BOBEDL
Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) (i), (i) and  Beneficial owner
(iv) 42,167,397 500,000,000 542,167,397 53.44%
EXEREBAF(ER]) ik EBE&HEEA
(i)
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited (i), (i) and  Interest of controlled corporation
(iv) 42,167,397 500,000,000 542,167,397 53.44%

0k SEHEE ES
(iv)
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Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total issued Shares
HERST
BREER BEEE Ripfagz
IERRER Wi 5 ROEE ROEE a5 BRBEAL
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (i), (i) and  Interest of controlled corporation
(‘Easyknit’) (iv) 80,261,811 500,000,000 580,261,811 57.20%
KEEREEERRRA(XE] i) (il XEHEEZRE
(iv)
Beneficial owner 2,025,000 - 2,025,000 0.20%
EREBA
82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
Magical Profits Limited (i), (i) and  Interest of controlled corporation
() 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
i) (il REDEE ER
i)
Accumulate More Profits Limited (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
ki) SEHEEzER
The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited (i) and (iv)  Interest of controlled corporation 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
ARERETERAA ki) REHEE 2 R
Winterbotham Holdings Limited (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
ki) SEHEEzER
Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
ki) SEHEEzER
Markson International Holding Limited (i) and (iv) Interest of controlled corporation 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
iy SEHEEzER
lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper (i) and (iv)  Interest of controlled corporation 82,286,811 500,000,000 582,286,811 57.40%
iy SEHEEzER
Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen Beneficial owner 161,325,339 - 161,325,339 15.90%
RER ERBBA
Law Sai Hung Beneficial owner 98,897,825 - 98,897,825 9.75%
AR ERBBA
Chan Lo Chiu Angus Beneficial owner 80,210,717 - 80,210,717 7.90%
BRER ERBBA
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Notes: |

In the 80,261,811 Shares, 36,340,362* Shares, 1,754,052 Shares and 42,167,397
Shares were registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Ace Winner Investment
Limited, Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco (which was wholly-owned by Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited) respectively, all of which were wholly-owned subsidiaries

of Easyknit. 2,025,000 Shares were also beneficially owned by Easyknit.

As at 31 March 2025, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, Magical Profits Limited, which was interested in
approximately 39.43% of the issued share capital of Easyknit, was wholly-owned by
Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn was wholly-owned by Delacroix Limited
and beneficially owned by The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited as trustee of
The Magical 2000 Trust. The Winterbotham Trust Company Limited was owned as to
60% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited, which in turn was owned as to approximately
99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper, and 40% by Markson
International Holding Limited, which in turn was owned as to approximately 99.99% by
Mr. lvan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper, respectively.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a Director, was also a director of Goodco, Easyknit Properties
Holdings Limited, Easyknit and Magical Profits Limited and a substantial shareholder of
Easyknit.

According to two Forms 2 filed on 7 February 2025 and 28 March 2025 by Easyknit,
in respect of the 5% per annum coupon rate convertible note issued to Goodco by the
Company on 20 February 2023 in the original principal amount of HK$209,000,000
(the “2023 Convertible Note”), (a) upon completion of rights issue of the Company on
4 February 2025; and (b) upon completion of partial redemptions of 2023 Convertible
Note by the Company, the conversion price of the 2023 Convertible Note has been
revised from HK$0.18 to HK$0.14 per conversion Share and the outstanding principal
amount of 2023 Convertible Note has been reduced to HK$70,000,000 which is
convertible into 500,000,000 Shares at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.14 per
conversion Share. Therefore, Easyknit’'s shareholding interest in the Company has
decreased to 57.40%.

According to Form 2 filed on 2 July 2021 by Ace Winner Investment Limited, on 25
June 2021, 300,000,000 Shares were pledged to Hang Seng Bank Limited. Upon
completion of the capital reorganisation of the Company on 19 July 2023, the number
of pledged Shares has reduced from 300,000,000 to 7,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 0.74% equity interest of total issued Shares as at 31 March 2025.

780,261,811 8% A& + 36,340,362* A% i% 1n
1,754,052 i 19 542,167,397 B i 15 75 Bl LA 3&E
L5 EBMR A A + Landmark Profits Limited & &
5 (1 Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited2 & #
BIZRBELRBEEGHE  ZERKEZ
2AWBATF © 2,025,000/ 8% 13 IRk E 2%
%A -

MR202543A31H  BEFKFHEREA®R
FREN - 278 K HE{E - Magical Profits Limited
HHXKERDBTRALS9.43% M © 22
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Delacroix Limited® & # 4 I R FIERE
AR A AlE AThe Magical 2000 TrustZ {575
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Apart from Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, no Director was also a director or an employee
of any substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Directors and the Chief
Executive were not aware of any other persons (other than a Director or
the Chief Executive) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18, was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any
such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the Directors in competing businesses as at 31 March 2025
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of competing business
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Nature of interest

HFEHE NEER BREEREME EHEME

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Easyknit Property development, property Director of Easyknit and
investment, investment in securities substantial shareholder
and others and loan financing of Easyknit

BERKLL KE MEER  MERE BHhHEM KBEEMKBEETERR

KERERME
As the Board is independent of the board of Easyknit and maintains three

independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of Easyknit.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2025.

FEGBHIRARESE  WRB=EBY
FHTEE  REEE YRS EHI LR
AT REGEEET -

BE  HERERLQ EHmES
REE2025F3A31HIEFE » RARSHE

EAMERRMERE HEXWEAARAF
R LmaEs

57



58

3
u

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Directors’ Report

EEERE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken during the financial year
in the normal course of business are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. For those related party transactions that constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the
case may be) under the Listing Rules, these transactions (if any) were (i)
exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement and the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;
or (i) handled in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Bye-laws provides that, among others, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of them.
In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during the
Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 77.4% of the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 39.1% of the Group’s purchases.

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 38.7% of the Group’s revenue and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 23.1% of the Group’s revenue.

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective close associates
or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares) have any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties in
Hong Kong have been carried out by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional property valuers.
For the investment property in Singapore, the valuation was carried out by
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd, another independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers. Their valuations were based on residual value
approach, income capitalisation approach and/or direct comparison method
as the valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2024/2025 final
results. The Group’s investment properties were valued at approximately
HK$1,057,900,000 (2024: approximately HK$1,250,443,000). The decrease
in fair value of approximately HK$28,700,000 was recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the financial year. Development properties and non-investment properties
of the Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations.
Through internal control systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not
adversely affect the Group’s operations and performances. The relevant risks
are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The conditions of
the economy as a whole and the property market may have significant impact
to the Group’s financial results and conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and overseas laws
(including those of Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands) and regulations,
including but not limited to property sale, management and construction as
well as companies and securities laws. The Group has constantly monitored
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group.

ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this underpins how
we conduct business with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

The Group value its employees who are the Group’s most important assets.
Staff are rewarded with competitive remuneration packages and benefits. The
Group is committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-
free working environment.
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Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the Group’s
operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the employees
from any occupational hazards.

Customers

The Group strive to provide high quality and reliable services to its customers.
The privacy of the Group’s customers are well protected through a privacy
policy. Any complaints from customers are handled and investigated in a
thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership with its suppliers
and have a database of approved suppliers and vendors who are assessed
on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by the executive
Directors on the basis of employee performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board after review and
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
factors such as the time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, the
Company’s performance and the prevailing market practice.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where
the Company is incorporated.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2025 and as at the date
of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The principal responsibilities of
the Audit Committee is to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee comprises all three independent non-executive Directors as at 31
March 2025. The Audit Committee has met in person or by electronic means
the Group’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has reviewed
the audited consolidated financial statements, and risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 30 to 49 of this annual
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company (or “we” or “our”) has prepared an annual environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) report for 2024/2025 in compliance with
the ESG Reporting Code set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. This
section highlights the ESG policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2025. The Company is committed to addressing
sustainability issues and managing ESG risks through prudent business
planning and operational implementation. The Board, assisted by the
management of the Company, has the overall responsibility to review policies,
oversee sustainability issues and address ESG-related risks. Through this
internal sustainability governance framework, the Board has developed and
formulated relevant policies which better align with the Group’s business
goals and objectives.

Discussion on Environmental Performance

The Group is devoted to the integration of corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) into our day-to-day business operations to create long-term positive
value and contribute to a better future for the community while minimization of
its operational environmental footprint is resulted. We have focused our efforts
on environmental stewardship, energy efficiency, resource management
and cultivation of environmental awareness amongst employees. We remain
attentive to different energy-saving opportunities and adopt hardware
upgrades to improve our energy efficiency with a comprehensive approach
to waste and resource management, our goal is to create a paperless office
to minimize our paper usage. Apart from undertaking hardware upgrades
to further enhance the energy performance of existing infrastructure, we
apply new technologies to our new properties, including the installation of
low emissivity or double-glazed windows which help reduce heat loss and
optimise thermal insulation. Furthermore, we work hard to ensure waste
materials and other useful resources are reused, recovered and recycled
whenever possible before the consideration of landfill disposal.
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Account of Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Employees

We make great efforts to create a supportive, inclusive, caring and safe
work environment which facilitates professional development and protects
the health, safety and well-being of our employees. We emphasize on equal
opportunities, and a fair and transparent recruitment process. We reward
our employees with attractive remuneration packages and benefits, which
reference industry standards, and are commensurate with individual merit,
work experience, qualifications and job duties. Tailor-made functional training
programmes were arranged for our employees to keep abreast with the latest
professional knowledge and skills. Additionally, we have set safety guidelines
and systems to protect our employees and minimize potential occupational
hazards across our operations.

To ensure all staff understand their responsibility to uphold the Group’s ethical
standards, the employees handbook of the Group specifies clear expectations
for professional conduct. All relevant anti-discrimination and personal data
protection regulations are strictly observed.

In support of continual learning and development, the Group encourages
our employees to pursue different interests and offers internal and external
opportunities to realise their full potential. We continue to provide internal and
external training opportunities such as seminars and training courses in order
to strengthen our workforce and stock our talent pipeline.

We ensure our work environments are free from any potential occupational
health and safety hazards, our internal safety guidelines were formulated
in accordance with the requirements set out by the Labour Department to
minimise risks. During the Year, we fully complied with all relevant health and
safety regulations and we are pleased to report that there were no work-
related fatalities or lost days due to work injury.

Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

The Group has put in place stringent mechanisms and procedures on quality
assurance, customer service, health and safety requirements, procurement
procedures, and regulatory compliance. Our management approach stresses
control measures to ensure our stringent requirements are met, in cases
where quality concerns may arise, a thorough investigation will be carried out
and corrective actions will be promptly implemented. A complaint-handling
mechanism has been formulated to ensure we handle customer complaints in
a consistent and timely manner.

To promote corporate responsibility along our supply chain, we give
performance to businesses who share our sustainable practices and ethical
standards. Regular supplier assessments and audits are conducted to ensure
their compliance with our requirements.
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Operating as a responsible business operator, we strictly adhere to all
relevant data privacy regulations and maintain a high level of business ethics
and product responsibility. The Group’s privacy policy is established in
accordance with local regulations to ensure that all personal data are handled
in strict confidence.

Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations that have a
Significant Impact on the Business

During the Year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have had a significant impact on the
Group’s businesses regarding the environment, employment, occupational
health and safety, labour standards, product responsibility, anti-corruption,
data privacy and intellectual properties.

The ESG policies and performance of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2025 are set out in the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” from pages 65 to 85 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

Discloseable Transaction — Disposals of Listed Securities

On 16 May 2025, the Group disposed (i) in a series of transactions for a total
of 5,000,000 shares in Best Food Holding Company Limited (“Best Food
Share(s)”) which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1488), representing approximately 0.32% of the total issued Best
Food Shares, on the open market on 2 May 2025 and 6 May 2025; and (i)
12,000,000 Best Food Shares (representing approximately 0.76% of the total
issued Best Food Shares) by way of cross trade to a buyer on 16 May 2025
with a gross sales proceeds of approximately HK$17,010,000 (exclusive
of expenses) (equivalent to an average price of approximately HK$1.00
per disposed Best Food Share). Further information can be found in the
Company’s announcement dated 16 May 2025.

Amendment to 2023 Convertible Note

On 4 June 2025, after trading hours, the Company entered into a second
deed of amendment with the holder of 2023 Convertible Note pursuant to
which both parties conditionally agreed to amend the conversion price of the
2023 Convertible Note from HK$0.14 per conversion share to HK$0.07 per
conversion share. Pursuant to Rule 28.05 of the Listing Rules, any alterations
in the terms of convertible debt securities after issue must be approved by
the Stock Exchange, except where the alterations take effect automatically
under the existing terms of such convertible debt securities. As a result, the
Company applied for the approval of the Stock Exchange for the aforesaid
amendment pursuant to Rule 28.05 of the Listing Rules. Further information
can be found in the Company’s announcement dated 4 June 2025.
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AUDITOR
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM to re-appoint them as the auditor of the Company.
The Company’s auditor has not changed for the past three years.

By order of the Board

Lai Law Kau
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2025

In case of any inconsistency, the English version of this annual report shall
prevail over the Chinese version.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OVERVIEW

This annual environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) report (the “ESG
Report”) provides an overview of the management approach as well as
sustainability initiatives and performance of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(“Eminence”, “we” or “our”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the reporting period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2025 (the “Year”).
The ESG Report was reviewed and approved by the board of directors of

Eminence (the “Board”) on 27 June 2025.

1.  REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the mandatory
disclosure requirements and “comply or explain” code provisions of the
ESG Reporting Code (the “ESG Code”) set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”).

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting scope for the Year remained
the same as last year. The scope of the ESG Report covered the core
businesses of the Group, including property development, property
investment (comprising ownership and rental of investment properties),
investment in securities and others and loan financing business.

For a full list of ESG aspects, respective key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) and their references within the ESG Report, an ESG Code
content index is included on pages 77 to 85 of the ESG Report.
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Reporting Principles

FRERERTT BN A A RN o

REBASE T A AL R EBRERIEE

BE R R A
Materiality Material ESG issues were identified and prioritized with the Group’s stakeholders for
EEM disclosure.

BRBEASEFOENERHES  BHIEENRE  HLERELFEERBESE -
Quantitative The Group accounted for and disclosed KPIs in quantitative terms for proper evaluation
=21t of effectiveness of ESG policies and actions.

IERERHHRS - & REARER

Consistency

disclosure.

TAREMNLEIARERAEMIERE -

The Group adopted consistent measurement methodology to achieve meaningful
— B comparison of ESG performances over time whenever practicable with updates

AEERA-HWEENE  EATHERTRERER - RS @ RERBERE

Balance

R R
REAFHE TEHE -

The ESG Report aimed to disclose data in an objective way in order to provide the
T Group’s stakeholders with a balanced overview of the overall ESG performances.

SEEFBRERE  WERAKEROEREEEERE o

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is an integral part of the Group’s sustainable
development and business operations. The Group values and
cherishes the valuable opinions of our key stakeholders. To better
understand the expectations and suggestions of various stakeholders,
we maintain close communication through diverse channels with key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers,
business partners, government authorities and regulatory bodies. By
continuously receiving their feedback on the Group, we are able to
constantly review and optimize our operational performance.
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Key Stakeholders
FERFHE

Communication Channels
BERE

Employees
E&

New hire orientation

8 TEREE

Regular performance reviews

EEIRBE R

Remuneration and benefits

#H AR A

Meetings and discussions

EEYEE

Training programmes, seminars/webinars and briefings
EIIEE - e BT e RERe
Internal emails and publications

AR E E Ko R )

Employee activities

BEEH

Customers

=9

Company website
NSIE A

Property sales activities
MEHEED
Property management

MEER

Suppliers and business partners

HER R ERB

Quotation and tendering processes

WREERF BRI

Screening and assessments

2 AT

Site inspections, business meetings and work reviews

BERER  EBERERTEORE

Investors and shareholders
REERKRR

Annual and interim reports
FR&PHRE

General meetings

REXE

Announcements and circulars
Company website

NSIFER

Government authorities and
regulatory bodies
BUSTHEREEKE

Consultations

i

Laws, regulations and practices
SRR ERRER
Seminars/webinars

mae BT e

Community
e

Community investment
HERKEE

Donations and sponsorships
B8 & & B

Social contribution

HeaE

Media
iRee

Press releases
FER
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Materiality Assessment BEEMFTME
In the preparation for the ESG Report, the Group conducted a ERERE  HEREBWMER - K
materiality review to identify and prioritize a list of material ESG issues SEERBUAT=Q)ELSRRELET
for disclosures by following a three (3)-step process as below: EZUESE - UHEAIREXBEYFEE
B—RIMIERE HgkEAEEE
=
Step 1 Issue Identification 3% Bl :&RE
’;ﬁ — ;"/F e Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify common disclosure practices.

o EHRERATNRE  HERERREFIR - UBRIEROREED -

v
Analysis and Prioritization 23 It #& £ 8 X HE 5
Step 2 * Consolidated and analyzed the results of the peer benchmarking exercise to develop a
o — 1k prioritized list of ESG issues of varying materiality levels for confirmation.
= o FEWHMTRFELAEEANHANGER @ LFIE—RITREZMAFINERE e RER
EEAERBEI AR -
v
Results Validation #2452
Step 3
=1k e Revised and validated a finalized list of material ESG issues and KPlIs for disclosures.
H=2

o ERINHMR—RIRKEZNRIE HENEAFENERENEENIRIEARESER -
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Eminence, corporate social responsibility (‘CSR”) is an integral part
of our business operations. As part of our CSR philosophy, we are
committed to creating long-term positive value for our stakeholders and
the community where we operate while minimizing the environmental
footprint associated with our operations.

Over the past years, we have continuously strived to maintain
sound governance practices, cultivate a sustainable and resilient
workforce, and engage actively in different community programmes.
A comprehensive framework is a foundation for effective ESG
management, ensuring compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations within an organization.

The Board oversees our ESG performance and regularly reviews the
Group’s CSR policy which sets out its long-term sustainability goals.
The Board is responsible for identifying, evaluating, prioritizing and
managing material ESG issues related to the Group’s operations and
risks, and the overall ESG strategy and reporting. The effectiveness
of ESG-related measures and the progress made against targets
are reviewed by the Board in its meeting(s). Meanwhile, the audit
committee of Eminence at the board-level is responsible for reviewing
the risk management and internal control framework.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

3.1 Introduction

Throughout our operations, Eminence has consistently
demonstrated our commitment to responsible environmental
management. Our internal policy identifies and outlines our
approach to environmental conservation with a focus on
environmental stewardship, energy efficiency, emission reduction
and cultivating internal environmental awareness on natural
resources protection.

During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases relating
to all applicable legal and regulatory requirements' regarding air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

1 including but not limited to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
311 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
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3.2

3.3

Energy Consumption and Emissions

As energy consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a relatively significant proportion of our
carbon footprint, we remain attentive to different energy-
saving opportunities and adopt hardware upgrades to improve
our energy performance over time. In the future, we target to
continuously reduce emissions and energy consumption by
implementing several energy-saving measures and initiatives in
our daily operations. Aside from our ongoing energy-efficient
LED light fixture replacement programme, we adopted automatic
motion sensors and switch-off timers at our properties to avoid
unnecessary energy consumption, save electricity expenses
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. We also adopted air-
conditioning zoning to maintain a controlled indoor temperature
and turned off electronic appliances when not in use to ensure
both energy efficiency and comfort in the working environment.
We have been introducing low emissivity or double-glazed
windows to our new property projects which helps reduce heat
loss and optimize thermal insulation. We conducted video and/or
telephone conferences to maintain the business communications
smoothly so as to control the energy use and reduce greenhouse
gas emissions. The Group will continue to promote a “green
office” and adopt a set of environmental protection and energy-
saving measures to minimize its environmental impacts.

Waste and Resource Management

As an integral part of our environmental stewardship, Eminence
has a comprehensive approach to waste and resource
management. Our goal is to follow the “8R” (Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle) principle to minimize the environmental influence in
managing non-hazardous wastes in our operational practices,
and to create a paperless office where electronic communication
and document sharing are widely promoted. As such, we
use recycled and Forest Stewardship Council certified paper,
encourage employees to practice double-sided printing and
reuse paper whenever possible when a hardcopy is necessary.
We have likewise installed recycling collection points at all our
major properties, and we encourage employees to separate
recyclables like paper, glass, aluminum and plastic.

The Group had no issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose
considering our business nature and geographical locations.
We have put in place various water-saving measures to manage
our water use efficiently, as to achieve the goal of reducing
water consumption. We have installed sensor water taps, flow
restrictors, and dual flush toilets at our managed properties and
office buildings along with regular inspections of pipes. To further
reinforce our efforts, we conduct staff awareness programs
on responsible water use, promoting simple but impactful
habits such as turning off taps when not in use and minimizing
unnecessary flushing. Where feasible, we have also replaced live
plants with decorative alternatives to reduce irrigation needs.
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Cultivating Environmental Awareness

Despite our business does not have a significant environmental
impact, we remain committed to practice environmental
protection. We believe driving positive behavioural change is
conducive to a sustainable future. To build a lasting green culture
within the Group, we have implemented internal environmental
policies and programmes at our office and properties, which
serve as practical guidance for staff on energy conservation,
waste reduction and resource management. For instance,
internal signs and notices have been posted in common areas
and washrooms to encourage responsible consumption of
energy, water, paper and other resources. We give preference to
office electronics and light tubes with high energy efficiency.

In the near future, we will keep striving to work towards creating
an environmentally friendly culture at work.

Climate Change

Climate change, in particular brought by extreme weather
conditions due to global warming, remains a global challenge
and poses material climate-related risks to the Group’s business
operations. To address the climate-related impacts and risks
caused by typhoons, rainstorms and/or floods to our business
operations, we have been adopting different strategies to
enhance our governance and improve our resilience to climate
change. In terms of risk management, we have identified the
climate-related risks as follows:

Climate-related risks

Rz AR R

Impacts to our operations
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Hurricane and other extreme

weather events

R [ K L A 48 s K SR SR A
R EEREEX -

Change in long-term rainfall
pattern

EHR AR

In terms of precautionary measures to minimize the potential
damages related to the risks:

(@) Display typhoon signals in an obvious location of the
buildings.

(b)  Remind tenants to shut the windows and lock the doors
securely.

(c) Inspect the pumping system and remove any blockage of
drainage outlets and channels.

(d) Ensure routine inspection and/or maintenance on
buildings and facilities.

Possible damages to the physical properties and building structure, and disruption
of utilities supply which may lead to loss in business and revenue.
AR ERYERBFTEBERES  URAAFEHRESE - &7

EE RS

Possible damages to the building facilities and structure, and an increase to the
building operation and maintenance costs.
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The Group is determined to mitigate the impact of climate
change on the operations and will constantly review the policy to
improve the measures and disclosures.

4. OUR PEOPLE

4.1

4.2

Introduction

Our business success depends on the dedication of our
employees. In this regard, we make great efforts to create
an inclusive and supportive work environment that facilitates
professional development and protects the health, safety and
well-being of all employees.

Caring Company

In addition to providing equal employment opportunities, we
also ensure our employees receive fair treatment throughout
the employment process, including recruitment, promotion,
compensation, dismissal, training and development, regardless
of nationality, race, religion, gender, disability, age or any other
basis prohibited by law.

To safeguard and protect human rights, the employment of child
and forced labour is strictly prohibited within the Group and
throughout our supply chain. During the recruitment process, the
Group takes measures (such as background screening, age and
identity verification) to prevent the employment of child labour
and forced labour. Immediate action will be taken according
to the relevant laws and regulations and investigation will be
conducted if any child or forced labour is found.

Employees are the most important assets for every company.
In addition to the mandatory provident fund contributions to
the employees required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
our competitive remuneration packages include fringe benefits,
medical health and dental insurance and a range of leave
entitlements and overtime compensation to attract and retain
talents. Our human resources department is responsible for
conducting annual performance appraisals and determining the
promotion arrangements and salary increments. We encourage
employees to maintain a work life balance and regular staff
engagements and activities such as weekly breakfasts, festive
gifts and lucky draws (that is Christmas, Chinese New Year,
Tuen Ng Festival and Mid-Autumn Festival), fitness classes were
arranged for our staff, contributing immensely to the sense of
belonging and cohesion within the Group. To enable employees
to share festive joy with their families, early leave for celebration
is provided on Chinese New Year’'s Eve, Mid-Autumn Festival,
Christmas Eve, Winter Solstice and New Year’s Eve. High levels
of employee engagement promote retention of talent, foster their
loyalty and improve organizational performance.
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There were no non-compliance cases reported during the Year
regarding compensation, dismissal, recruitment, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
welfare and relevant legislation, including but not limited to the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group puts efforts into providing our employees with a
safe and healthy working environment. Our health and safety
guidelines and systems are designed to protect employees and
minimize potential occupational hazards in accordance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). As part of our emergency protocol,
standard procedures were established to deal with extreme
weather situations, such as typhoons and rainstorm warnings.
At our office premises, apart from conducting regular fire drills,
pest control and carpet cleaning, we ensure a clear indication
of emergency evacuation routes which are unobstructed at
all times. Similar control measures have been put in place at
our managed properties alongside regular inspections of the
firefighting system, including sprinklers and smoke detectors.
During the Year, we conducted cleaning of water tower air-
conditioning systems and split-typed air-conditioners, and the
Group has remained committed to putting health and safety of
our employees as the priority by ensuring workplace sanitizing
measures by installing air purifiers in offices which effectively
eliminate virus to safeguard our employees.

During the Year, there were no reported incidents of non-
compliance with applicable occupational health and safety laws
and regulations that significantly impacted the Group.

4.3
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4.4

4.5

Development and Training

Equipping staff with up-to-date industry trends, knowledge
and the right skill sets is essential for a business to succeed
in an ever-changing environment. We tailor functional training
programmes to meet the needs of our employees across
different departments and at various career stages. Furthermore,
we support our staff’s participation in different forms of
external training, including courses, seminar and workshops to
enhance their professional knowledge, practical skills as well as
confidence in their abilities and continuous career development.
For instance, we have provided training courses to develop
and refresh the employees’ knowledge and skills in using our
accounting system.

Business Ethics

The Group adheres to the highest ethical standards and is
accountable in all aspects of its operations and has zero-
tolerance for any form of bribery, corruption or malpractice. The
Employee’s Handbook outlines our expectations for responsible
business conduct for all our employees. Our staff is also required
to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Eminence has provided guidelines to regulate work ethics of the
Group’s employees and to prevent and detect activities related
to money-laundering and terrorist financing to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations and help detecting and
reporting suspicious activities, including the predicate offences
of corruption, extortion, fraud, financial crimes, money laundering
and terrorist financing, such as securities fraud and market
manipulation.

During the Year, we provided trainings on anti-corruption policy
for all directors and employees by (i) online seminars organized
by regulatory and professional bodies and (i) reading articles and
materials in respect of regulatory updates.

4.4

4.5
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Our whistleblowing channel allows notifications to the Group of
irregularities of a financial and accounting nature, in addition to
potential breaches of the code of conduct and unlawful activities
undertaken in the organization. Whistleblowing complaints
are investigated thoroughly and treated in strict confidence by
designated personnel, so whistleblowers can voice concerns
without fear of reprisal. Whistleblowers will be assured of
fair treatment including protection against unfair dismissal
and victimization and their identities will be kept confidential.
Eminence has adopted the anti-corruption policy and the
whistleblowing policy; and there were no confirmed cases of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
corruption during the Year.

5. OUR VALUE CHAIN

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

In line with our supply chain management approach, we
give preference to businesses who share our commitments
to sustainable practices and ethical standards. A variety of
factors is considered in the selection process, including but not
limited to supplier reputation and experience, as well as past
performance and record with that supplier. Suppliers who have
obtained reputable environmental-related certifications, use
environmentally friendly products and services are preferred.
Before engagement, the Group reviews company information,
including but not limited to examining their business licences,
business and product and other materials. To properly manage
risks, including ESG-related risks, arising from our supply chain,
we closely monitor supplier performance and conduct regular
supplier assessments and audits to ensure their compliance with
our requirements. Suppliers who fail to deliver the committed
quality are subject to a series of inspections and reviews. This
holistic approach also enables us to build effective long-term
relationships with our business partners and suppliers. During
the Year, all major suppliers were reviewed and evaluated.

Responsible Services

We have put in place stringent mechanisms and procedures
which provide our employees with the guiding principles in
relation to quality assurance, customer service and privacy. For
instance, to ensure the product quality, we have established
assurance procedures and conducted checks. Also, we have
formulated a complaint handling mechanism to handle and
address customer concerns in a consistent and timely manner.
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Moreover, we strive to ensure the confidentiality of personal data
and information collected from our customers. We have set out
clear privacy guidelines and procedures covering the use and
management of data and information in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Only authorized personnel are allowed to access
customer data on a need-to-know and need-to-use basis.
Documents containing personal information would be shredded
before discard.

Intellectual property is an essential asset to the Group. Eminence
protects its intellectual property by using copyrights, trademarks,
confidential information, and other applicable forms of legal
protection. We also work closely with law firms to regularly renew
and protect our copyrights and trademarks in accordance with
the requirements of the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group raises employees’ awareness
of intellectual property protection through work practice.

During the Year, there were no complaint and non-compliance
cases relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling, privacy,
copyrights and trademarks matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

OUR COMMUNITY

Eminence is committed to contributing positively to the community
where we locate and operate as well as all around the world. We
have developed long-term partnerships with charitable organizations
and offered financial and in-kind donations, with special focuses on
education, health and social welfare to fulfill citizen responsibilities.

During the Year, the Group contributed over HK$780 thousand in
community investment, supporting non-profit organizations from areas
of local education, health and social welfare, including Principal Chan
Free Tutorial World Limited who provides completely free learning
support to disadvantaged students facing financial difficulties; J
Life Foundation Limited who offers immediate food assistance and
education to underprivileged families living below the poverty line; and
the Global Chinese Breast Cancer Organizations Alliance Limited who
is dedicated to serving and supporting breast cancer patients.
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53X FBA 2 4

BRIER

A. Environmental

7 35

7. &BE

FY 2024/25

202425
HHEE

HERER

53X RS AE

FY 2023/24

202324
HREE

®E

Mg BREE R

FY 2022/23

202223
MEE

A RE

A1.1 | Air emissions
BERHBERL
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) Kg 4.57 5.83 5.93
REy T
Sulphur oxides (SO,) Kg 0.12 0.15 0.15
ety T
Particulate matter (PM) Kg 0.34 0.43 0.44
FERLY) F5=

A1.2 | Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBEHHEREE
Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO.e 20.97 186.95 187.52
HEHERE WE—EftikE 8
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of COze 59.98 56.89 93.82
SE2HME ME— S bIRE S
Scope 3 emission? Tonnes of CO.e 0.39 1.40 1.64
#HE P =E? WS rikE &
- In total Tonnes of CO.e 81.34 243.84 282.98
- AEEE WA g E
- By intensity Tonnes of COge/l-—FE 2.09 6.10 7.45
- IAZE 5T mE — S ik E

EH%%EE

A1.4 | Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
BEBRRYELHEREREE
Concrete and metal Tonne 6.21 not applicable 1,705.60
BRI RSB 7 T3 A
Waste paper Tonne 0.67 0.94 0.89
JE A 145
Recycled concrete and metal Tonne not applicable 7.82 907.95
A EIYCREE T RSB L7} i A
Disposed materials, metal and general Tonne 982.56 10,375.77 2,300.70

refuse in landfill 7
EENEEENEEME  2BR—R
wIR

- Total amount of waste generated Tonne 989.44 10,384.53 4,915.14
- EEXNEEDRE L7}
- By intensity Tonne/FTE 25.37 259.61 129.35
- REEsT W, ERMIES

We take into account the greenhouse gas emissions for processing fresh water by

government departments.

a AT E BT 28 P IR A K AR E

= °

RN

77

~zme



78 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23

HKEx KPI 202425 202324 202223
BB TERANMER MREE MREFE MBEFE

A2.1 | Energy consumption by type and intensity
RERIDWEREERREE

Direct energy consumption

BERERER
= In total 000 kWh 71.80 91.71 93.66
- LSS F1E T FLEF
Indirect energy consumption
MERREE
- In total ’000 kWh 1563.81 145.88 209.55
- LA#a S5 FEF FLE
Total energy consumption
RELRFEE
- In total 000 kWh 225.61 237.59 303.21
- LAEEF FEF R
- By intensity ’000 kWh/FTE 5.78 5.94 7.98
- AZE 5t FREFEE~
ZRZBIEES
A2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity
BIEKEREE
Water consumption
BKE
- In total m? 1,542 3,227 7,804
- LAEEF TR
- By intensity mé/FTE 39.54 80.68 205.37
- AZE 5t MARSERER
(=
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HKEx KPI Unit FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23

BN TRRENER Efi 2024/ 5B HEE 2023/ 4B EE 2022/ 23 HEE

B. Social

B. ##&

B1.1 Total workforce by gender and Male Female Male Female Male Female
employment type 2 i 2 g3 i T
RENRERREAINESEY
Full-time Number of people 18 21 20 20 18 20
£ AH
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0 0 0 0
L N
Total workforce by age group and Under 30-50 Above Under 30-50 Above Under 30-80 Above
geographical region 30 50 30 50 30 50
RERENRAEADNESEY 303 305FE 503 0 | HE | 50 30 05E 805%

W 507 ME WF 505% BE I 507 Mt
Hong Kong Number of people 1 19 17 0 20 17 0 17 18
B A&
The PRC Number of people 0 1 1 0 1 2 1 0 2
hE A

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female Male Female Male Female
BUASNEER kLR i nit Elid i i :¢id
- Byrate % 16.67 19.05 26.00 35.00 22.00 500
- DA ARl
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30 30-50 Above 50 | Under30 | 30-50 | Above50 | Under30 30-50 Above 50
RERARIEINEERALE 308 30FE 503 0% | EE | 50 303 RE 507

AT 50 ME WF 5037, ME I 507 I
- Byrate % 0.00 10.00 21.78 0.00 42.86 1579 0.00 500 8.00
- DAEEH BAlt
Employee turnover rate by geographical Hong Kong The PRC Hong Kong The PRC Hong Kong The PRC
region Bl Gl B i B h
EHEHINEERKILE
- Byrate % 1351 100.00 3243 0.00 13.00 0.00
- DhEEH g

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
RIfBEMRTHARRILE
= Bynumber Number of people 0 0 0
- DAEE N |
- Byrate % 0.00 0.00 0.00
- DAEE Bl

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
TEEXAIfEE
Lost days % 0 0 0
BAIERE Bl




80

=]

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

HKEX KPI Unit FY 2024/25 FY 2023/24 FY 2022/23
ERBERMEREREE Efy 2004/ 253 BEE 2023/ 243 BEE 2022/ 233 HEE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
RUFIRESENAANTIESEA L
Male % 21.78 35.00 44.44
S Ak
Female % 28.57 35.00 35.00
it Al
Junior staff % 12.00 26.67 23.53
IRET Al
Middle managers % 44.44 11.76 23.08
TRERE Bt
Senior managers % 80.00 100.00 100.00
BRERE Bk
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category
RERRESENES  SEEERARIINTIRE
Male Number of hours 3.67 6.25 475
Bt B
Female Number of hours 3.95 5.95 4.46
wit B
Junior staff Number of hours 0.72 3.00 0.7
MRET B
Middle managers Number of hours 7.67 1.63 1.54
hRERE 524
Senior managers Number of hours 1240 21.63 17.84
PRERE 54
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region
BB NEETHA
Hong Kong Number of suppliers 122 110 35
Bk {EBEHA
The PRC Number of suppliers 0 0 4
T {EEHA
Singapore Number of suppliers 4 8 1
IR R
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
BREBRERRRBHRFHE
Number of complaints 0 0 0
RFEA
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HANAREYCEENETHARANEE
Number of cases 0 0 0
ESiE
B8.2 Resources contributed
ERER
Donations (HK$'000) 780 1,154 1,322
RE(FERD
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BERBI(RE HERERRK

EFA)ARRS

Description

P

Page(s)/Remarks

Y B

Al
Emissions

BER

Al General disclosure 69-70
— MR
Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data 77
HERUE KR N AR R R B EUR
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse 77
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
HEEE) REREZ GE2)RERBHNE CABE
B EEREEABES B - BHEKXMTE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Due to the business
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | nature of the
per facility) Group, this KPI
FrEEEEEEYEE AN E) R (ER) %E (EAF | is considered not
EEBA - BERMETHE applicable.
ERAEER X
ME - LLRARE
WIEBERRR/TE
==
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 77
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)
FEAEEEEYES UM E) R(ER) B E (AT
ERE - SEREHH)
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 70
achieve them
HIRPTRT LB E B IR ROBIERE L B FATERER R P 5%
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 70

are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
HIERIE A E REERERYN A - R PTE] S8R EE
B IR R AEDE L B R AT ERER R 5
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KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
Em BARERIEE HE B
A2 A2 General disclosure 69-70
Use of Resources —RHEE
BIRER A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total 78
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
REAISNEER SEEEREEERTE (WG
EE B - BERBTE)
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 78
production volume, per facility)
BFEKERTEWMUEESEN - BHERMAE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps 70
taken to achieve them
HE At AT ET SZ BV AR IR (R AR s B IR R R IE BB L B IR FTERER
H25R
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 70
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them
it SRERGE A OIR B R B R RIRE - DA R PRTET SZEY A K3
B R REDE L B IR R 5
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products| Due to the business
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit| nature of the
produced Group, this KPI
SRR EE (U E) R (E M) 84 E | is considered not
BihE applicable.
ERAEBRED
M - LLRARAE
AR R/ TE
==
A3 A3 General disclosure 71
The Environment and —AR IR
Natural Resources A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 71
BERARER environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them
M EEEDEIRERRABERNEAZEREHIER
BT EBNITE
A4 A4 General disclosure 71
Climate Change —RHE
AR A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues which 71-72
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them
BB RAReHBETAEEYENEARKEBRE
E - REHTE
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HKEXx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
B BRERIEE | mut BE B
B. Social
B. #&
B1 B1 General disclosure 72-73
Employment —RRIBEE
1R B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time 79
or part-time), age group and geographical region
RN EFEER (R BEGRE) - FRRARI KR E D
B 1E B 428K
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 79
geographical region
RIER - FRAR KRS S K ESRAL X
B2 B2 General disclosure 73
Health and Safety —RRIRER
(e B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each 79
of the past three years including the reporting year
BE=ZF(BREERFE)FFEAITHMABKLLE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 79
EITHBEAIERE
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 73
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored
HEIR P ER AN BV B B I FR B 2 1 bt - A RABRIIT R B R
DabzA
B3 B3 General disclosure 74
Development and —RRIEEE
Training B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 80
FR NS employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management)
RHRRESFENMERERE  FREEE IASNZ
JEEA DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 80
gender and employee category
RUERIREBERIZ D - BEEETHZ I TR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

HKEXx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
=B A
=] BRERIEE | B
B4 B4 General disclosure 72
Labour Standards —RHEE
HTERA B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 72
avoid child and forced labour
R RIEEMERABRET RAFNET
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 72
discovered
FE AT 23R E RIS R R EBR B B 18 S FT B ER A 5 R
B5 B5 General disclosure 75
Supply Chain —RRIREE
Management B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region 80
i A
GRS EE R B KRB B
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 75
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored
L A EEENED - mERTERENNHER
HE - ARBERTRERAE
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 75
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored
H A BB R S EIR AT R R I LA & AR E S
ARMERNTT R ER A
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 75

preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored
HAMTEREHERRRESARRERRREOES - A
RBENTRER A
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KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
B BRERIEE | mut BE B
B6 B6 General disclosure 75-76
Product Responsibility — R E
EmAft B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to | Due to the business
recalls for safety and health reasons nature of the
EEUREAERBHPTRL 2 BEREAMARYAE | Group, this KPI
n is considered not
applicable.
ERAREB X
ME - LRARE
AR R A TE
o
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 75, 80
received and how they are dealt with
BRERANE D MREHIRFE B A REEH T A
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 76
intellectual property rights
Fh il B4 v I R PR N S EE M S A 1B D
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 75
procedures
o 2 0E B2 N E m B
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 76
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored
HIUH B & ERHRIE RILEBUR - U RBERIT RERS
5
B7 B7 General disclosure 74-75
Anti-corruption —MRIREE
RES B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 75, 80
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERBAHEITASERERETESENE SHAR
HEB B MR R
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 75
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored
FE Ly S b R ERIRIR T - A RABRBE I T BB 50
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors 74
and staff
it mESE R E TIREN R E)5E
B8 B8 General disclosure 76
Community Investment —REIEEE
R A B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 76
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)
EIEREEWHE  BEEH BIFRK BEBE X
v g5)
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 80

area
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3% ST R

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 209, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), as applicable to audits of
financial statements of public interest entities. We have also fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYF215E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the estimations and assumptions made by management of the
Group in determining the fair value.
HREREGREMBRRCERBREHEEZ - ML E5EHE
BENEEQNTFERSRERN BT RRE - RMBNRE
MEZEER—HBREAFE -

At 31 March 2025, the fair value of investment properties was
approximately HK$1,058 million with a fair value loss recognised
in profit or loss of approximately HK$29 million.
12025538310 » REWFE A F{EX1,058,000,000/ 7T
PIEERHER 2 N F{EE1E4929,000,000/8 7T

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuations performed by an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuer (the “Valuer”). Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
BERBREME A FEDBEE Y& EREXMGHERMT(E
ERDER ZHESR - MEMKAZHETEREEB AR
B2 FHBERGE MBRRMTI7TARKEE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 REN RS

BRETSRGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWET I REREEETSR

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

BPEREMEZHEZRBRTFRE

° Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, key inputs and data used in the valuations;
REEMk SEEERETHREEE  HEMRAE
ZEZMAREIE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

FHEGERMER - B REBRM

o Assessing the accuracy of information provided by
management of the Group to the Valuer by comparing,
on a sample basis, details of rentals to the respective
underlying existing lease agreements; and
FRAMESIALBHEBRAEOZHEF1E UG
fh EEEEEERGEMMARECERN 2 E®IE &

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuer and management of the Group by comparing
relevant market information of similar properties.
FRHLBRANYENEBETISER - G ERD
M EEEEEREANEERANGEN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale (“PUD”) and properties held for sale
(“PHS”)

FEIFIEHERBEYF ([FHEHERREYE) RISEHEY ¥
([FFEHEYE]) 2 Af # 5 FE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
PUD and PHS as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the estimations and assumptions made
by management of the Group in determining the net realisable
value.

HRAEREGREHBRACEREHEE - MLt E5EE
BB E Al #BUFEREL EAMET RRE - Bt M
HRHEHEERMERFELEDEAER FENTGHET
REABREEIE -

The Group’s PUD and PHS were stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The estimates of net realisable value
are determined based on best available information and with
reference to valuations made, less the estimated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales, if applicable.
The selling prices are estimated by reference to the market
prices of similar properties in prevailing market environment with
adjustments to reflect different locations or conditions for the
properties. The costs to completion of the PUD are estimated
by reference to the development budget, actual development
cost of similar completed properties with adjustments based on
current market data.
EEENFIELERRYERFIELEMERRANMA LR
FEFHBREESR - IR FENGTEENKENARE
B2 E e R SR R TR A REKEERE 2
BRARMHEE R (WER) - EEB2ERITHISRR TRUMEZ
MHERETHE  UHREZEDERETRLESAMR
MEL AR - HIELEERMEZ TR ERKALLEER
BE  BUEZTINEZERERMAETH - LRER
THSEIBELRE -

At 31 March 2025, the carrying amounts of PUD and PHS were
approximately HK$1,847 million and HK$1,713 million, with
impairment loss on PUD and PHS recognised in profit or loss
of approximately HK$129 million and HK$20 million during the
year ended 31 March 2025, respectively.
M2026F3A31H « FHELEBRMERFIELEMENRE
FE#)/41,847,000,0007% 7T} 1,713,000,000% 7T + & 22025
FIABBILFE  AEATHEINFELEBRYERFFE
& ) %R B 5 18 474 129,000,0007% 7T % 20,000,000 7T ©

ERETBRE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ET I REREETER

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable value of PUD
and PHS included:
BRRELERRYERBIELENENAIZR FENEF
BIE

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer and
management of the Group about the valuation
techniques, key inputs and data used in the valuations;

mEEMMN EXEEERETREERN  HERKE
ZEEHAREE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

A EERRELR B MEEIL

° Assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the management’s estimated
costs of completion by reviewing terms and conditions
of the signed construction contracts, inspecting the
contract sum and budget information, and assessing
the appropriateness of changes in the estimated costs
of completion by inspecting the supporting documents
including signed construction contracts and certificates;
and
BABTCEEZTNRESRANGRNEY  BEaRE
BANEEEEURTH T IAEEEREHNEE M - U
AIFRTHEREN T LAEERNSEEMEE T
BEREXHXN  BEEFOBRISRAMES &

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuer and management of the Group by comparing
relevant market information of similar properties.
BREEFRUEEMAETSERETHLE - G
EMMNASEEREECANEERHANSENL o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Leung Chui Shan (practising certificate number: P05731).

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

neEakAMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202593 A31 B It F &

2025 2024
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FBT FHT
Continuing operations BECEER
Revenue EEHE 5
Sales of property HEWZE 10,358 =
Rental income el A 32,354 28,751
Building management MEERE 816 12
Interest income from loan financing REEFRBME 2 F WA 1,329 1,930
44,857 30,693
Cost of properties and services rendered 1% K 12 RS A A (18,023) (3,520)
Gross profit EH 26,834 27,173
Other income EigA 7 9,717 8,101
Other losses Hit g (4,896) (9,241)
Other expenses HFX (21) (1,175)
Distribution and selling expenses FEGE A AR (2,619) -
Administrative expenses THFAX (48,680) (58,483)
Finance costs BE AR 9 (92,555) (55,074)
Share of result of a joint venture AME—HEERRER 327 142
Loss on changes in fair value of investment & & % > A FEZ S EIE
properties 17 (28,700) (9,563)
Loss on disposal of investment properties & & ¥% H & E518 (29,211) -
Loss on modification of terms of convertible &5] 7] #1f% Z 1 (& 71 &5 18
note 26 (81,369) -
Write-down on properties held for BIELEBRRYERBELS
development for sale and properties held 4 23 #5 % 58
for sale, net 21 (149,428) (102,937)
Net loss on changes in fair value of financial %2 FExt Az (A FE
assets at fair value through profit or loss st A1BZE ) 2 &REE 2 AF
(“FVTPL”) BEEFEEFE (20,427) (4,391)
Reversal of impairment loss on financial CRIEECREBERD -
assets, net: R
— Loans receivable - W E R 18 55 473
- Debt instruments at fair value through - BATEF A2 ERE
other comprehensive income (EAFEFAEMZE
(“‘FVTOCI”) a2 BB TE - 1,775
Release on disposal of debt instruments at 1 & %A FEFT AE AL 2 U
FVTOCI w2 B T AR AR - 2,119
Loss before taxation BrE AT E 1B (370,973) (205,319)
Taxation credit (charge) REEEFEX) 10 13,195 (13,485)
Loss for the year from continuing REFELCEEBNFTERE
operations 12 (857,778) (218,804)
Discontinued operation DR IE LTS
(Loss) profit for the year from discontinued 2k B B 4% IF QL E KM FE
operation (E518) 2 A 1 (7,521) 5,655
Loss for the year attributable to owners of 72~ &) J% 5 &5 & [Z 518
the Company (865,299) (213,149)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEskAMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

2025 2024
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt 3E FHT F&T
Other comprehensive income (expense)  HttZmE WA (BI)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently F&1& A]GEEFT DA E 1875 2
to profit or loss: HA -
Exchange differences arising on translation ¥ 8 /g 5N &8 iR B 5k 2 [&
of financial statements of foreign HER
operations 8,012 1,078
Change in fair value of debt instruments at &2 A F(EFF AL M2 EWES 2
FVTOCI BEIAZATES (20) (993)
Release on disposal of debt instruments at & #Z A F BT AE 2 E W
FVTOCI i 2 BT T AR AR R - 2,119
Reversal of impairment loss on debt FFABR IR AT EF A A
instruments at FVTOCI included in profit 2HNE 2 EETREREES
or loss B - (1,7795)
Other comprehensive income for the year — ZN4F & H 4th 2 U A 7,992 429
Total comprehensive expense for the year N2 &A% R fE (5 AN 4E & 2 [ 59
attributable to owners of the Company Y HEEE (357,307) (212,720)
Total comprehensive expense attributable 2N /A &A% 5 fE (5 AN 4F & 2 [ 59
to owners of the Company: SRR -
~ from continuing operations - RERFELEER (355,585) (207,012)
~ from discontinued operation - REB RIS ER (1,722) (5,708)
Total comprehensive expense for the year 2N 72 &A% 2R fE (5 AN 4E [ 2 [ 59
attributable to owners of the Company S HBEE (357,307) (212,720)
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
(Restated)
(g =7))
Loss per share SRR EE
From continuing and discontinued REFELEEBRELIE
operations K SRS
- Basic - &K 14 (0.81) (2.42)
- Diluted -8 (0.81) (2.42)
From continuing operations REFBCLEER
— Basic - &K 14 (0.79) (2.49)
- Diluted -#E (0.79) (2.49)
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At 31 March 2025 7202553 H31H

2025 2024
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FBT FHT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K&E 15 4,032 4,669
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE 16 3,372 5,634
Investment properties HEME 17 1,057,900 1,250,443
Investment in a joint venture KE—HEEAR 582 255
Loans receivable FEURE R 18 = 13,639
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABZZ S/
BE 28 8,625 6,264
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAREMB RIS
ZEBITAR 19 - 100
Debt instrument at amortised cost REBHEKAGTEZEHIA 20 = 22,576
Amount due from a related party FEUR — 2 Ba s 5 5OR 32(f) = 30,000
Deferred tax assets BEXERIBEE 29 319 328
1,074,830 1,333,908
Current assets mENE E
Properties held for sale BEHE M 21 1,712,654 1,065,891
Properties held for development for sale BEHEERYME 21 1,846,612 2,520,754
Trade and other receivables E 5 R H b U GKIE 22 49,235 33,567
Loans receivable FEWE X 18 29,578 17,384
Amount due from a joint venture R —MFE &R EIRIEB 7,850 1,850
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFAEZ2 SR
BE 23 41,589 104,553
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEF ARk
ZEBITE 19 80 =
Debt instrument at amortised cost REBHK A B ZEBIA 20 22,336 =
Time deposits over three months HBiR=1EA 8T TR 24 = 31,183
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 24 57,266 299,717
3,767,200 4,074,899
Current liabilities Pk JN=NE
Trade and other payables E 5 RHMENFKIE 25 74,551 93,750
Contract liabilities aHEE 25 5,197 =
Tax payable FEAIBEIR 731 19,511
Secured bank borrowings BIEFRITEE 27 1,575,285 1,161,664
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 2,447 2,335
1,658,211 1,277,260
Net current assets mEEEFE 2,108,989 2,797,639
Total assets less current liabilities BERBRADAE 3,183,819 4,131,547
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At 31 March 2025 7202553 H31H

2025 2024
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FH&T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFHAEE 29 3,756 7,936
Convertible note AR E I 26 47,226 167,954
Secured bank borrowings BEEARITEE 27 316,975 905,070
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 1,077 3,391
369,034 1,084,351
2,814,785 3,047,196
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital A& 2R 30 10,144 1,031
Reserves & 2,804,641 3,046,165
2,814,785 3,047,196

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 209 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2025 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Lai Law Kau

DIRECTOR

EE

BEE=gRN2025F6 H2THHLERREERE
92E209R 2 A M B WK - A THES

REEE

Lui Yuk Chu
EE
DIRECTOR
=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202593 A31 B It F &

Property
revaluation
Convertible Investment  reserve for - Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Capital  Contributed ~ Exchange  revaluation  assets held profts
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve for sale osses) Total
HELEZ
TEREE & nE  EEA
Bx ROEE BEERE RARE  SAR%  ENRE  ERRE  BREE (B8 %
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tt TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn TEr  TEr  TEr FTEr TEn
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
(&H) () (K zEii)
At1 April 2023 R2023%4A18 21,259 2,531,694 47,493 53,194 438,102 (4,031) 3,698 40,624 103,133 3,235,166
Exchange difierences arising on AERMEERI R
translation of financial statements of ~ ZEHEE
foreign operations - - - - - 1,078 - - - 1,078
Change in fair value of debt BATEHALZE
nstruments at FVTOCH W GHIEZAT
28 . . . . - - - -
Release on disposal of debt HERATET AL
nstruments at FVTOCH 2ENGBHIAR
i - - - - = = 2119 = = 2119
Reversal of impaiment losson debt A& ZRATEA
ingtruments at FVTOC! includedin -~ Bt 2 A& 2 B
proft or loss TAZREREER - - = = = = (1,775) = = (1,775)
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - = = - (13149 (213,149)
Total comprehensive income AEERARAED)
(expense) for the year &% - - - - - 1,078 (649) - (13,149 (212,720)
Reduction of share capital upon RAEAR 2 RAEH
capital reorganisation (note 30()) (RtzE300) (20,728) = = - 078 = = = = =
Issue of shares upon placing RERERG
(note 30 GRRI) 500 24250 = = = = = = - U470
Release of property revaluation HENERNIEERE
reserve upon disposal of the BBk
properties - - - - - - - (40,624) 40,624 -
AL 31 Merch 2024 RoOUEIFSIE 1081 256044 4143 B34 480 (96 3049 - 939 304719
Exchange differences arising on HEBMEERI R
ranslation of financial statements of ~ ZEHZE
foreign operations - - - - - 8,012 - - - 8,012
Change In fair value of debt BATEFAL2ER
instruments at FYTOC B/EBIEZATE
28 - - - - = = 20 = = 20)
Loss for the year EEFA - - - - - = = - (365,209 (365,209)
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

Property
revaluation
Convertible Investment  reserve for - Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Capital - Contrfouted ~ Exchange ~ revaluation  assets held profts
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve for sale osses) Total
HELEZ
TEREE & mE  ZeA
BE RGEE BEERE RARR  HARR  ENRE  ERER  BRERE B8 ]
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér  TEr  TEr  TEr TExr TEr  TEr TEr TEr TEn
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i)
(&) () (K zEii)
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENAR)
(expense) for he year % - - - - - 80n ) - P2 A0
Issuie of shares upon placing REREARN
(note 30ii) GRRN) 230 39527 = = = = = = - Hg
Rights issue of shares (note 30{i) ““Mﬁ(Mﬁsomv)) 6763 55456 = = > > = = - 29
Transfer upon modification of terms of ~ 53] A AR Z B AR
converthble note % - - (103,265 - - - - - 16691 (86574)
Deferred tax iabiities released upon B3] ATARE R
modffcation of terms of convertble R ETHEEE
note - - 17,040 - - - - - - 17,040
Recognition upon modificationof 3T AREE (438
terms of convertible note £ - - 161,265 - - - - - - 161265
Deferred tax iabiity on recognion B3] TARE B
of equity component upon TERSH LRI
modfication of terms of convertiole ~ FIE& &
note - - 60y - - - - - - 6609
Transfer upon partial redemption of B2 EEABHZHEE
convertle nofe 82 - - @i - - - - - T (9604
Deferred tax liabiities released upon ~ FAEE A RRERRE
partial redemption of convertile RETRESE
note - - 15,198 - - - - - - 15,198
Release on disposal of debt HERATEF AL
instrument at FVTOCI PANEZERIAR
i - - - - - - 84 - - 84
At 31 March 2025 R2025%3A31AR 10,144 2,650,927 19,011 53,194 458,830 5,059 318 - (385493) 2814785
Notes: PfHEE -

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the reduction of
share capital of the Company in March 2004 and September 2005 and can be applied
in the future for distribution to the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from the reduction
of share capital of the Company. The balance may be utilised by the directors in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including to eliminate
the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represented the gain on revaluation of
certain leasehold properties and land use rights of the Group when these leasehold
properties and land use rights were transferred to investment properties. These
investment properties were reclassified as held for sale as at 31 March 2023 and
disposed during the year ended 31 March 2024, accordingly the property revaluation
reserve was released to accumulated losses. Details are set out in note 11.

(il

(i)

REBZ BAFHRRARENR200453A K
200559 A EBIRAR A FTE £ 2 AR - AT RAS 2R
7 /}E‘?’J&%

REE 2 BABRBRRAD 7] HIR A A E
EZER - EFURBAARERZAAIRAE
BAZED T IACER RS - RFERREHA
RAEIZ REHEA -

AEBEZYESHREERREEAYER I E
AREBREREVER  ASBETHEYE
1&5124&3;&1%%% 202343 A 31
CREREVECENSBEARELED
% WEREZE2024F3ASIBIEEEANLE -
MM EE A EER RETEERER o BN
11 e

&7
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 2202543831 H It F &

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Operating activities RS
Loss before taxation bR Al ES IR (374,725) (162,339)
Adjustments for: 1R EE
Bank and other interest income RIT R E M F BUA (4,530) (6,701)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y% BERZEITE 647 700
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 2,413 2,470
Dividend income from investments "E R BIA (37) (1,373
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME « WE K&z WS
equipment - (10)
Interest expense FEFRX 92,555 55,074
Interest income from debt instruments at HEHERAEZER TR
amortised cost FEUA (1,869) (1,884)
Interest income from loan financing REERME 2 S WA (1,329) (1,930)
Loss (gain) on disposal of investment HEREYSE BB )
properties 29,211 (66,611)
Loss on changes in fair value of financial BATEFABZCEEE
assets at FVTPL Z AT EEHER 20,427 4,187
Loss on changes in fair value of investment REMEZ N EESEIR
properties 28,700 9,563
Loss on modification of terms of convertible BT AR ERIER 218
note 31,369 -
Loss on write-off of property, plant and MEEME - BEREREBZEE
equipment - 38
Release on disposal of debt instruments at HEZRATEFAREMEE
FVTOCI w2 B T AR R - 2,19
Reversal of impairment loss on debt BERAFEF A M EE K
instruments at FVTOCI w2 BB IEZ BERE - (1,775)
Reversal of impairment loss on loans BEEKER 2 RERE  F
receivable, net %E (55) (473)
Share of result of a joint venture AME—HEEERRER (327) (142)
Written-down on PUD and PHS, net BEHERBMERFELE
Mz M - FFE 149,428 102,937
Written-off of other payables H A FRIE 2 M EE (2,998) =
Operating cash flows before movements in RETEBEESBPI I LCER S
working capital mE (81,120) (66,150)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at FVTPL R AFEABEZ SBMEER D
(€ ili)) 39,838 (47,012)
Increase in PUD and PHS BIELERRYERFELEYE
1 (70,623) (313,646)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 [ H b & U 7118 (38 hn) i (15,291) 37,249
Decrease in loans receivable B SRR 1,500 21,700
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables 2 5 [z E i FE {5 3038 (i 2) 42 hn (16,201) 8,484
Increase in contract liabilities AHBELM 5,197 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHBT FAT
Cash used in operations AREEZRS (86,700) (359,375)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BERNEANEE (60) (452)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REIFBENGEH 209 =
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Enterprise EftREAREMBE (PR ER
Income Tax (“EIT”) paid EH(EEMBEED (15,797) (32,559)
Dividend received from financial assets at FVTPL ~ REZ A FEFABR 2 S/EE
Z B E 37 1,373
Interest received from loan financing REERBE ZFBWA 952 2,028
Net cash used in operating activities ARS8 RS F58 (101,359) (388,985)
Investing activities HEEE
Net proceeds from disposal of investment LERBYE 2 B RIBFE
properties 135,017 75,323
Decrease (increase) in time deposit over three =@ A E&EEFRUR A ()
months 31,183 (31,522)
Interest received B4 FILE 6,399 9,297
Advance to a related party TN —ZEEALT (50,000) (30,000)
(Advance to) repayment from a joint venture FEMKE—FHE & FRE (6,000) 71
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HBEYE  BERREE (10) (681)
Proceeds from/deposits received for disposal of ~ DB AFIEHE 2 BEZ IS
assets classified as held for sale FIB/BREZEE = 202,426
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of financial BERAFEFABRZEREEY
assets at FVTPL & BIHFTSRIE = 18,857
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREEZAE
equipment KIE - 10
Net cash from investing activities REREEFB 2R FHE 116,589 243,781
Financing activities RUE RS
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITEE (393,674) (111,256)
Interest paid SRR (132,203) (115,085)
Partial redemption of convertible note o EE AR R R IR (59,000) =
Repayment of lease liabilities EEEEaE (2,353) (2,410)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERLHER (1,879) (500)
Bank borrowings raised EERITEE 221,079 306,798
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon placing B & 21781 FT1S FIBF 58 41,877 24,750
Net proceeds from rights issue of shares A A7 (AR P15 R IEF 5 62,219 -
Net cash (used in) from financing activities (AR REMEEE 2 RS FRE (263,934) 102,297
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEYM AL FE (248,704) (42,907)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the FUzHeRACEEY
year 299,717 354,002
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNFEFE R BB 2 L& 6,253 (11,378)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRZRERBSEEBY - BRI
represented by bank balances and cash EH MRS 57,266 299,717

gle)
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company was a subsidiary of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”), an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares also listed on the
Stock Exchange. On 17 April 2024, the Company completed the
placing of 235,000,000 shares, resulting in a dilution of shareholding
held by Easyknit International, and the Company became an associate
of Easyknit International since then.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39.
The Group also operated in the PRC which was discontinued in prior
years (see note 11).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 2202543831 H It F &

—IRAH
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to

HKFRS Accounting Standards in the current year had no material

impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the

current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.

2.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
“Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022 Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity’s own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the
option separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS
32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

FERFTR] RASER] BB Y IBIRE X
R st ERI ()
RAFEREERZRIETERITE
XS ER ()

BT XAl S - AN FE R AR
CHESC R SR - s
HAKRBRAFERBEFENHMB
HKRRERR - R/ IZEEAVBR
RSB BEEMBREATZE

2.1 BEEERF1HIET A EE
B EBTEEIEFEIARE
JBERFBEELYE (20204 ) 2 MBS
7T ([2020F 65T A ) R BB S
ERF1EIEET A 35 = FF
TEE & |([2022F 15574 )
AEEERAFEHARNEAZSE

4T -

2020 £ RT AL A B E B
HeEd+—EAZEHFERE
MR HEB REIMES] - KA
BN BERRBIERS - Hp

. AARAEIBRREK
FERBEENREHRD
FHEZEN - ARgMmE
DETEXINEREEE
HHEIEE12(] A NFER
Bz -

. EFAENBENIARR
RHHFEBRHRE  BY
HRTE - HERE TN
ATE - W& BEZIRK
EXSHTFHEEERE
BRERBRAS 2B
TARBEEE EFZ
ERSRREERERR
fERE B G ERIFE 325
[@RMITA: 25 2#E
TAF  BHFERATE
FTEBAREIBRRBN
EEI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202593 A31 B It F &

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
“Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022 Amendments”)
(Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that
only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is
assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments
also specify that covenants with which an entity must comply
after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect
the classification of a liability as current or non-current at the
reporting date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with covenants
within twelve months after the reporting period, an entity
discloses information that enables users of financial statements
to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable within
twelve months after the reporting period. This would include
information about the covenants, the carrying amount of related
liabilities and facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that
the entity may have difficulties complying with the covenants.

FERFET RAEET BB BRELE
RS FT2ERI (&)

A

RAFERFIERZEBITETBMHE
HEEREFHER (E)

2.1

BB S ERE 1S5 A E
ER BB FRERIFTEIARE
JBRIEELHE(20204F) 2 15EI1E
7T ([2020F 65T A ) R BB ST
BRI E1FENETT A ek 2
FEFEIE & ([2022F 55T A )
(#&)

B E B HREREEES+ =
BARERME @ BEETRH
BIHAEE  2022F (BT A4
PlIEBREERBNRSEHRK
ZHIBTHREFETVETEN
HEBHBREHEEEEELS T
—EAMEF - AR ERE
THERERES B BTG -
2022 BRI NIRRT BR - BN
HEBHEASETHRZHBIR
REE)TEHEBERNRER
MR RE S IERE D LE - A
HEBTEESEABNRRES
RAEREREHET _FEANRN
BTEE  AIEEEENER A
FEHMBREERAE THRAERS
HE+T-—BEARNEAEEERRE
MER - HiSBRIEEMEHE - B
HAENEmEARBEREET
BEENETEENFTERER
(fwB)HER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
“Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current” and
related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants” (the “2022 Amendments”)
(Continued)

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification of liability
as current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Borrowings which are subject to meeting certain conditions/
covenants within 12 months from reporting date

The Group’s right to defer settlement for borrowings of
HK$905,070,000 and HK$316,975,000 as at 1 April 2024 and
31 March 2025, respectively are subject to compliance with
certain financial ratios only after the reporting period. Upon the
application of the 2022 Amendments, such borrowings are still
classified as non-current as the covenants which the Group is
required to comply with only after the reporting period do not
affect whether that right exists at the end of the reporting date.

The application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments has no
other material impact on the classification of the Group’s other
liabilities. The change in accounting policy does not have impact
to the Group’s profit or loss or earnings per share for the current
and prior years presented.

FERFE RGBT B R BRELE

AE 2RI (&)

RAFERBERZEBITEBMHE
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RIS EH R ()
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards that have been issued but are not yet
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effective:
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 11°
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification
and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature-
and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new HKFRS Accounting Standard mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all the
amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting Standards in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”

HKFRS 18, which sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation
of Financial Statements”. This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new
requirements to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures in the notes to the financial statements
and improve aggregation and disaggregation of information to be
disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments Disclosures”. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 “Statement of
Cash Flows” and HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share” are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard is
expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group is in the
process of assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

FERFE RGBT B R BRELE

AlEEt2ERI (&)

B AR AR I8 R A Y HTR] B B B R
HERE AR R EEFT A ()
BB R IR A 2E R 1855 B B 7 51
A

BB BREEAF18H - BIBEWK
FIRAM TR E T F ISR T RAE
BOHEMNESR  BRATEGF LR
SR BEMROTIE] - KFFTEE
MHmEEASH EACETEETLS
AERMFEIURPRERAEZRE - 5
ARBH KRB 2N EEENREE /D
FHZHRE C B IR M R E R
BREZXRBAERERE RIER
MBHRERPBTHREZAHRIBE
oo dbsh - B EFEAFE 1R 2
BECBERB G ERFERI S
BE - SEHEFTOEERERIEER
M mELANET RSB TARE] -
BEEFENETRIReRERIRE
R ERIFEI3RE[ FIRAN | THREH
AORIER] ©

BBV RE LR E1857IA R HAb
ERIWER] - BR2027F1 A1RRZ
BRAMNEEBMER - AFRAK
FA o FET R0 FE A TERTHS RS B R SR B
BIRERFPBERAOFRANHEE - NEE
FHEFEEAMIEREERNE185Y
REBREVEHREANAEBEE -

105



106 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 2202543831 H It F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mAEGSUBRREEREAE:
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BERER
INFORMATION
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements 3.1 REGEHERREE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values
or revalued amounts, at the end of the reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

SEMBRREBREFTE G
NREREMNEEN B RS LS
FHERIRE - RS A M H
RME - MRZIELRAEEH
SRETBERAPRE  AIZE
BHRREZER - W A
PR BB RAES TR
AT Em R AN REB D A&
REMBERRKE -

Mz @t BERE - RIRE
MERETERIANGEHR
NAFEIEGESEAEIN &
B BB MK TRIE £ KA LR
8o

JEE Sk R AR — AR A ER B K BR 7%
ZAFHERERKE -

R EERAEAMS2EER
ETHERFR ST HE & EPTURE
HEBREEAXNZER B
ZEREE A ERBERER
Hip b EEME - EfEE A
EEFABENORFER - AEE
ZEEEHRBEZEHENTE
AmE2EEEETEERER
EREFEEEZENH - ZFK
BMBHRRAGER,LHEEMN
FEHNAFEDIREZEEETE -
BB 15 S ERIFE 257 i
RERIMNI(BBHBREE
AE2RDBREANZARD BE
WXN2ZR5 - REFEHBIR
SHFIRIEEIFTEREE
X5 REQFEFERELREU
ZRZFTEELIEATE - fim
FEEENER[FEIZA
BHFERE B ERIEI6H
[BERE]ZEREE -

FEeRMBEZATEAEDES
ME2EEEREAYNRAE
ERZEEREBHELERE
BEBRABEERZEEZR—T
B2 EENESRERGEZ 8
A o



AR AT 2024/2025 G

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Group.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in note 5.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. When
a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mAEGSUBRREEREAE:
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BUERER (1E)
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EASHBERERE)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
Accounting Standards requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees after
deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable (loss)/profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries or
interest in a joint venture except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interest are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. fmEds

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BUERER (1E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxation entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model and PUD that are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of its assets with finite useful live to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of asset is estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Impairment (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that standard.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Impairment (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under the standard.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand

deposits; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents

as defined above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Properties held for development for sale

PUD which are intended to be sold upon completion of
development are classified as current assets. Except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets,
PUD are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties
less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

PUD are transferred to PHS upon completion.

Properties held for sale

PHS are completed properties and are classified under current
assets. They are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 “Revenue From Contracts with Customers”.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flow and selling the financial assets; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mAGESUBHRREEREAE:
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY BUERER (1E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (Continued) 3.2 EARSHBERER(E)

Financial instruments (Continued) T T A (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets CRIBEZDERERFTEE

(Continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI iy PDEAZRAFETAEM

2EKENEFITA

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt SRR AT EF AHAM
instruments classified as FVTOCI as a result of interest 2EHBEMHEBSTAREE
income calculated using the effective interest method, and AERFREFE AR
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit WABHEmMAERLRS
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(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL iy EBEAFEFABZHNSH
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Film right investment is the Group’s investment in a film
production project which entitles the Group to share
certain percentage of income to be generated from the
related film based on the Group’s investment portion as
specified in respective film right investment agreement
but the Group has no control nor joint control over the
investment. Film right investment is classified as financial
asset at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model (including trade and other receivables,
amount due from a joint venture, amount due from a related
party, loans receivable, debt instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instrument at amortised cost, time deposits over three months
and cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

3.

3.2

EXERHBEER )
2FT A ()

EHEE (B)
ERMEEZ DB REKFTEE)

iy BEAFEFABZHNSH
BE(H)
BYIREREIEASE
HEZEEBEAMNKE -
REERGEREBEENER
B IRIER A Wk 5T
WIRELLG - DIEBEEE
ERELEBANETES
b EAREEEZIEEL
S ] 42 o) 428 o 2k R
o BENRERESER
BATFEFABENSRE
BE -

SREERE
AEBREBEMEERBR (AR
EEEREDEAREARBEEY
BIMEEAFSFI BT A JE
TREMGENEREE(BREE
5 REAMEYKRE - BR—MEE
BRRFA - BB R
B BWER - BAFEFAE
theEkRz BB TA - REH
RAFEZEBIA  BE=1F
ANEREREBRESRREEE
W ETRENE - HHREEE
BoERSmEAHEN - U
BR{Z & @B B 1146 HERR A SR A 22
) o

E2HEREREERESRERT
BOEMFHANEMA A EED
EMmMEENEMEEES - 18
1218 AR EMEE EE (21E
ARHEEEBRDERAR RS
B #1218 A A AT ae B A H)E LY
=M B2 MAREREER
He &5 - sHEDRBEAEE B
EEEBREREDL - UHRES
ABREREZE - BEEEHRIK
G HEE RTAOR BRI
IRRFF L TR -



AR AT 2024/2025 G

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 220254331 H It F[&

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables

and lease receivables.

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
borrower or debtor;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the borrower or debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower or debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (i) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
the credit risk of the debt instrument mainly with reference
to external credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of loans receivable and debt instrument at amortised
cost where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments in
debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments. Such amount represents the changes in the
investment revaluation reserve in relation to accumulated
loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, the liability
component of convertible note and secured bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible note containing liability and equity components

The component parts of the convertible note issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that does
not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.2

Material accounting policy information (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible note containing liability and equity components
(Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the lives of the convertible note using the effective interest
method.

When the Group modifies the terms of convertible note, the
equity portion of the original convertible note is transferred to
accumulated profits (losses) in equity. When such modification
results in the discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms including any fees paid net of any fees received
is at least 10% different from the discounted present values
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability, it
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and a recognition of a new financial liability or equity
instrument or compound instrument with the difference, being
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the
fair value of the financial liability, equity instrument, compound
instrument issued and/or hybrid instrument, recognised in profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment properties
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
located in Hong Kong and Singapore are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the deferred taxation on investment properties located
in Hong Kong and Singapore, the directors of the Company have
determined that presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered through
sale is not rebutted.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers to perform valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting period,
the management works closely with the independent firm of qualified
professional property valuer to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value measurements.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the
Company. Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
is disclosed in note 17.

Determination of net realisable value of PUD and PHS

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
PUD and PHS, which are situated in Hong Kong and amounted to
HK$1,846,612,000 (2024: HK$2,520,754,000) and HK$1,712,654,000
(2024: HK$1,065,891,000), respectively, as at 31 March 2025, with
reference to current market environment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may
exceed its net realisable value. The estimates of net realisable value
of PUD/PHS are determined based on estimated selling prices less
estimated costs to completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale of these properties, if applicable. The selling prices
are estimated by reference to the market prices of similar properties
in prevailing market environment with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions for those properties. The costs to completion of
the PUD are estimated by reference to the development budget, actual
development cost of similar completed properties with adjustments
based on current market data. Actual realised amount may differ from
estimates, resulting in a decrease or an increase in the net realisable
value of the PUD/PHS and additional write-down or reversal of write-
down previously recognised may be required.
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REVENUE

Revenue from continuing operations represents the aggregate of the
amounts received or receivable in respect of rental income and building
management from property investment, interest income from loan
financing and property sale from property development during the year.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Revenue from sales of properties was recognised at a point in time
when the completed property was transferred to customers, being
at the point that the customer obtained the control of the completed
property and the Group had present right to payment and collection
of the consideration was probable. The Group received deposits from
customers pursuant to the payment terms of the sale and purchase
agreement. The transaction price allocated to the remaining unsatisfied
performance obligations was HK$66,513,000 (2024: nil) as at 31
March 2025 and the expected to recognised as revenue within one
year and over one year are HK$41,936,000 and HK$24,577,000 (2024:
nil), respectively.

For building management services, the Group bills a fixed rate for
services provided on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in
the amount to which the Group has a right to issue the invoice and
that corresponds directly with the value to the customers of Group’s
performance completed. The Group acts as principal and is primarily
responsible for providing the building management services to the
property owners, who simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefit provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs,
the Group recognises the fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue over time and all related building management
costs as its cost of services. The Group elected to apply the practical
expedient by recognising revenue in the amount to which the Group
has right to invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the
scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from contracts with customers
from continuing operations for the year ended 31 March 2025
amounted to HK$11,174,000 (2024: HK$12,000).

EXE

FEREXBEERREAREAY
EREZHESWANMYEE R HE
SEEDMEBLREERXBEZFE
WARMEZERODEHELE - A
SEZERBEOMWT

MEHEREREERDEEETR
FRER  AEFMEBEEXYMER
22 ) 7 B 7N 5 B R S R B R
WHMEKRRNRE AEBEREBEES
BEAONRGERAT L WEBIES o B
2025 3A31H ' nEREFIHKRBEITE
NEBHIR 5B £/66,513,0008 7T
(20244 : &) - BTN —FA KRB
B —F R AWA S B A41,936,0007
JC }%24,577,000% 7T (202445 : &) ©

HREFEERBME - AEEZ AR
PRt RGN EE B R - WAL
EAEMAREYEREENETK
HEFPENEBEZSRERRE - A
SEEAZRATEERERMETRM
BFEERY - ZXREBRBREHE
RASEENRH MG  REtAE
ERERERERCKAEREXTERR
Wk EAAHBETEERASR
BRA - AEBEEZERBATHEES
EoNLRAREFRAARZESEBAR
i o MEAEMBIMELRNE165RAA
FOOREEREABRRRANZIRS
B IHEE -

HEWARKEERBE 2 FEWA
WHBRBEEABREERE155 2
BEA - MEE202543A31H L4
EREFBEEEB2EPLPEH R E
#11,174,00078 7T (20244 : 12,000/%
JT) °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the basis of
organisation, whereby the management has chosen to organise the
Group around differences in products and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments” are: (a) property investment, (b) property
development, (c) investment in securities and others and (d) loan
financing.

Operation in the PRC, including the property investment, investment in
securities and others and loan financing were classified as discontinued
operation in the prior year. The segment information reported does
not include any amounts for the discontinued operation, which are
described in more detail in note 11.

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from
continuing operations by reportable segments:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 2202543831 H It F &

7 EER

HRERDERDBRBAFEMS @ 2
B ARBZ TERERRE(TER
BRREDERTBEHZER  Ti%E
PREMIMNERBREZER - 1
TR BEE  EREREIAILR
HEAEEERNMRE 2 ER -

REEFEN B REENESRIRED
Bl AEEZRERERDIER (@)
MERE - OWEER  FHFLE
fBIRE R (EKRE -

\

ERENER  BRVERE &5
REMKRERERBE  RENFE
WOBRERUERERL - BEND
BEETERERILEEEBNER
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SDEERGE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEEEBEREEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2025 B2 2025F3H31HILFE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing ~ Consolidated
FHER
MERE MEER HihRE EXmE &a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Ti#x TR TEx TR TR
(Note) (Note)
(Pff&E) (BE)
Segment revenue NEEEE
External SN 33,170 10,358 - 1,329 44,857
Segment loss HEEEE (56,834) (161,284) (20,530) (72) (238,720
Other losses HibE1E (4,89)
Other expenses Hinhx (21)
Finance costs A& B AR (92,555)
Other income HAp g A 9,717
Loss on madification of terms of 1ER] AR IR IR IR
convertible note fE518 (31,369)
Share of result of a joint venture AME—EEERR
E3 327
Unallocated corporate expenses EHI AR (13,456)
Loss before taxation from continuing 3 5 33 48 4% & 3£ 15[k
operations FAIEE (370,973)
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For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202593 A31 B It F &

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PHEEBEREEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2024 B Z2024F3H31HIEFE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Consolidated
EHR
MERE MEER Hiik & EXEE ga
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT FHT
(Note) (Note)
() ()
Segment revenue HEERE
External AR 28,763 - - 1,930 30,693
Segment (loss) profit SR (BE)ER (23,254) (104,880) (4,600) 190 (132,544)
Other losses HigE (9,241)
Other expenses Hitfx (1,175)
Finance costs BAKA (65,074)
Other income HiA 8,101
Share of result of a joint venture AE—HEEAREE 142
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARIRY (15,528)
Loss before taxation from continuing 3% B B 4E & £ 5 Bt Al
operations B (205,319)

Note: Rental income generated from PHS was included in the property investment

segment.

Segment (loss) profit represents the result from continuing operations
of each segment without allocation of other losses, other expenses,
finance costs, other income, loss on modification of terms of convertible
note, shares of result of a joint venture and unallocated corporate
expenses. There are asymmetrical allocations to operating segments
because the Group allocates all fair value changes of financial assets
at FVTPL to segment of investment in securities and others without
allocating relevant financial instruments to those segment assets. This
is the measure to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

M- ARELENEELZESRADERE
EYEREDEN -

DEEE)EN TS D BEREFHEL
BEBZEE  ERRENLEM
B B BMEKRAE - Eit
WA - BRI AT AR R IR IGRER - D
E—HAERRARGEREDEARHN
X REDBREETHEAR - T
ARAEELREMBREATFEFAR
BZERMEEZATEEIZESFR
HiRESR  AARDRHEBEETRT
BEEZRSEHREE - Nt BRASE
B ITBEERKE (FRERNE
RERBAFTHEZ2ZE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by BEERPBEINMAEB2EERAR
reportable segments: U
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FHET
Segment assets PEEE
Continuing operations FRBAC S TS
Property investment MERE 1,068,264 1,261,392
Property development YIEERE 3,583,865 3,599,366
Investment in securities and others BHERHEMIEE 73,590 119,797
Loan financing BEREE 38,344 70,222
Total segment assets DIAERTE 4,764,063 5,050,777
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL EHRRATEFAER &R/
BE 8,683 20,961
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,372 5,634
Time deposits over three months BB =1E A #E BE R = 31,183
Cash and cash equivalents RENRESEED 57,266 299,717
Unallocated corporate assets EmOMEEE 8,646 535
Consolidated assets RABE 4,842,030 5,408,807
Segment liabilities PEERE
Continuing operations FRBAC S TS
Property investment MERE 11,681 21,871
Property development bE3 64,605 72,313
Investment in securities and others BERHEMEE 72 98
Loan financing ERRE 211 306
Total segment liabilities PERERER 76,569 94,588
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 1,892,260 2,066,734
Convertible note AR TR 47,226 167,954
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,524 5,726
Unallocated corporate liabilities mofihEaE 7,666 26,609
Consolidated liabilities meaff 2,027,245 2,361,611

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than assets relating to discontinued operation, unallocated
financial assets at FVTPL, right-of-use assets, time deposits over
three months, cash and cash equivalents and other assets.

. all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than secured bank borrowings, liability portion of
convertible note, lease liabilities and other liabilities.

HROBRREZERRDERZERSD
EmE :

REKIHEEEHZAE K5
REAFEHABEZEBRA
E EREAE  BA=EAN
EHER  RERALEENE
R EES - HEBAERHRE
BERZHHE -

BAEMRITEE - TRRER
BfEMs  HEABEREMEE
S MARBE A EERERE
WO
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE
Other segment information HithpFER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment EREREBRBELEERTEIERB
assets from continuing operations: HRNPEEZ R
For the year ended 31 March 2025 B2 2025F3H31HIEFE
Investment
Property Property in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Unallocated Total
FHR
NERE NERR Hfhir g EX@E BN Lk

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TER TAR TiEn

Capital additions BERE - - = = 161 161
Depreciation of property, plant and nE  BERREZTE
equipment - 283 - - 364 647
Loss on changes in fair value of REME AT EEE
investment properties B 28,700 = = = = 28,700
Loss on disposal of investment properties  (LERENEE R 29,211 = = = = 29,211
Write-down on PUD and PHS, net HEHERRME RS
WEME M - FE = 149,428 = = = 149,428
Reversal of impairment loss on loans REORWERZRES
receivable, net B 38 - - - 55 = 55
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATEFABRZSR
financial assets at FVTPL EEZTERYEERT
il - - 20,427 - - 20,427
Loss on modification of terms of BITTRREEGER
convertible note BB - - - - 31,369 31,369

-]
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SDEERGE)

Other segment information (Continued) HiboEER (E)
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BLE2024F3H31HILFE
Investment
Property Property  in securities Loan
investment  development and others financing  Unallocated Total
NREE ESE EftRE EFRE Enl &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TRL THL TEL TEL TEL

Capital additions EARE - - - - 7,557 7,557
Depreciation of property, plant and nE  BERREZNE
equipment 6 416 - - 278 700
Loss on changes in fair value of RENE AT EEE
investment properties BB 9,563 - - - - 9,563
Write-down on PUD, net HEHERRNE L
s - #E - 102,937 - - - 102,937
Reversal of impairment loss on loans REORKERZRES
receivable, net B3 - - - 473 = 473
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATESABR SR
financial assets at FVTPL BEZATEZDER
FE - - 4,391 - - 4,391
Reversal of impairment loss on debt BREATES AL E
instruments at FVTOC! AkmzBBEIAZR
EEE 8 - - 1,775 - - 1,775

i E
AEEREBFELEEB 2 EEMR
EE (PTAEMD) KA hN3g -

Geographical information
The Group’s continuing operations are located in Hong Kong (place of
domicile) and Singapore.

AEEBREBIINRBEFZEXBRAT
FRTEth 5 48 R IR & B 2 18 b 15 &
DRZIERBEE(TREBELERIBAE
kemTR)ERAT :

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on location of
its customers for segments and information about its non-current
assets (excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments) by
geographical locations of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REIREF ZEEE FRBEE
2025 2024 2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FHT FBT FAT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FriE) 44,061 29,365 1,065,886 1,187,158
Singapore s 796 1,328 = 73,843
44,857 30,693 1,065,886 1,261,001
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE

Information about major customers FEREF2EHR

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing over REREFE  REBELCEEBRFP
10% of the total revenue of the Group from continuing operations is as HEERBEAEERKAEIRI0%LN

-]

follows: ™
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FHT
Customer A’ BEPEA 10,358 =
L Revenue from property development. g REMEBREHEER -
7. OTHER INCOME Hug A
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHT
Continuing operations BECEER
Bank and other interest income HRITREAMF S UA 5,901 6,067
Dividend income from investments REZREZREWA 37 1,373
Services charge i =g 276 414
Written-off of other payables At B AT R 2 R 2,998 =
Others At 505 247
9,717 8,101
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEKkEEZME
(@) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (@ EHEEEHzER
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company were as RABESMEEHIIAOT -
follows:
Executive directors (Note i) Independent non-executive directors (Note i)
BTES(W) BUFHTES (M)
Kwong
Jimmy Wu Koon Yin
lailawKau ~ CheungTim  LuiYuk Chu KanKaHon  LauSinMing Welly Total
BE% BRA E1% EL 829 REE &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn FiEn Tin FiEn FiEn Tin TiEn
Year ended 31 March 2025 BZ2025F38318
Fees EZNg - - - 15 155 155 465
Other emoluments Bt
- Salaries and other benefits - B RAMER 480 600 6,678 = = = 7,958
- Contributions to retiement - RINERIE M5
benefits schemes 18 - - - - - 18
Total directors’ emoluments E5HenE 498 600 6,878 155 155 155 8 441
Year ended 31 March 2024 HE202453A318
Fees L0k - - - 155 195 195 465
Other emoluments ol
~ Salaries and other benefits - B RAMER 480 600 5,580 = = = 6,660
- Contributions to reiement - RN Bl 5
benefits schemes 18 - - - - - 18
Total directors’ emoluments EESGE ] 498 600 5,580 155 155 155 7143
Notes: PR3 -
[0) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their 0] LB RZATESHEARES

services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.

(if) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services as directors of the Company.

(il

BRARARAEEEEEH L
RS ©

ERBERZ B FATEFHE
RESERARRESZRE
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8.

(Continued)

(b)

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included one (2024:
one) director whose emoluments was included above for both
years. The emoluments of the remaining four (2024: four) highest
paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows:

ESRESZMHE (B

(b)

FREEMEER
rEERLESESHEALTBE—
£(2024%F : —R)EE - BERN
MEFEZHMEERBEELX
A o HERPDH (20244 - [O4) -
WIESE  H2MEATEHIIM
TS @

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 5,638 6,701
Contributions to retirement benefits RIRERFT B

schemes 65 47

5,703 6,748

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZMEN T TIIEE :

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000% 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

1,000,001/ 7T & 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T

2025 2024
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

EEAH EEAZ
2 —
1 2
- 1
1 1
4 4

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other four (2024: four) highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both years,
no director waived or agree to waive any emoluments.

RREEE - AEBESH B
S TEREREAMMNE (20244 :
mEZ)&mMez AL - EAMN
A BAE AN S (BB 2 82 B ok 2k
EBBZHE o o - R EE
M R BESHESREREM
BN o
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FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMK
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERER L 123,193 104,931
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 263 218
Effective interest expense on convertible note AR Z 1 7 BEEF B FI X 20,525 17,941
143,981 123,090
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of W REEBEEZKANERLZ
qualifying assets &5 (51,426) (68,016)
92,555 55,074
TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE 10. FIEQRR)EX
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT F&T
Continuing operations BEREER
The tax (credit) charge comprises: HIE(E L) R B -
Current tax: WITRIIA -
Hong Kong &5 . 1
PRC withholding tax on dividend A B AR S TEHEE - 8,241
Other jurisdiction EMELE 8 8
8 8,250
Overprovision in prior years: BAFEBRERE
Hong Kong B = (2,003)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B TSR (6,413) =
Other jurisdiction EMarE - (88)
(6,413) (2,091)
Deferred tax RERTE (6,790) 7,326
(13,195) 13,485

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

RMEFTE 2B BMNER IR EMET
JERBIRF 2 16.5%51 & -
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10. TAXATION (CREDIT) CHARGE (Continued) 10. FIEQRR)FEX (&)
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing HirES| 2 HIEIRMEB A2
in the relevant jurisdiction. WITREAE -
Taxation (credit) charge for the year can be reconciled to the results RERHIAGL) R ERERHELE
from continuing operations per the consolidated statement of profit or (B iraEn R EMEEKERE
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: B 2HERMT ¢
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT F&T
Loss before taxation PR A g 1B (370,973) (205,319)

Tax credit at the applicable rate of 16.5% R AT %EA16.5%(20244F : 16.5%)

(2024: 16.5%) HEHIEER (61,211) (33,878)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax EARBMBAZFIIEZE

purposes (1,303) (10,821)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TEMF S 2 B Z

purposes 12,248 9,856
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTEBEB 2 HEYE 19,909 25,005
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERT BT ERE 2 I8

differences not recognised wa 24,656 16,985
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A R ERTIIE 18 2 Bi1E

previously not recognised B (763) 61)
Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture —REIAE R A IBEEZRIE

B (54) (23)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EBEREMANEZM B AR 2 TR

operating in other jurisdictions ERIYE (10) 122
Withholding tax paid on dividend A& B FEHL = 8,241
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE (6,413) (2,091)
Others Efh (254) 150

Taxation (credit) charge for the year AEEMBGER) A (13,195) 13,485

&
]
0

1
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DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11.

Pursuant to a land resumption agreement signed on 5 October 2022
by the Group and the municipal government, the lands and buildings
in Huzhou were resumed by the municipal government. The legal title
of the land was transferred to municipal government on 7 February
2024. Other than the property investment business, the management
also abandoned the investment in securities and others and loan
financing businesses in the PRC during the year ended 31 March
2023. Accordingly, the operation in the PRC was considered to be a
discontinued operation.

The (loss) profit for the year from the discontinued operation is set out
below.

ERIEEE R

IRIR AN 52 (B B SR I T 7R 20224F 10 A5 B
FEEM T ERES BN
T RBEEYEHRBRFKE - ZL
HMEE AT BEER2024F2A7A%
EBYMHN - RIREMEEBIN - &
BEENREE2023F3A31A LFER
IFEFENESREMBEARER
BMEER - Al ERENEBHR

KEERIEREXBFE(ER) BF
BRI -
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Gain on disposal of investment properties

HEREM RS

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Other income B A 498 2,518
Other expense, gains and losses HEary - WS &EE (56) 41,616
Administrative expenses TR 2 (4,194) (1,358)
Net gain on changes in fair value of financial & B &ZE 2 A FEZ BN FE
assets - 204
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (B 1R) & A (3,752) 42,980
Taxation charge B (3,769) (37,325)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EE)&F (7,521) 5,655
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
(Loss) profit for the year from discontinued ~ FERB DR IELERK(EB A
operation has been arrived at after MEHBRGEA) -
charging (crediting):
Staff costs, including retirement benefits BT - B R IR R A
costs 1,746 288
Bank and other interest income RITRE AR B A (498) (2,518)
Net exchange loss bE R 56 -
Auditors’ remuneration =A< = 54
Loss on write-off of property, plant and WM - WE REBHEER
equipment - 38

(66,611)
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11.

12.

13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11.

During the year, the operation in the PRC contributed a net
cash outflow from operating activities of HK$15,747,000 (2024:
HK$43,100,000) and a net cash outflow from investing activities of
HK$161,541,000 (2024: net cash inflow HK$174,100,000) to the

Group.

ERILEE R (E)

RAFE  PREKERMECEETHH
&R FE A15,747,0005 7T (2024
4 : 43,100,000/ 7T) @ HEEHR
&R FE A161,541,0007% 7T (2024
& R\ SR A174,100,0007%70) T A&
£H -

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FEBE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FHET
Continuing operations BECEER
Loss for the year has been arrived at after ~ FEEEE Mk GHA) -
charging (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a)) Zx5WE (MEE8() 8,441 7,143
Other staff costs, including retirement HEtBTER  sSERKERKA
benefits costs 21,863 32,787
Total staff costs (including directors’ BIXAEE(BEESHE)
emoluments) 30,304 39,930
Auditors’ remuneration =A<
— audit services - BZAR 1,650 1,700
- non-audit services - B ZART = 57
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERBEHITE
equipment 647 700
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECITE 2,413 2,470
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERZE 2 W
equipment - (10)
Net exchange loss e B 1R 55 4,896 10,078
DIVIDENDS 13. KA

No dividends were paid or proposed for the years ended 31 March
2025 and 2024, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of

the reporting period.

H E2025% N2024F3A31BILEE
RAEZMHEHERS - AREHKRD
BAEBITMRE -
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14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
For continuing operations HRISEQSEEK
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from continuing ARAFIRREEREFECLEEB 2
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on the EREAREEEBIIBBEATER
following data: FTHE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ~ ZK/A A IS R FE(L FE A5 18
the Company (365,299) (213,149)
Less: Loss (profit) for the year from B REBRIECEEBNEE
discontinued operation B8 (B F) 7,521 (5,655)
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share B2 B 135 48 & & 2 78 ~ TR RS
from continuing operations BmEZEE (357,778) (218,804)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBETETERNTE
Interest on convertible note AR IR 2 FIE (RSB E)
(net of income tax) - -
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss per share #t 2t B 135 B 48 & 2 75 2 GRS &
from continuing operations B s 2 EE (357,778) (218,804)

Number of shares

gk - ¢E]
2025 2024
000 000
F +
(Restated)
(eE51)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st & EAREE M 5 2 NAEFH T
for the purpose of basic loss per share BRI EB 450,371 88,014
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: HEBETTRROTE -
Convertible note ABRREE - -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares BL& R #EE B 5 2 MEFHE
for the purpose of diluted loss per share Pl nE =] 450,371 88,014
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14.

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

For continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

14.

BRERGE)

HNFEREXBERERIERE X
ARABBRREGEREFELERER
HREXEB ZBRERNREEERTY
RBATERFTE

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

T8 FHET

Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share  FtERERE BT S 2 EiE (365,299) (213,149)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: HEHEETLTBRNTE

Interest on convertible note (net ofincome AR ZE1E 2 F| 8 (FIRFT1EH)
tax) - _
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss per share Ft & EEEIE M 5 2 E51E (365,299) (213,149)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share.

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is HK$0.02 per
share (2024: earnings per share of HK$0.06 per share) and diluted loss
per share for the discontinued operation is HK$0.02 per share (2024:
earnings per share of HK$0.06 per share), based on the loss for the
year from the discontinued operation of HK$7,521,000 (2024: profit for
the year HK$5,655,000) and the denominators detailed above for both
basic and diluted earnings per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic and diluted loss per share for both years have been adjusted
for the consolidation of shares on 19 July 2023 and rights issue on 4
February 2025 as disclosed in note 30 () and (iv), respectively.

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share for the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s certain convertible note listed in note 26 as the exercise
would result in decrease in loss per share in both years.

RS B R SR ER R (6
18) BRI B8R -

ERIEEEEBNETRERNEBREE
B%0.02/8 7T (20244 : B AN G
0.067T) RELIEE A XBHTRE
SEEE ATRO0.0278 T (20244 ¢
AR B FESAR0.067TT) « IRIBEAR L
BEBNFEREAT,521,0008 7T
(20244 : FE A 75,655,000 T)
LAR EXFHASEREATEE R
FE DR o

AN B M RE30() R (V) Fr i B8+ 3%
FARTESRERAREEHEBENY
BARINFE T HE R EH2023F 7 A19H
KRS A OF 2202552 A4 A M AR 1B
SHEITHRE o

HZE2025%F K2024F3A31HILFE
B & s (B 18) B F e st B R R R
RBITEEE T EM 265 51 H 6 AT i
BREE  ASTEAERNMERES
BB IR
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMERRE
Furniture,
Owned fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
B £BR
BENE B RE Pkl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT FExT FBxT FBxT
COST A
At 1 April 2023 R2023F 48 1H 3,650 3,921 3,108 10,679
Exchange adjustments [& 5 3% - @) (41) (43)
Additions RE = 43 638 681
Write-off/disposal g, & = 32) (1,010) (1,042)
At 31 March 2024 R202443H31RH 3,650 3,930 2,695 10,275
Additions B = 10 = 10
At 31 March 2025 R2025F3H31H 3,650 3,940 2,695 10,285
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4H81H 421 3,665 1,865 5,951
Exchange adjustments & H AR - @) (39) (41)
Provided for the year NEERME 133 112 455 700
Eliminated on write-off/disposal ~ #fi$8, & BF bR = (32) 972) (1,004)
At 31 March 2024 R20244%3H31H 554 3,743 1,309 5,606
Provided for the year NEFERE 133 104 410 647
At 31 March 2025 202543 A31H 687 3,847 1,719 6,253
CARRYING VALUES ERMEE
At 31 March 2025 M2025%3H31H 2,963 93 976 4,032
At 31 March 2024 2024F3H31H 3,096 187 1,386 4,669

EREEYNE  BERREBEESEE
BEROUERERBUA T Z A ERAF

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis after taking into account the residual value over the

following useful lives: A EE -
Owned properties Over the lease term BEME R 5
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years B HEREE 3E10F

Motor vehicles 5 years E 5%
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EAEEE
Leased
properties
AW
HK$’000
FE T
As at 31 March 2025 7A20253H31H
Carrying amount BRmEE 3,372
As at 31 March 2024 20245 3831H
Carrying amount AREE 5,634
For the year ended 31 March 2025 BE2025F3A31HLEEE
Depreciation charge nEER 2,413
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BIZE2024F3A31HILLFE
Depreciation charge neEsEA 2,470
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Total cash outflow for leases MR &R A 2,616 2,628
Additions to right-of-use assets EAEEEEM 151 6,876

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the FREEERERNSRIZE R A
lease term. RINE -

MIEFESHE  AEEHEREARAE
BEITRE - ZFMALAERETHR
B2E3F (20244 : 3F) - BIRAIEH
MR IRIZRE - BOBERIBIEERE
FETTRE - ERHEE AR IS
TR BCHEARE - AEBERAERM
TEFE I HETE S B AR R BT o

For both years, the Group leases offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to 3 years (2024: 3 years)
without extension and termination option. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

&
]
0

1
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various residential, commercial and industrial
units under operating leases with rentals payable monthly, quarterly
or semi-annually. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1
to 3 years (2024: 1 to 3 years), with unilateral rights to extend the
lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

17.

REW=

AEERBELCEHELHASHEEE
BMEMTESEN MELSHEESAE
A -BEFEELEFFUR - BHAEE
AE1E3F (2024%F : 1234F) - WA
BEFEEMNGEHOCEHEEHEAMR
AFB B EALASN o a0 RAEFE ALT
EEHEERE  IAZHENERY
BETIHBERIGER o

HRAAEEANENEEEES BN
BRERIE  #AREIAEREANR
BmAZINERR - HOSRAE2S
BERE R/ SEBEAEBLD W
BEBBEYENEEE -

Completed
investment
properties
ERBRENE
HK$’000
FET

FAIR VALUE »E
At 1 April 2023 M2023F4/1H 1,707,555
Exchange adjustments b H AR (19,470)
Disposal B (428,079)
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ A FERD (9,563)
At 31 March 2024 R202443A31H 1,250,443
Exchange adjustments b H A 385
Disposal & (164,228)
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ AT ERD (28,700)
At 31 March 2025 $202543 8318 1,057,900
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWEGE)
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March REE 2 HEWHER2025F3A31H K&
2025 and 31 March 2024 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation 2024F3A31H Z AFAETHRIA T EA
carried out on the respective dates by the following independent firms EESEBECBIAEREENME
of qualified professional property valuers not connected with the Group: HERMITRZEBBMETHRBE I ELE
EE
Location of REMHEZ
Name of valuers investment properties LEMITER FrE it
Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited Hong Kong Aheesb AR EARAR B
(2024: Vigers Appraisal and Consulting (20244 : BIRETEE
Limited) FHLEERE AR AR
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore Edmund Tie & Company #7013
(SEA) Pte Ltd
The unrealised loss relating to investment properties held at the end of RBEBRRSENHEEMERAN
the reporting period of HK$28,700,000 (2024: HK$18,299,000) was R £ IR E51828,700,0007%8 7T (2024 4F -
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2025. 18,299,000/% 7T ) P &k £20254 3 A 31

B L FENMERRER o

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level 3 fair value AEEMEREVEERE=RRF
hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the BER AFRANTEEAREHE=

year. & o

'

i}
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group
REBREZRENE

Fair value at
31 March
ATER3ASA
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TARL

Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
hierarchy ~ and key inputs

LYESER HERERIEEA

17. REWEGE)

TERINTIABEERENEZ AFE
ZEMLER  EAZBERER
BA) - URIREBAZ ATBEEEE
DHRFEEFR(F1EHEIR) <A FE

5 -

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXRTBRAA

Sensitivities

gBE

Commercial units in Hong
Kong

REBBFEM

389,300 89,300

Level 3 Income approach
- term yield

S0
- s

= reversionary yield

- RERE

Term yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market
average selling price and the
market average rental from
comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 1.3% to 3.6% (2024:
3.1%)

T ZRALENEL
TETHEERME TR
PEERERRBEEN
BRLRE - B1.3%E3.6%
(20245 : 3.1%)

Reversionary yield, taking into
account of yield generated by
market average selling price
and the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
risk associated with the future
rental, which is 2.5% (2024:
3.1%)

EHYE  ZRALENEL
TETHEERME TR
2 hHERRBARESE
IR % - 2.5%(2024% -
3.1%)

The higher the term yield, the
lower the fair value

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEERACRENE

Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
31 March hierarchy and key inputs
NTER3ASIE DTEER HFEERTEHA
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR

17. BREWEGE)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFIRERA

Sensitivities
HEE

Commercial units in Hong
Kong (Continued)
RERBXEN(B)

&
]
0

1

= monthly term rental

-BRESES

- reversionary market unit rate

-ERTEELER

Monthly term rental for each unit
is derived from the average
of the rental as stated in the
existing rental agreements,
which is ranged from HK$29.7
to HK$254.1 (2024: HK$29.7
to HK$115.3) per square foot

BRSNS ATHES IRE
RERNMIIZ THESR
- BEFRNFH207%
TLE254.1BTT(2024% : 29.7
BTE1153%7)

Reversionary market unit rate
and price for each unit is
compared with direct market
comparables and taking into
account of character, location
and other individual factor,
which is from HK$29.7 to
HK$254.1 (2024: HK$26 to
HK$130) and HK$8,666 to
HK$88,477 per square foot,
respectively.

Rz BEMSEMER
REF - EHSEEALR
MWERELR  TZENF
B4 ENREAMERE
% BYARRNTELE
254182024 : 7B
26787213078 7T) k8,666
TE8BATTATT

The higher the monthly term
rental rate, the higher the
fair value

The higher the reversionary
market unit rate and price
the higher the fair value

EETEELERRERD
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17. REWEGE)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRECRENF ATHER3A31H NTESR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HRE
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL
Commercial units in Hong
Kong (Continued)
REEBXEN(B)
- 373,000  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
- based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions and taking into account of fair value
of similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as road
locations and conditions of ~ frontage, size of property,
the subject property etc., which is ranged from
HK$92,155 to HK$381,714
per square foot
£33 ERNEE BYRREE RAMHRE  BTHREERR ATHE
-ERAEYECTSAE  RUNENER UZRY AR
EQSRERENRBE  ERE UEAREMER
BNEZUERER REMERAER  WEX)
£ BTHRNT02,155%
TLE3B1,T14ET
Industrial units in Hong 639,300 571,000  Level3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account  The higher the term yield, the
Kong - term yield of yield generated by market lower the fair value
average selling price and the
market average rental from
comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 3.3% (2024: 3.5%)
REBIEERN E3 LN Tl ZRANENE, NGRS ATEAE
- B s THERRTSTHE
SEEZNRRRERED

BRZHE  £3.3%(2024
1 35%)
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEERACRENE

Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques
31 March hierarchy and key inputs
NTER3ASIE DTEER HFEERTEHA
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAR

17. BREWEGE)

Significant
unobservable inputs Sensitivities
EXTUBEGA HEE

Industrial units in Hong
Kong (Continued)
REBIXEMN(B)

&
]
0

1

= reversionary yield

- BHE W

= monthly term rental

-BRESES

Reversionary yield, takinginto ~ The higher the reversionary
account of yield generated by vield, the lower the fair
market average selling price value
and the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
risk associated with the future
rental, which is 3.5% to 3.6%

(2024: 3.5%)

BElE  ZRANENE: BBMERS ATEAE
mETHEERMTSTHE
&2 E R RRE S
B2HE  B35%E3.6%

(2024% : 3.5%)

Monthly term rental for each unit ~ The higher the monthly term
is derived from the average rental rate, the higher the
of the rental as stated in the fair value
existing rental agreements,
which is ranged from HK$11.4
to HK$17.4 (2024: HK$19.9
to HK$23.1) per square foot

BREENGATHEEIRE SATHEEAR ATE
RERNMIIZTOESE AR
- BEFRAFA114%

TEITABTT0245 : 19.9
BTE23.157)
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWEGE)
Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRECRENF ATHER3A31H NTESR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HRE
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL
Industrial units in Hong
Kong (Continued)
REBIEEN(B)

- reversionary market unit rate - Reversionary market unit rate for - The higher the reversionary
each unit is compared with market unit price, the
direct market comparables higher the fair value
and taking into account of
character, location and other
individual factor, which is
ranged from HK$4,423 to
HK$7,800 (2024: HK$7,012)
per square foot

-EETHENER ZB7ERTSENEE  EBETSENERIR D
HMSERANLENERE  TEAR
B WEEMERH U
ENREMERNRR  §T
FRNF4,403FTET 800
70 (2024 < 7,012870)

- 73500  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
~based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions and taking into account of fair value
of similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as
locations and conditions of ~ size of property etc., which
the subject property is ranged from HK$4,087 to

HK$5,296 per square foot
£33 ERNEE BYRREE RAMHRE  STHREERR ATHE
-ERABYEZTSAE  RUNENER UZRE AR
ERSRERBIRME B UEARHMESEER
BNEZUERER IREBR  WERNE -

FEARNT4087TELE
5,206% 7T
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group
AEERACRENE

Fair value at
31 March
RHERIA3N
2025
HK$'000
TER

=
2024
HK$'000
TAL

Fair value
hierarchy
NTEER

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
EETERIERA

17. BREWEGE)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXFIRERA

Sensitivities
HEE

Residential units in Hong
Kong

RERE

B

a

29,300

Level 3 Income approach

- term yield

LON:3
- ek

B3R

= reversionary yield

- BHE W

= monthly term rental

-5RESES

Term yield, taking into account
of yield generated by market
average selling price and the
market average rental from
comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
whichis 2.25%

THlE  ZRALENEL
misTHERRTSTHE
SEEZWERRGEEN
BERZAE - B2.25%

Reversionary yield, taking into

account of yield generated by

market average selling price

and the market average rental

from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the

risk associated with the future

rental, which is 2.5%
BEYE  ZRANENEL
mETHEERMSTHE
&2 RE R RRE S
RZBE  525%

The higher the term vield, the
lower the fair value

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair
value

EENERS  ATEDE

Monthly term rental for each unit ~ The higher the monthly term

is derived from the average
of the rental as stated in the
existing rental agreements,

which is ranged from HK$11.5

to HK$43.5 per square foot

SREELGATHELHBE
RERNMS 2 THHLE
- BEFRAF115%T
F4358TT

rental rate, the higher the
fair value
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. REWEGE)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRECRENF ATHER3A31H NTESR RELERIEGA ERRNGEEE DN HRE
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL
Residential units in Hong
Kong (Continued)
REBETEL(E)

- reversionary market unit rate - Reversionary market unit rate for - The higher the reversionary
each unit is compared with market unit price, the
direct market comparables higher the fair value
and taking into account of
character, location and other
individual factor, which is
ranged from HK$7,543 to
HK$17,375 per square foot

-EETHENER ZENEBTHENER - AETHELERDAS 2
HTSERANLENERE  TERR
HE - DEENERH
ENRAMENEE 8T
FRNFT 543ETE17,375
BT

- 30,800  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
~based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions and taking into account of fair value
of similar properties and character, location, age and
adjusted to reflect the other individual factors, which
locations and conditions of ~is ranged from HK$8,370 to
the subject property HK$18,681 per square foot

£33 ERNEE BYRREE RAMHRE  STHREERR ATHE
-ERABYEZTSAE  EUNENER UZRY AR
ERSRERBIARME  ERE UE BRIRE
BNEZUERER tENEZ  B¥ARNT

8,370 TLE18681ETT
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. BREWEGE)

Investment properties Fair value at Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
held by the Group 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivities
REBRECRENF ATHER3A31H DTESR RELERIEGA EXTABRHA HRE
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAR
Residential units in N/A 73,843  Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
Singapore ~based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions and taking into account of fair value
of similar properties and character, location and other
adjusted to reflect the individual factors such as road
locations and conditions of ~ frontage, size of property,
the subject property etc., which is ranged from
HK$25,591 to HK$27,218 per
square foot
RIS EEN TER E3 ERMEE BYHREE RAMHRE  STHREERR ATHE
-ERAENECTSAE  BUNBNEAR 2R AR
EXSRERENREA B BN REAMRENRER
ENEZUERER NREBE  WERNE -
BERRN 55918 E
21,2185
Land with attached N/A 39,000 Level3 Direct comparison method Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
structure in Hong Kong ~based on market market direct comparables square foot, the higher the
observable transactions and taking into account of fair value
of similar properties and character, location, age and
adjusted to reflect the other individual factors, which
locations and conditions of is ranged from HK$1,349 to
the subject property HK$1,600 per square foot
REENBRE L TER E3 ERNEE BYHREE RAMHRE  STHREERR ATHE
-ERAENEZTSANE  RUNBNER UZEY AR
EXSRERENREA ERE LB BEUARK
BNEzuBRER tENER  BYARNT
1,349 TLE1,600% T
1,057,900 1,250,443
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWEGE)
During the year, the valuation technique used for determining the fair RAFEE HEEEsTEE TERE
value of certain commercial, industrial and residential units amounting E BN 2 AF{E400,600,000/8 T TR
to HK$400,600,000 as at 31 March 2025 was changed from direct Az EERMR202563A31AHE
comparison method to income approach as the management BUBEEERBAE  THRERE
considers that there were limited market comparables for similar EBRE AFEEHATHZFEMR
properties in current year that were appropriate to assess the fair value TEZABEMFE T SALREE R
of these units. R e
In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and WEEREMEZ ATFEE  WEZ
best use of the properties is their current use. BEERERREEERTERE ZEA
A e
As at 31 March 2025, all of the Group’s investment properties (2024: M2025F3A31H + AEBEFEREY
except for the land with attached structure of HK$39,000,000) have 2 (20244 : Br39,000,0007% 7T 2 i B
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. BEL) BEAUREETAEEN
BEBRITRE ©
LOANS RECEIVABLE 18. EWER
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Fixed-rate loans receivable EREKER 30,600 32,100
Less: Impairment allowance W ORER (1,022) (1,077)
29,578 31,023
Analysed as: DITHR
Current assets MENEE 29,578 17,384
Non-current assets FERBEE - 13,639
29,578 31,023
Secured B 16,157 16,971
Unsecured fE A 1 13,421 14,052
29,578 31,023

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of
the nature of business of loan financing.

At 31 March 2025, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 0% to 8% (2024: 0% to 14%) per annum.

AARBEERAS  SREXBEEXRS
MEmME  R&EDTAIREEIE
B - MBRERER DT -

R2025%3A31H » AEEZEWERK
FERENT0%ZEE%(20245F : 0%ZE
14%) °
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18.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 18. FEWER (@)
Impairment assessment BB (L
Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential ERHERTINEER » NEBTG
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each BEEFAZEEEEZENEERTH
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed NEFAZEELRE - EBEETHRT
by the management regularly. The management closely monitors the EBEIAZEER SEEBEREEHE
credit quality of loans receivable. Except for those credit-impaired loans WEREEEZ - KREeEEERER
receivable, there are no loans receivable which are past due at the end FEWE AN » RIBE ARl 2
of the reporting period. FEWERK -
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34. RER B E R34 -
The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable is as WS ERE s SEBnT
follows:
Lifetime
ECL -
12mECL  credit-impaired Total
fERES  BEBHEE
FEFE BE-FEHE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL THET
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4A1H 1,550 51,930 53,480
Changes due to loans receivable recognised as at ~ 122023F4 A1 H A B BN E R
1 April 2023: “?‘EJJ :
- Repayment (Note ii SRR (D) (652) - (652)
- Written off (Note iv) - W (M=) = (51,930) (51,930)
- Net remeasurement of ECL (Note ) -BHEEBRYENEFE
(P zED) 46 - 46
New loans granted (Note i) B AR E R (R i) 133 = 133
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3/31H 1,077 - 1,077
Changes due to loans receivable recognised asat 1220244 A1 B R D AR ER
1 April 2024: mEs :
~ Repayment (Note il - B (0 FEi) (33) - (39)
= Net remeasurement of ECL (Note ) -EHEEEECENEFE
(iF2) (22) - (22)
At 31 March 2025 R2025%3A31H 1,022 - 1,022
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

()

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the net reversal of impairment loss
of HK$22,000 (2024: net impairment loss of HK$46,000) was related to
loans receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$30,600,000 (2024:
HK$28,800,000).

The impairment loss of HK$133,000 was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$2,300,000 which were newly granted during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

The reversal of impairment loss of HK$33,000 (2024: HK$652,000) was related
to loans receivable under 12m ECL with gross carrying of HK$1,500,000 (2024:
HK$21,000,000) which has been fully repaid during the year ended 31 March
2025.

The written off of HK$51,930,000 was related to loans receivable with gross
carrying amount of HK$51,930,000. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the
management reassessed and considered the Group had no realistic prospect
to recover the credit-impaired debts and hence such amount was written off.

18.

W E R (&)

R AE R ()
Bt E

B

0] HZE202543A31BLFE - WES
1B Bl )F 522,000/ 7T (20244 « R
{EE 18 F 546,000/8 70) AR E A EE A
30,600,000 T (20244F : 28,800,000/%
TMEREREE -

(ii) B E518133,000/48 LB E £2024F
SABIRLEFEFNBHNEEEER
2,300,000/ TR ERE KB RE ©

(ii) BB 5B % [B133,00078 7T (2024 4 -
652,000587T) B 1218 A B HE & 18
Z BRE#2%81,500,0005% 7T (20244 -
21,000,000/ 7T) W E K E AR - BB
HZE202543A310 L FERHHEE -

) M $551,930,0008 T RIEmMAEA
51,930,000 TH ERE R AR - HZE
20244 3A31HIEFE - EEEEHE
HETE - YRR A AR SR B N A U B = EOR
BEEFHOREANR  WEZESSE -
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19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 19. BAFETAHMEZEKE 2 ETF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =}
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

ETRE - BAFE:
REEIEI L2 EHES
B FEF RN FR2.56%%E9.5%

Listed investments, at fair value:

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong or
overseas with fixed interests ranging
from 2.5% to 9.5% (2024: 2.5% to (20244 : 2.5%%9.5%) * F
9.5%) per annum and maturity dates HRH 202597 A 11H £2031
ranging from 11 July 2025 to 31 January F1HA31H (20244 : 202547
2031 (2024: 11 July 2025 to 31 January HA11BE20314F1A31H)

a5

2031) 80 100

Analysed as: DITA
Current assets MENEE 80 =
Non-current assets EREBEE = 100
80 100

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values which were determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas
recognised stock exchange.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit loss
allowance measured on 12m ECL basis when the credit risk on financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition. For
those credit-impaired bonds, credit loss allowance is measured using
lifetime ECL. The Group assesses the ECL for debt instruments at
FVTOCI by reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating
agencies, macroeconomic factors affecting the respective industry for
each issuer, corporate historical default and loss rate and exposure of
default of each bond investment.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, reversal of credit loss allowance
of HK$1,775,000 (2025: nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34.
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in United States

dollars (“USD”), a currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

20254 20243 A31H + AT
Bt ARMEEKRA 2 BB TAERR
FAE S BR T 4B 5 Bk 22 BT 2008 51 3R T 2B
HFR M2 TRETHEETE -

BAFEFAEMEERSE ZEBT
ARI1I2EAEHEEBEELEHNS
EEEBBEREBEZLTES  BEVHK
BRARESETAZEERR T &R
ZHM - HNEERENES 8
BEEREBINARERHNEREES
BERE - AEESEZFRARBLEE
FREZEEFR FERBETAS
BTXZRBEERE  C¥ELE
HERBERLREEFREZHE
o FFAERATFEFAEMEE RS
ZEHBIAZRREREES -

HE2024F3A31HIEEE -
1,775,000 T2 BB R ERRB B
RIBZR AR (20255 : &) -

IERHA BRI FE34 o

REHR - FERAFEFAEM
2EWRZEFTAUEAEEES
M EE AN BB T (XD
@ -
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DEBT INSTRUMENT AT AMORTISED COST 20. REEANTEZLEBIA
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiBT FHET

Unlisted debt instruments in Hong Kong: EBFELMEBIA

Fixed-rate unsecured promissory note & 7E | = SE AR A R IR 23,250 23,490
Less: Impairment allowance B R E RS (914) (914)
22,336 22,576

In May 2021, the Group and Lion Best Global Limited (the “issuer”),
an independent third party incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
entered into a promissory note agreement with principal amount of
USD3,000,000 which carries interest at 8% per annum and will be fully
repayable on the maturity date of 25 September 2025. At 31 March
2025, the carrying amount of the promissory note was HK$22,336,000
(2024: HK$22,576,000).

The promissory note is measured at amortised cost since the
Group’s business model is to hold the debt instrument for collection
of contractual cash flows, and the cash flows represented solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
The issuer is operating in hotel business. The Group assesses the ECL
with reference to the internal credit rating of the issuer assigned by the
Group.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no credit loss
allowance was recognised in profit or loss.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34.

M2021457 » "N&EEELion Best
Global Limited([#1T Al) (—ERE
BHEBARESMA OB YLE=
PRIV AR BZERGE N8R
3,000,000% 7T + FF & B8% I 5 1E
2025F9A25HEHAZEERE - R
2025%F3A31H » AR EEMERES
22,336,0005% 7T (2024 4 : 22,576,000
BTT) °

HRAEERERFEBTAZER
BABREBMAHNRSREMIFTHE -
HARRRRBHEAAE  ARe
MEERRASELREERTNE
ZR e BIOTANEEBEEY - K&
E2EZHTAZABEEFRFGE
HEEESE -

HE2025% k2024 3A31HILF
B WENEREREEERERE -

AERHE F BRI T34 o

165



166 EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 2202543831 H It F &

21. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE AND 21, BELEEREVERBIEHEYE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group’s properties PUD and PHS are situated in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2025, HK$970,000,000 (2024: HK$665,266,000) of
PUD are expected to be completed within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period, while the rest are expected to be completed
more than twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group performed assessment of
net realisable value on its PUD and PHS with reference to valuations
made by independent qualified professional property valuer not
connected with the Group. The valuations of PUD were arrived at by
using the residual method and the valuations of PHS were arrived at
by using the income approach or direct comparison method. As at 31
March 2025, there was a decrease in the estimated net realisable value
of the PUD and PHS, a net write-down of HK$129,202,000 (2024:
HK$102,937,000) and HK$20,226,000 (2024: nil) respectively, were
recognised in profit or loss due to the volatile property market.

AEEZFEHEERMERSEL
EWMETDURERE

#2025%3 A31H + 970,000,000 7T
(20244 : 665,266,00058 7T) 2 HEH
ERRYWEEBREEHE+—EA
WTERK @ 8RB RS HRE B
B+ @A -

M2025%F 220246 3A31H » K&EE
ERFIELEZEMERBELED
EETAEBRFEFGEN2EHEAE
BERAEMEZEIAEAREEMER
BRI ZEE - FIELERRMENG
BEDNRBEHREZESL  MBELEY
¥R BRAEREELEESE -
HREHEMSHERS @ FELHE
BRMERFELEMENG AT
BIRMERE D - N20256F3A31 B 182
A T SR M SE F 88 9 51l 2 129,202,000
77T (20244 102,937,000 78) &
20,226,000/ 7T (20244F : f&) ©

Analysis of leasehold lands component HELT Do

HK$’000

FET

As at 31 March 2025 2025%3H31H
Carrying amount BRMEE 1,846,612
As at 31 March 2024 A2024%3H31H
Carrying amount BREE 2,520,754
For the year ended 31 March 2025 BE2025F3A31HILEEE
Operating cash outflows AR SR (19,133)
For the year ended 31 March 2024 BIE2024F3A31HLEFE
Operating cash outflows ISR (68,483)

a5
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE AND 21. B{EHEERVMERBFELEYE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued) (%)
Analysis of leasehold lands component (Continued) HE L I o Do (&)
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Additions N 19,133 68,483
Write-down it 88 = (30,920)
The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any FAE T MR ENK AR ETMR
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual S EMEMRERXEE - FEE
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold BREETAHAELHIIONGFHER
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold B o ZE 20259 K 2024FE3831H
lands taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March HEETEIsR(E - AEHEE LR
2025 and 2024. EBH-
All PUD and PHS have been pledged to secure banking facilities AREERBAFEE Z2BELEREME
granted to the Group in both years. REELEYES D B EKH L ER
HRITRLE o
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BSRHAMEWIE
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Lease receivables FEURFE & FRIE 2,584 859
Prepayments (Note (ii)) FE AT R (3 Gi) 6,907 1,342
Interest receivable FE IR B 465 110
Staff loans (Note (i) 8 T &P EE() 8,200 9,000
Deposit B 1,815 1,691
Escrow deposits for properties held for sales 5 {EHEWH¥ 2 EE RS 10,340 -
Other receivables HAth pE W RRIE 18,924 20,565
49,235 33,567
Notes: FtsE -

[0) The Group entered into several loan agreements with certain staff. Pursuant to
the loan agreements, the staff loans were unsecured with fixed interest rate at
2% (2024: 2%) per annum and repayable on demand.

(ii) As at year ended 31 March 2025, amount of HK$3,536,000 (2024: nil)
represented prepayment of rental expense to a related party.

(i) REEEETE T8O BERRE -
RIEERRZE  BEIERAEIER -
TFEEFR2% (20245 : 2%) » REVEANT

o
K °

(i) HZE202593HA31H + 3,536,000 7T
(2024%F : @) ATENHESHAS T —2H4
BTy o
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. B S RkHEMEWRFIE(E)
The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in property AEBEWRBELTRYFERENEZ
investment segment. The aged analysis of trade receivables and lease HPRERE - RIERZERE  BHE
receivables, based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting WHIEREREERERRERR
period is as follows: BRERDATIAT -
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
0-60 days 0-60H 2,482 859
61-90 days 61-90H 102 -
2,584 859
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are B REMEWGKEZ BREFGFSE
set out in note 34. BRI FESS -
No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade and other HRARAIEEFRARZANELTE
receivables as the directors of the Company consider that the amount AN WERE S REMEWRKERE
is immaterial. EEEEE -

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 23. RAFETAERZEMEE

LOSS
2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Listed investments, at fair value: ERE - RATE -
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and = R&E I &/BSN AR A E 5
overseas (Note i) (BT &) 41,531 47,124
Unlisted investments, at fair value: ELEMRE  BRATE :
= Film right investment - BYMERE 58 14,697
= Investment in limited partnership (Note i)  — BFR & A& & (M 5Ei) - 42,732
- Unlisted securities - JE LTS 8,625 6,264
50,214 110,817
Analysed as: bakiiv=1
Current assets mENEE 41,589 104,553
Non-current assets SEmBIEE 8,625 6,264

50,214 110,817




23.

24.

BILEEGRAT 2024/2025 FR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 23. RAVEFABRZERERE (B

LOSS (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated in AEBRAFETAERNESREE

currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group NEAEEEREEEBUINNEE

entities are set out below: FHEHSAT
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFHET

usD =T 8,625 52,589

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TARE]) 58 14,697

Notes: BiaE -

[0) The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based on the [0) LRAEHHN R FEREE 08
quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas INRAEFR H T HW T ERTE °
recognised stock exchange.

(ii) During the year, the interest in limited partnership has been disposed at a total (ii) AFE  ARARBE#ENE28,971,000
consideration of HK$28,971,000. Details of the disposal are set out in the BTHEREREBL¥EZ#E - HE
circular of the Company dated 24 June 2024. FIEHN AR A HEA20245F6 5248

TIME DEPOSITS OVER THREE MONTHS/CASH AND CASH 24, BB=EANEHER BHERR

EQUIVALENTS

At 31 March 2024, the time deposits with maturity of more than three
months and within 1 year carried interest at market rate of 1.50% per
annum.

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short-term
bank deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short term cash
commitments, which carry interest at market rates range from 0.001%
t0 3.3% (2024: 0.001% to 0.925%) per annum.

The Group’s time deposits and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

EZEY

MR2024%3A31H @ FHABBE=E
A XRAF R TE T RAT S FF =X
1.50%5T 8 °

ReRkBESSEDRETHERRE
HIBITEFRARmEAEE R RS &
& EMBEFENT0.001%%E3.3%
(20244 : 0.001%%0.925%) °

AEBENEBEETREEE AN
ZEBHENERFFARRERE
SEEDHIIDOT

2025 2024

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET F#T

Singapore dollar (“SGD”) #rons T (g o) 140 963
UsD ET 302 100
RMB AR 28 28
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 25, BSRHMEMHREBERENEE
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables ESRHEMENTRIE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Trade payables (Note i): B 5 R 30E (T EE) -
0—30 days 0—-30H 6,549 24,260
31-60 days 31-60H - 6,167
Over 90 days B3RO0 H 7,112 =
13,661 30,427
Retention payable (Note ii) JERHRIE @ (Bt i) 29,018 32,110
Rental deposits received and rental received 2 WHEES MFEKES
in advance iBI585 8,750
Accruals TEIRE A 2,933 2,300
Interest payable FERTAILE 10,768 7,026
Other taxes payable E IR - 2,767
Other payables H A P 5B 4,636 10,370
74,551 93,750
Notes: BIRE -
[0] The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on the invoice date i) B RN RERRERRZRRDITT
at the end of the reporting period. The average credit period on purchases of RBEZEHET - BEZ FHRES
goods is 30 days. AR308 °
(ii) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be released by the (ii) BRRESAN FREFRAEEBR
Group within twelve months upon completion of their works. TREAFT_MEARNZNM -
Contract liabilities EHEE
The Group receives deposits from customers when they sign the sale AEBHEEFEIIMEEE AR
and purchase agreement of sales of properties. The deposits from WREFPZE BEFEZREBERA
customers are recognised as contract liabilities until the customers AEHEBE BEEXFPMEMEES
obtain control of the properties. At 31 March 2025, the contract - R2025F3A31H ' &AEEA
liabilites amounted to HK$5,197,000 (2024: nil). Contract liabilities are 5,197,000 7T (20244 : ) - AH &
expected to be settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle when BEREHRAEEESLERHARN - B
control of the completed properties are transferred to the customer. EEKMENESREEERPRE

18 -

&
]
0
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CONVERTIBLE NOTE CONTAINING LIABILITY AND EQUITY
COMPONENTS

On 20 February 2023, the Company issued 5% convertible note due
2028 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$209,000,000 to Goodco
Development Limited (“Goodco”) (the “2023 Convertible Note”). The
2023 Convertible Note was used to settle of acquisition of investment
properties during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The 2023 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles the
holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the 2023 Convertible Note on 20 February
2023 and its settlement date on 20 February 2028 at a conversion
price of HK$0.106 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments).

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and conditions of
the convertible note, adjustment has been made to the conversion
price of convertible note with principal amount of HK$209,000,000
from HK$0.106 per share to HK$4.24 per share with the number
of conversion shares adjusted from 1,971,698,113 to 49,292,452
conversion shares with effect from 19 July 2023 as a result of capital
reorganisation. Further adjustment has been made to the conversion
price from HK$4.24 per share to HK$3.70 per share with the number of
conversion shares adjusted from 49,292,452 to 56,486,486 conversion
shares with effect from 3 August 2023 as a result of placing of shares.

On 238 January 2024, the Company entered into deeds of amendment
with Goodco in relation to the proposed alterations of certain terms
of the convertible note. The deeds of amendment were approved by
the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company held
on 27 March 2025 and the conditions precedent under the deed of
amendment were fulfilled on 17 April 2024. The modification of the
terms was determined to be substantial and hence resulted in the
extinguishment of the original liability component of the convertible note
and the recognition of new liability and equity components, resulting
in a net loss on maodification of terms of convertible note amounting
to HK$31,369,000 being recognised and presented under “loss on
modification of terms of convertible note” in profit or loss. After the
modification, the conversion price of the convertible notes is HK$0.18
per conversion share with interest at 5% per annum and maturity date
of 20 February 2028.

Upon modification of the 2023 Convertible Note, the Company
recognised equity component of the convertible note and deferred tax
liability of HK$161,265,000 and HK$26,609,000 respectively.

26.

SRR D

T

TIRREEESAS

[T

R2023F2 208 + AR B AERER
BRAR(ER])EITHR20284 E| BiA
% 458 /5209,000,000% 7T H)5% A] 3 %
F1E([2023F Al R EIE ) - 20234
AR AR A 45 H &L 2202343 4 31
A FEREREME -

2023F A MR EBAB TEE - BE
ABER2023F2 A20H 81720234
AR ZE iR A B 2028F2 A20H £ &
AEMBEREEREREERALRA
A& R AR E AR 19 0.10678 T (A#E
TREHERE) -

1R IR PT 4R AR 32 4R R R R AR 1R B0 A B (K
X H2023F7A198#E - AREALRE
48+ R4 %8 £209,000,00078 7T H A #2
REENRRES BFTR0.106% T
BEFRA248TT BRERONEKEE
F11,971,698,11382 8% 549,292,452
s AR D - §2023F8A3HIE - M
REERMDMIELE—SRHE - BK
BEHERL 4B AR EERI 705
7T B K E B R49,292,452/%
AR 56,486,486/ AL D ©

R2024F1 230 + AR R EHERE
FERUBRBRER B TIEREI LB
IR o (BRI RIEE R202563A27H
BITWARARERFR RS LERKRRE
BERIETTRBE TR ERIEGE
R2024F 4 B17 BBIEK  ZIEKIEE]
BEAEXNE  AMBRAIHRRKRE
BOREEEDS BRI  WHERH
BERETRID  BREFTTBRRE
BIER 2 FE183E31,369,0008 T2
BRI N BRmAMSET AT RRE R IER
BRIZY - 85114 - ATRRER 2B
& AT RIBRRHA8HETT « FFHIX
£5%  BI#H £2028F2 208 -

112023 F AR EHRE - AQ A
BRUBRBREENEZ LD RIELT
HEAES R A161,265,000% T &
26,609,000/ JT °
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26.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE CONTAINING LIABILITY AND EQUITY
COMPONENTS (Continued)

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and conditions of
the convertible note, adjustment has been made to the conversion
price of convertible note with principal amount of HK$109,000,000
which is convertible into 605,555,555 shares (after partial redemption)
at an adjusted current convertible price from HK$0.18 per share to
HK$0.14 per share with the number of conversion shares adjusted
from 605,555,555 to 778,571,428 conversion shares (the “Adjustment”)
with effect from 4 February 2025 as a result of rights issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company exercised the
early redemption option to redeem certain convertible note with
principal amount of HK$139,000,000, for which HK$80,000,000 of the
principal amount was settled by offsetting with the amount due from a
related party which constituted a non-cash transaction.

As at 31 March 2025, the 2023 Convertible Note with principal amount
of HK$70,000,000 (2024: HK$209,000,000) remained outstanding.
Assuming full conversion of the 2023 Convertible Note at a conversion
price of HK$0.14 at 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$3.70), the 2023
Convertible Note will be convertible into 500,000,000 new ordinary
shares (2024: 56,486,486) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights. If the 2023 Convertible Note is not converted during
the conversion period up to the maturity date, it will be redeemed on
the maturity date at par with outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 5%
per annum will be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement
date.

The 2023 Convertible Note contains liability component and equity
component. The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the
liability component of the 2023 Convertible Note is 17.15% per annum
at the date of modification.

26.

THRREBEESEERESRND

(&)

=

1R IR PT 1R AR ZE 4R A I 3 R G 1 P 9 3
BiE - A4 %4109,000,000% 7T
WMAERERRRECHELARE
HAaRgEHEENRITRERESRE
f%0.18 8 THABEZFK0.14B L K12
605,555,555 i 1 (& EpH &) -
B B% 15 8t B B 605,555,5550% & =
778,571,428 AR Ak D ([F9 %) - A
R B 2025F2 A4 A #BAERK -

HE2025%3A31ALLEE - AQF]
TERFEENRERNSE TASEA
139,000,000/ 72 AJ AR Z & - HAF
7N 4 $680,000,0007% 7T LA K S5 FE W —
BB A REZAREE - Bk —E3E
RERH

W202543H31H » K&
£70,000,000% 8 (2024 F
209,000,000 7T ) #2023 4 A 42 fix

ZRMKMEE - BRZ2023F AJ B IK
T—\?)iﬁé2025isﬂ 31 B KRR EO.14
7B (20244F : 3.70/870) 2 & E i -
Bl2023F AR EB K AIEIRA
RABRAFZREEC.01B TH
500,000,0000% (20244F : 56,486,486
) X i A% o

BB ERITRERER LR
7 ° ANSR20234F 7] i IR 1 85 4 1

ERMARE SR ABNEHA
REEEREEEAMNEZED - F7
KE%WFEHBFFXIN—R BEE
HBERARIE -

2023F A MR EE R A BT Y MiE
ES o R EBD RIERSIZRE A R
ZRBREEEBIPZ2 - NMEFTRE
2023F A MR EBEABHT I HNERF
IR AH17.15% °
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CONVERTIBLE NOTE CONTAINING LIABILITY AND EQUITY 26. RBRZBEESEERERTSD

COMPONENTS (Continued) (%)
The movement of the liability component of the above convertible note FHirmREEAER S 2 E T
is set out below: LU
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
At the beginning of the year REH 167,954 159,949
Derecognition of original liability BT A R ERIEREIVEERR
component upon modification of terms BEEHD
of convertible note (212,063) -
Recognition of new liability component upon 15T AR ZE (G E ER B E
modification of terms of convertible note i 143,755 -
Derecognition of original liability B fE Bl AT R AR IR 12 BUB FERR R
component upon partial redemption BEEHRD
of the convertible note (64,198) -
Accretion of interest FEZBAREE 20,525 17,941
Interest paid BRAE (8,747) (9,936)
At the end of the year RER 47,226 167,954
SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 27. BEARITEE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Carrying amount repayable as follows (based [EEZE B 2 BREELW T (IRIEER
on the scheduled repayment dates set out & RFT7I 2 (EE B EA) :
in the loan agreements):
= within one year -—FR 1,575,285 1,161,664
— within a period of more than one year - ZR—FETHBBMFEHEAR
but not exceeding two years 297,798 834,368
— within a period of more than two years - ZAMEETEBRAFTHEAR
but not exceeding five years 19,177 50,800
— within a period of more than five years - BEAFHRA = 19,902
1,892,260 2,066,734
Less: Amount due within one year B RRBEEE TN —F AR
shown under current liabilities x| (1,575,285) (1,161,664)
Amount due after one year shown under RIERBABE TN 2 —FEIIHZ
non-current liabilities ck-| 316,975 905,070
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27.

28.

SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 27.

At 31 March 2025, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry interest
ranging from Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus
1.3% to 2.5% (2024: HIBOR plus 0.7% to 1.8%, Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (“SOFR”) plus 0.8%) per annum, with effective interest
ranging from 5.1% to 6.4% (2024: 5.3% to 6.4%) per annum. The
loans are secured by certain assets as set out in note 35. The proceeds
were mainly used to finance acquisition of investment properties,
development of properties and acquisition of financial products.

The Group’s secured bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

BEFRITIEEE

MR2025F3A31H @ ALEz GHEIEIR
TEEFANENTEBBITRERE
(TBBRITRAERLSD IN1.3%ZE2.5%
(2024% : HHBFBITREFREMO.7%E
1.8% » ERIBREVE FI = ([ERIERR
BEFR])I0.8%) + EEBEFEN T
5.1%%6.4%(20244F : 5.3%%6.4%) °
BERUAMT i 35TE S T E E(EKA -
FEFTEZRERBIREME  WER
BLEECHERIHE -

REBNEHEEEEREEE AN
ZEBIBEzBERRTEEHTIW
T~

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T
HKD BT - 4,614
usD ET - 7,007
LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HEAE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Lease liabilities payable: EzHEa8E:
Within a period not exceeding one year TR —FEHEA 2,447 2,335
Within a period of more than one year but ZR—FRTBEMFEHER
not exceeding two years 1,077 2,366
Within a period of more than two years but ~ Z A REE TR B 7 FHE R
not exceeding five years - 1,025
3,524 5,726
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : 12{8 A AR B E 2 © 588
months shown under current TRRBEET
liabilities (2,447) (2,335)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ 12{E A& B it & 2 £ BERAIE
under non-current liabilities MEBAET 1,077 3,391

The Group leases a property to operate its business and these lease
liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments that

are not yet paid.

Lease and rentals are negotiated and fixed for a terms of 2 to 3 years

(2024: 3 years).

AREBEABAYENCEELER > mE
LHEAENMARI OB EFHE
KR EE -

AL rE EE AR =34 (20244F ¢
3%F) °
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DEFERRED TAXATION 29. ERIEHIIE

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiBT FHT
Deferred tax assets BERIBEEE 319 328
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBERE (3,756) (7,936)
(3,437) (7,608)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised REARBEFEERRAETEZER

and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

JERIRE A (BE) AREZEBHMT

ECL Convertible Revaluation

allowance note issued of properties Total
FEHEE AT
EEEE B YEE HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET FHAIT FHET FAT
At 1 April 2023 202344818 8,975 (9,257) (24,536) (04,818)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss A4 F 1825 (53
for the year F)EA (8,647) 1,321 23,470 16,144
Exchange adjustments FE 5, 58 B - - 1,066 1,066
At 31 March 2024 R202443A31H 328 (7,936) - (7,608)
Charge to profit or loss RAFEERFH
for the year 53 9) (6,781) = (6,790)
Release upon partial o R TR R
redemption of convertible RT3 AN
note - 15,198 - 15,198
Recognition upon modification {&&] AT #2f% Z 15 15
of terms of convertible note KB HER - (26,609) = (26,609)
Release upon modification of  {&&] Al #2f% Z 15 15
terms of convertible note TRIR AR - 22,372 = 22,372
At 31 March 2025 K20253H31H 319 (3,756) - (8,437)
At 31 March 2025, the Group has unused tax losses of M2025%3A31H  AEEBAEHH
HK$509,167,000 (2024: HK$393,131,000) available for offset against T8 E518509,167,000/8 7T (20244 :
future profits. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No 393,131,000/ 7T) LA A {E 3K 85 2K 0%
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due Ao HIRBBAIERILE - BRK

to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

IR AR E N WA - AZERER
BHERHERLERREE -
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29.

30.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 29. EILHIIE(E)
At 31 March 2025, the Group has deductible temporary differences MN2025%3A31H » AEBEM A K
of HK$331,361,000 (2024: HK$181,988,000). A deferred tax has MER I Z % A331,361,000% 7T
been recognised in respect of HK$1,936,000 (2024: HK$1,991,000) (20244 : 181,988,000/ 7T) - &5t
of such temporary differences. No deferred tax asset has been 1,936,000/ 7T (20244 : 1,991,000/
recognised in relation to the remaining deductible temporary difference TZEERMEERRELHE -
of HK$329,425,000 (2024: HK$179,997,000) as it is not probable that RS K AT B8 B FE SR B v A A A VR4
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary MR EREERE - R ERT %
differences can be utilised. AT 0B B 14 Z %8329,425,000/8 ¢
(20244 : 179,997,000/ 7T e R IR AT
MIBAE -
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends RIEPEPEMEEE - B2008%F1A
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 1B R HH B A B REA) & F E R
January 2008 onwards. At 31 March 2025, deferred taxation has not KRR SBUKTEHORL - R20255F3 A31H
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of AR REeEIK - HERE M EHREIL
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC R BIFT BB A 7] 25 FI (G B 1
subsidiary amounting to RMB7,360,000 (2024: RMB17,121,000) as ZEARMT,360,0007T(20244F © A
the amount involved is insignificant. R¥17,121,0007T) sHH2RLER I -
SHARE CAPITAL 30. BA&
Nominal value Number
Notes per share of shares Amount
B 5 BREAE & E “azE
HK$ HK$’'000
BT FHET
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 R2023F481H « 2024
and 31 March 2025 F3A31H Kk2025%F
3H31H 0.01 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE :
At 1 April 2023 K2023F4H1H 2,125,924,676 21,259
Reduction of share capital upon & 7N E 4R R D AR AR
capital reorganisation (i) 0.01 (2,072,776,560) (20,728)
Issue of shares upon placing fic & A5 25 1T A 1 (ii) 0.01 50,000,000 500
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3H31H 103,148,116 1,031
Issue of shares upon placing e & B B 1T AR D (i) 0.01 235,000,000 2,350
Rights issue of shares AR 1 B A% (iv) 0.01 676,296,232 6,763
At 31 March 2025 K20253H31H 1,014,444,348 10,144
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

)

On 17 July 2023, a special resolution has been passed by the shareholders of
the Company for a capital reorganisation which involves share consolidation,
capital reduction and share subdivision. Consolidation of every forty issued and
unissued existing shares of par value of HK$0.01 each into one consolidated
share of par value of HK$0.40 each (the “Consolidated Share(s)”) in the share
capital of the Company. Immediately upon the share consolidation becoming
effective, the par value of each issued Consolidated Share is reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by a cancellation of HK$0.39 of the paid-up capital on
each issued Consolidated Share so that each issued Consolidated Share is
treated as one fully paid up share of par value HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “New Share(s)”) and the credit arising from the
capital reduction be transferred to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. Immediately following the share consolidation and capital reduction,
each authorised but unissued Consolidated Share (including those authorised
unissued Consolidated Shares arising from the capital reduction) is subdivided
into forty authorised but unissued New Shares of par value HK$0.01 each.
The capital reorganisation is completed on 19 July 2023. Details of the capital
reorganisation are set out in the Company’s circular dated 21 June 2023.

On 3 August 2023, the Company allotted 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.5 per share. The Company raised HK$24,750,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of placing to be used for repayment of the Group’s
bank loans. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the specific
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed at the special general meeting held on 24 July 2023.

On 17 April 2024, the Company allotted 235,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by placing to not less than six placees at a placing price of
HK$0.18 per share. The Company raised HK$41,877,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used for repayment of the Group’s
bank loans and general working capital of the Group. The new placing shares
were issued pursuant to the specific mandate granted to the directors by a
resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed at the special general
meeting held on 21 March 2024.

On 4 February 2025, the Company allotted 676,296,232 rights shares of
HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.092 per rights share on the
basis of two rights shares for every one then existing ordinary share held. The
Company raised HK$62,219,000 (before expenses) with the intention at the
time of rights issue for repayment of the Group’s bank loans and as general

working capital of the Group.

All shares issued during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024
rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

30. BRA(&E

G

(i)

(v)

M2023F7A178  RNARRRBKAR
SHEBB-ERIARE EFRFER
BRHE B BREERRBROFHE - T
/MR REEC.OVEITHEHITR
ARETRARN G G AR DR RAF
—BEREE.40BITH A HRM (&
BERD]) - BRERMD & HHERIE - BIR
BE#ITA MR OEER0.40B TR
F0.01%8T - HBBEHTRERTE
BERR D MO AR AN0.3938 T © EERE
BITAHRMEEREABERD A RAF —
A% 5 AR TEI 1B 0.01 78 7T /9 482 AR AR ([ 5 AR
31) + T B AR A Bl R i 22 A= 10 BR R
BEEEAREBHABE - ZHERHD
A O R - SRIEAEERETT
A BERR1 (B0 33 7% 5 R AR A ISR T 2 AE 9
EERETEHRN) D HF AN RE
EERETHRD - BREER.01E
TT ° BAREHN2023F7 A198 =K °
M A EAR R B RA AR B B #1 52023
F6A21AMAEK °

R202348A3A « AR RIAEAR0.5/%
TCH) B B A T DR S B AR EC A Bl %
50,000,0000% & A& E{E0.01 & T ) X i
% o ANA F1E 524,750,000/ 7T (H1BR B
%) BREERAEEERNEEIRT
B o FBLE RN THIRIBEA R RIARER
2023F 7 A24 A RITHRFIFRAG £
BBRRER TERORFRIRERT

H2024F4 178 AR B AL RN
%% B A B £ 235,000,000/% & A% (&
0.01BTH LA - BBEEATAR0.18
PETT o ANREEE 41,877,000 T (kR
Fs) - BN & R A VE(E B AR R B IRTT
BREAEE -—REELS - FEEER
P TIREAR R AR EN2024F3 218
BITHRRFRAS HBBKRERT
EEMRRIRRERT -

20252 A48  AQRIEESHE K
ERBA LB MARRAR D 2 &
£ ASREKRRH0.0028 T 2 R
{BAC#676,296,2320% F A H(E0.0174 7T
2B o ANA T EE62,219,000/8
TR AN - BN A EEER
REBRTER  WHERAEE —KE
BESG o

FrBREE2025% £2024F3A31H
LTFEBETZRONETEHEERE
BTN EERFER
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31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 31.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

REMETD 2 RE AR

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

TERFINAREREBRE T ZAE
g BRRSRIFRSED - KA
METHABENERAESRES
XARKRESREBEDERAEEREZ
EARREeRERZKARMEBRD 2R

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

=g—R
ﬁ/mi °

Secured
Convertible bank Lease
note borrowings liabilities Total
HEA
ARRERE RITEE HEAE FCk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT FET
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Bi5¥26) Ci#4)) (Hizk28)
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4H81H 159,949 1,871,919 1,260 2,033,128
Bank borrowings raised EERITEE - 306,798 = 306,798
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE = (111,256) = (111,256)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE - - (2,410) (2,410)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERTHER - (500) - (500)
Interest paid BAFE (9,936) (104,931) (218) (115,085)
150,013 1,962,030 (1,368) 2,110,675
Non-cash changes: FEeEE)
- Interest expense on convertible note - AR ER 2 F B
Bz 17,941 = = 17,941
- Interest expense on bank borrowings - RITBEZHE
sz - 104,931 = 104,931
- Interest expense on lease liabilities -HEABZAE
sz - - 218 218
- New lease entered - ¥R E - = 6,876 6,876
- Exchange adjustments -EHLRAE - (227) - (227)
At 31 March 2024 HR2024%F3H31H 167,954 2,066,734 5,726 2,240,414
Bank borrowings raised ELRITEE = 221,079 = 221,079
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE - (393,674) = (393,674)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaRE - - (2,359 (2,353)
Partial redemption of convertible note o EE A RRERE (64,198) = = (64,198)
Payment of loan arrangement fee SHERTHER - (1,879) = (1,879)
Interest paid [EERPAIES (8,747 (123,193) (263) (132,203)
95,009 1,769,067 3,110 1,867,186
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31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 31. REMETH2EEZAERE)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Secured
Convertible bank Lease
note borrowings liabilities Total
HHEA
EElES BITIEE HEARE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHL FET
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Bit7E26) G222 (KizE28)
Non-cash changes: FREEE
~ Derecognition of original liability — BET AR R &
component upon modification BUBERIRA &
of terms of convertible note i (212,063) - - (212,063)
- Recognition of new liability component ~ — {81 Al A ik 1%
upon modification of terms BRI AaEDS
of convertible note 143,755 - - 143,755
- Interest expense on convertible note - RREEZF
BHX 20,525 = = 20,525
- Interest expense on bank borrowings - RITBEZAE
Fx - 123,193 = 123,193
- Interest expense on lease liabilities -HEABZFE
53 - - 263 263
- New lease entered - HEMEE - = 151 151
At 31 March 2025 H2025%3A31H 47,226 1,892,260 3,524 1,943,010

179



180

&
]
0

1

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202593 A31 B It F &

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had the following transactions with

32.

RBALRS BHEXS

(a)

BriR e IS MR P ERSN - RF
A AEREEKERERZ 2B K

wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International: BRARETINTIRS :
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Consultancy fee - 2,621
Building management fee 60 -
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABEZFEAX 263 218

The Group rented certain of its office premises from Easyknit
International. At 31 March 2025, lease liabilities amounted to
HK$3,524,000 (2024: HK$5,726,000) and refundable rental
deposits paid (included in “trade and other receivables” line item)
amounted to HK$416,000 (2024: HK$416,000).

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, also holds 13.52%
(2024: 13.52%) equity interest of Easyknit International through
an entity wholly-owned by her and under share option scheme.

(b) Details of the convertible note issued to Easyknit International are
set out in note 26. During the year, the interests on convertible

note are as follows:

(b)

AEBEKEERRABEET
AT o BR20259F3A318 » &
FEMBEEAREAS3,524,000%
JC(2024% : 5,726,000 T)
ENMARERSRS(BEE
[B5REAMBHFIEEF) A
416,000/ 7T (20244F : 416,000
PETT) °

AAREREERZ TN EBE
2ERANEE RREERE
BB KEBME 2 13.52% (2024
& 1 13.52%) AR HE o

BIThKE BB 2 TR R RN
FHIBEMTE26 - RER - ELEA
BERSEOMENT

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Accretion of interest FEZBAREE 20,525 17,941
Interest paid 8,747 9,936
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors and other members of
key management during the year was as follows:

32. BMALRE BEXS )

(c)

TEEEASZHMH
WITESENEMEIEEEAERN
FRZMEIWT :

2025 2024
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiExT T
Short-term employee benefits EHEB A
Salaries and other benefits e REMBEAR 14,486 14,488
Contributions to retirement benefits 3R RIE R 5T 2 3k
schemes 101 83
14,587 14,571
The remuneration of directors and key executives are determined EERFEBITBRABZME SR

by the remuneration committee and executive directors,
respectively, having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may
be terminated by either party at any time by three months’
notice. The monthly salary has been adjusted a few times to
HK$475,000 with effect from 1 April 2023. The remuneration of
Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2024 was HK$2,391,000 and was
included in the “compensation of key management personnel” in
(c) above. On 1 September 2023, Mr. Koon Wing Yee resigned
as general manager of the Company and the employment
agreement was terminated.

(d)

HEFMEZE S RN ITEEZRE
MALTZRAETHBEME

-
E °

R2011EF1A - RAFIEE XK
T+ 2ZBEBEKRRLERLIE
Bih# - BEREARQRBLE
B oz —ERERS 2R
ek B2011F2 21 A% - 2
AREAEREEFERN—F
BY=-—EABRMMKL - FA
FoEL THAHAEEH2023
FA4A18#A475,0008 7T ° &
E2024%3A31B ILFREKE
EEERARRBEEZHNE
42,391,000 7T & B B &7 A
FOBEZIEEERAS Z
A - 202359818 © BXE
LEFRERNARLKE - MZlE
AinEE R -
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32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(9)

(Continued)

In November 2020, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, to act as a senior special advisor of the Company.
The employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 25 November 2020 but may be
terminated by either party at any time. The monthly salary is
HK$30,000 with effect from 1 April 2022. The remuneration
of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as a senior special advisor of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025 was
HK$360,000 (2024: HK$360,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group received rental
income totalling HK$288,000 (2024: HK$288,000) from certain
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

On 29 August 2023, City China International Limited (“City
China”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a revolving loan agreement with Main Profit
Investment Limited (“Main Profit”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit International to grant the revolving
loan facility in the principal amount up to a maximum of
HK$80,000,000 from effective date on 20 November 2023 for
a term of two years with fixed interest rate 6% per annum. The
revolving loan is guaranteed by Easyknit International. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 August
2023.

As at 31 March 2025, the outstanding balance of loan provided
to Main Profit amounted to nil (2024: HK$30,000,000), giving
rise to interest income amounting to HK$2,743,000 (2024
HK$404,000) during the year ended 31 March 2025.

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group received
service charge of HK$276,000 (2024: HK$414,000) from a joint
venture for the rendering of administration services.

32.

R

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes
convertible note and secured bank borrowings disclosed in notes 26
and 27, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues and
raising or repayment of bank borrowings and other debts.

33.
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

Categories of financial instruments

34, &@TH

a. S©BMIAZER

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT F&T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFESABR CRHEE 50,214 110,817
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BRAFEF AR 2EES 2 EE
TA 80 100
Amortised cost (including cash and ~ #ER A (BIER S MBS SEY)
cash equivalents)
- Trade and other receivables -85 REERFRIE 20,608 20,919
- Amount due from a joint venture -l —REAEE R EIFIEAE 7,850 1,850
— Amount due from a related party - FEY— A BRSO 5B - 30,000
- Loans receivable - W E R 29,578 31,023
- Debt instrument at amortised cost ~ — REER A EZBEHKTHE 22,336 22,576
- Time deposits over three months -BE=EANT TR - 31,183
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRREEEY 57,266 299,717
187,932 548,185
Financial liabilities THEeE
Amortised cost BESHRAR
- Trade and other payables - B 5 REMERNKIE 58,083 79,240
- Convertible note - AR E R 47,226 167,954
~ Secured bank borrowings - BHEMBRTEE 1,892,260 2,066,734
1,997,569 2,313,928
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

34. M ITE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HERREEBERBER
The Group’s major financial instruments include amount due AEEzFESRTABEEK
from a joint venture, amount due from a related party, financial —HEERRINIE B —HEH
assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other B FUE - MAFESABEZ
receivables, loans receivable, debt instrument at amortised cost, TREE  BRAFEFAHME
time deposits over three months, cash and cash equivalents, HWm s EBTA  B5KHEM
trade and other payables, convertible note and secured bank FEWRRIE « R E SR - HREESHRK
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed REAEZ2EBIA  BBR=@EA
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial MNEMER HekReEE
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are Y BSREMENKIE - ATk
set out below. The management manages and monitors these BREE R EEIFRTES - 25
exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented Rt TE 2 FFI5 0 # RN AR M
on a timely and effective manner. AR ZEemI AR AR
VA R ARl PR 32 5 LB 2 BRSR
T - EREEBERERZE
B Bg DA R AR 58 IRy 2 8 R ER HE
B o
Market risk 5 A R
1] Currency risk () B
The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign currency REREHR - ASNESE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at CEBERCEREER
the end of the reporting period is as follows: E¥BECRABLOT ¢
Liabilities Assets
=N BE
2025 2024 2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAET FHx FHET
USD against HKD ETHBTT - - 31,262 52,689
SGD against HKD TR AT - 4,614 140 963
RMB against HKD ARMHET - - 86 14,697
USD against SGD ETT TN T = 7,007 81 100
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Y

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate risk on
USD against RMB for the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HKD and USD
will be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has
been prepared. No sensitivity analysis for the currency risk
of SGD against HKD and USD against SGD is prepared
as the directors of the Company consider the net impact
of such foreign currency risk is insignificant.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in RMB against HKD. Sensitivity
rate of 5% is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive (negative) number below indicates a decrease
(increase) in post-tax loss where RMB strengthens 5%
against HKD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against HKD,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax loss.

34.

TRMIAGE

b. UEREBREREBERBEEGE

55 /2B (4)

() EBEEERE
BURE DT
REBFINENEZ B
BERERBARZEZR
REBERKREEXTHEAR

2R -

HREREZGE - BT
HXTERERZ BB
BAYTERKR - #URER
HYPBEDIN - ARAR
AEZERAZINER R
FREYAERN Al
A A A3 7T 5B T A K
SETT 3T NI T AR Bk
BT °

TRFMIE T AREY
AR ETIHEMER
5% M BURE - MEDA
EEE A BWMESNE R
B A% BRE
REEEEHAEMER
MG - MBREST
ERBEREENIIETE
B WHERSHRAR
HiE - DAGE SN BE &
HEE% - THMER(E
BRTEARBHET
THES% * TR BRI D
(g0 - MRARME LB
TTHRES%  RlEeH Bk
BHEELRSEMERNY
Fg
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

34.

TRITAE)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HRREEBZERBUR (H)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 Bz (E)
() Currency risk (Continued) 0  EBEEmEEGE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE D (E)
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiBT FHT
Increase in post-tax loss Tz BB N 4 614

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis reflects
the exposure at the year end, but not the exposure during
the year.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates to
it secured bank borrowings. The interest rates and terms
of repayment of the secured bank borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 27.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to certain financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, debt instrument at amortised
cost, amount due from a related party, time deposits
over three months, cash and cash equivalents, fixed-
rate loans receivable, fixed-rate staff loan and convertible
note. The Group has not used any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to such interest rate risk, however,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

ERERL  BBRESN
REREZFEEAER » T
PRIREFEANER -

AN B B Al SN H
BEOEGREERR - R
- EEER )RR A
SRR AN EFR
BEEEHERINER

i o
2

(i) FEmEE
AEBHEZERSREF
KRR AR A EIFRITE
BAEM - AEEGEME
TEEOF X REEER
K274 5E -

AREB IR A FERTA
BRseREE BAF
Bt AEMEEKEZE
BITA REHEKATE
ZEBTHE  ElR— %
BT 50R - BE=EAK
EHER ReREEE
BY  BURBEENEE
FoBEENKREIEFRR
QESES S PN
Ky o A5 E I
EAITEE N REHZE
MEXER EEEESE
SN XER  YEERY
3R E R X G b B
RENE A BITED
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
(2024: HIBOR and SOFR) arising from secured bank
borrowings.

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI is as
follows:

34.

TRMIAGE

b. HERBREEREREEGE

745 [ [ (4)
(i) FIFEE ()

AEBREBMEEZHE
R ERAMEZ REE
LRKREE SR -
AEBZHSREFNER
REZRBEBRGEMEBT
BEZBBRITRERS
(2024% : HHERITRAZE
FERERRBERREF
K)RE) o

RE K AR A FER
AR EEERAEZS
BB E P B WE A
BT

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest revenue F 8 U2
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ JRER AN EZ S RIBE 1,329 1,930
Other income H A
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ IRER AN EZ S RIBE 6,399 8,585
Total interest income 1 F) B A 7,728 10,515
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments as referred to above at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 100 basis points
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

AT BREE DT EARER
VA P 3t 5 % 5 B R 3 3F
PTETAZFIRRRE R
FERBR 2O EHER
WERREERS TR mE
TE o 1008 £ 2= B 48 hn sk
BOEARMEZEEA
8 PYRRIE 3R & & b A
REHEEFAENEZ A8

ARES -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower
for its variable rate borrowings and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2025 would increase/decrease by
HK$15,800,000 (2024: HK$17,257,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in listed equity and debt securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated on listed
equity instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange of
issuers engaged in operation and investment in food and
beverage brands and banking and finance industry sector.
In addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

34. M ITE(E)

b. HERREERERIEGE

5 /2B (4)
(i) FIEE R ()
BURE DT ()

(i)

MR ZEFEEBEEMHF X
FE sk R 1002 B
FTEEMmEESRERE
AR @& 2025634
31BILFENTREEK
# 0,/ 415,800,000
JL (20244 : 17,257,000
BT °

ERERL  ZHRED
b e R KRBT X[
B - B F I EL R T BE R BR
FRRR -

A&/
AEBERRERN EHBRA
Ko (B 765 3% 25 T [ i - At (B
RER - EEERBER
ERTRARKKERS
REEIER - AEB
BARE kR = B PR
R LW ERE kK
B R o SRR AR R A R SR
TREBENZITAMREH
MEERTA o gbsh -
SEEZREEEDAER
EBRER  EREHEER
Z ¥R A o
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the listed equity instruments have been
5% (2024: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2025 would decrease/increase by
HK$2,508,000 (2024: HK$2,356,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity instruments.

In the management’s opinion, the financial impact on price
risk of debt securities as at 31 March 2025 and 2024
would be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, lease receivables,
loans receivable, other receivables, time deposits over three
months, bank balances, debt instruments at amortised cost,
amount due from a joint venture, amount due from a related
party and debt instruments at FVTOCI. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risk associated with its financial assets, except that the credit
risk associated with loans receivable is mitigated because they
are secured over marketable securities or properties.

At the end of reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information including forecast of unemployment rate index and
other relevant factors are considered.

34.

TRMIAGE

B 7 B I B R R UK ()

H 5 R ()

(i)  EEEE R (E)
WREE DT
LATR 8RR E T AR IR R
R B EFTAS 2 RN E
ERRERE

i EHARAT BEER L
Ft ./ T E#5% (20244 : 5
%) REE2025%3A31
BIEFEEzHEBEER
EWBRATAZ AP ES
)i im L 1E 112,508,000
77T (20244 : 2,356,000
BT °

EEERE  R2025F K&
202443 A31 A EHK &3
HERRROMETEW
FEX BRI EREHH
EAHT -

=B R R E S
MN20254 M2024%E3A318 -
AEEFEEEEYEF S RERBT
EEMEIVBBEINGAEE
FEREZRENE S ENIE
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group performed
impairment assessment for financial assets under ECL model.
Information about the Group’s credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

34. M ITE(E)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment for the
Group’s financial assets comprises the following categories:

B b B I B AR R BUR ()

1= B E R K B E R 1 ()
BRAFERABRSE . EBEE
S REBERERBEEEHRE
AYEEREEETT T RERE °
FRAEEEERRER &KX
EERRERZAEBEN G
GERMERRENT

rEESBEEZAREERR
AR BYEATER

Financial assets

Trade and other than trade
Internal credit rating Description lease receivables and lease receivables
TRHEETEEES
REBEERTR 5 g5 REERKFIRE RIEEREWFIE)
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
of default and does not have impaired
any past-due amounts
9N RSEFRARBREETETM HERAANEREEEE-3F 12@AEHEEER
BHARRIR EERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — not credit- 12m ECL
date impaired
L B AL BRI B 1&ER EEBHNEMEEEE -F 12EAERAEEER
EERE
High risk There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not credit- Lifetime ECL — not
increases in credit risk since impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed internally
or external resources
= LB FRANMEKNER SRR BEBHOEMEEEE - 3F BEBHOEHEE
EERRE B RERURLII EERE &8 - IEFEERE
NGl
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired
B8 ERBETEERREERE EEBHNEREEEE - BEBBNEHEE
ERE EE - EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
g8 BEBRTEGABARENE SEME & FE

e AEBEZRRAEEHRKE
B
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. ERMTIAGE
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EKREEAEZEREEGE
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B /7 2 K BB 7712 (4B)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TR AEE S REEREBTE
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: HEEERIGMNEERBR
15
External Internal 12m Gross
Notes  credit rating creditrating  or lifetime ECL Loss rate range carrying amount
128 AR EEBEHN
Wi SMBEETA RHEETR BREERE BAZEE RELE

2025 2024 2025 2024
HK$'000  HK$'000

TER Tix
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRATE AR ENE &
BIA
Investments in listed bonds 19  CtoCa N/A Lifetime ECL - credit- ~ 100% 100% 11,980 12,000
(Note (i) impaired
LR RE ) CZCa TER RERDNESE
EEE -8R
f&
Financial assets at amortised
cost
RESBRAGEEBEAE
Loans receivable 18 NA Low risk 12m ECL 3%1t09% 3%to8% 30,600 32,100
ERER TER e 12EARGEES 3%Z29%  3%E8%
B
Lease receivables 2 NA (Note ii) Lifetime ECL - not N/A N/A 2,584 859
credit-impaired
BEEME TR (B3 BEBANESE  TEA TR
BEE - ¥EE
e
Other receivables 2 NA (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A 18,024 20,060
Eth MR TR (B3 12EAESEES  TEA TEA
B
Debt instrument at amortised cost 20 NA (Note i 12m ECL 4% 4% 23,250 23,490
REENAHECBRIA TR (B3 12EABHEES
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34.

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

SRLT A (%)

b.

B b EE B R R B ()

=B m R K B EEF 1 ()

External Internal 12m Gross
Notes  credit rating credit rating  or lifetime ECL Loss rate range carrying amount
12{BRREERHN
M SBEETR RPEETR BREEER BAZEHE REAE
2025 2024 2025 2024
HK$'000  HK$'000
THT Tibn
Amount due from a joint venture N/A (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A 7,850 1,850
[l -FEaeRFATE T (P 12EABSEES  TEA T
Amount due from a related party 32  NA (Note ii) 12m ECL N/A N/A - 30,000
Bl — 2B R R T (P 12EAESEES  TEA TR
Time deposits over three months 24 Prime=1 N/A 12m ECL N/A N/A - 31,183
A=A AR REH 5EE-1 TR 12EABSEES  TEA TR
Bank balances 24 Prime = 2 to At N/A 12m ECL N/A N/A 57,266 299,717
(2024: Prime -
2to Al)
BiTHR % FEE-2ZA TR 12EABSEES TER  TEA
(20245 : & B
B-2%A1)
Notes: B 5 -
[0) The amounts stated in the above table represent the initial purchase 0] FRREPNEEEVAEEK

cost. For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers the
gross principal amount and the related contractual interests of the debt
instruments. As at 31 March 2025, the gross principal amount of these
debt instruments amounted to HK$11,900,000 (2024: HK$11,900,000).

(ii) For the purpose of internal credit impairment, the Group considers
if there is any past due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

(i

Ko BIEBHEEEEIENS
FEEEEEFIANES A
BERABMO A DR - 12025
F3A318  ZE/BHILAKNK
£ 8% 411,900,0005% 7T (2024
£ : 11,900,000/ 7T)

RABEERETNS @ AREZ
BREAEMANLSKBAE
BERAXBNAFZEMIERE
TG B VR R R EERRE
HEEEEM -
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are graded by credit-
rating agencies as per globally understood definitions and some
bonds without external credit rating are assessed by internal

credit ratings.

34. MITEE)
b. HERRETEEERIEGH

1= B 7 b2 R B E T4 ()

B FEFFAEMEE K2 &
HITA
REBMP RS BTG EGES
KENEERR - AEEERATF
Bt AEMEEKE 2 EBIA
FE2FEHERTAKERES
BRIBAREYTE FRAEITAT A ETHIE
7 —LR FINERE AR ARBIE
7 Al@ B N A S AR RE T AT

fly °
Lifetime
ECL - credit
impaired
BEBRNFER
FEER -FERE
HK$’000
FHBT
At 1 April 2023 R2023F4/81H 18,675
Changes due to debt instruments at FVTOCI HREAFESAREMEEmKZEZ
recognised as at 1 April 2023 B TERMEERN2023F
AA1RMER
— Net remeasurement of ECL - BHEEER 2 FEM (1,775)
At 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025 MR2024F3A31H &
20253 831H 11,900

Debt instrument at amortised cost

The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instrument at
amortised cost comprises a promissory note without external
credit rating, which has been assessed by internal credit rating.

KA B2 BT A
REFRBERAFNHBEBESRED
ERRE - AEBIZEHEKATEZ
B T A EBHERA SN0 1E A T R e
RERE  MERMERTRETH
fl o

12m ECL
12f8 AFRHEEREIR
HK$000

THAT

At 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025

2023418 ~ 20243H318
K 202543 A31H 914
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to HK$29,578,000 at 31 March 2025
(2024: HK$31,023,000), from a few borrowers with 55% (2024:
55%) of the balance secured by properties with estimated
fair values of HK$18,595,000 (2024: HK$17,745,000). The
Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collaterals in the
absence of default by the borrower. There has not been any
significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the
loans receivable. The largest borrower of the Group by itself
accounted for approximately 33% (2024: 31%) of the Group’s
loans receivable at 31 March 2025.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimise credit risk. The management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to the credit risk are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation
of financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default rates,
of the borrowers and relevant information from public domain at
the end of each reporting period. The borrowers are assigned
different grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility of default
and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining
and selling the collaterals.

Trade and lease receivables and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Staff loans
No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the amount involved is insignificant.

EHMIAG

B b EE B R R B ()

= B R R E S ()
FEWE
AEEGRERERNEER
Brgedh - R202543H31H
729,578,000/ 7T (20244 :
31,023,000/ 7T) * KRB L EHIE
RKAHBI55% (20244 : 55%) M
fh5t A F1EA18,595,000% T
(20244 : 17,745,000 7T) 894
EEEF - ERRALHENN
BRT ARERBSLERBE
HEHE - ERERIEE KR
mEEWESENF L - K2025
F3A318  AEBEZEKRERA
REEAREEERERLI3%
(20244 : 31%)

REE REAR LR EEDN
BWRER UREREEER
B EEECHEEERE X
FEZEERERR - RMEERWK
BB EREIRES REH
REERANFTBE R - BB
ARESEELE(BHEAIE
S RIS PN=NGE bed: ok E!
BMEMWFEMEE - BRALE
REBE AR TR TR E
RUAHEEMEREER  FARE
BRSO BE RO fh 5t PR ED
HYTEHAZR £ 58 BR A0 fl T DA R TR
REMRLBEMELNRERE
FNEFFE] (A0 I 25 B 0 & 4K
bl T=0)2 92N

EZREERMAEREMER
HH
RERZEFORBERRIE
R - WRAEHRERBEEA
RAEERREOHXIGD -

7
=

A

BTEH®

HRARBESZRE PS8
WAEK - B Uk 3 8 ¢F R (A B
1 e

195



196

ix

L]

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED Annual Report 2024/2025

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, 2202543831 H It F &

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amount due from a joint venture

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the joint venture’s financial background and
creditability.

Amount due from a related party

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the related party’s financial background and
creditability.

Time deposits over three months and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is negligible
as such amounts are receivable from or placed in banks with
good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has available unutilised bank
loan facilities of HK$693,246,000 (2024: HK$1,157,367,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

34.

TRMIAGE

B 7 B I B R R UK ()

= Em R R B EEF 1 ()
EY—RE E R AR
REHEAERAMNMBERRE
R - R AEHRERBEA
RAEERREOHXGD -

JEY —E BT R
BHRARBEREF AR T2
BB R RERRRRENOAE
AR - BOK A LRE 7 B
1 e

BB = A A B E 7 RRITAE
£

HRARBERERR  ARZF
FIRWE B HIFHAEER TN
RIT - B2 OB RMF AN
B A R E R o

R ET AR

RRBESRBREEME @ A&
BEXREFERERARHK
TR MREFEMUHAE
BrREm®E ERERZEE
2 B PR R R ELE ST B R IGRAK

M202543A31H A& H
EADARTEREE A
693,246,000/ 7T (2024 F :
1,157,367,000/87T) °

TRHANAEEZEREEZH
BRAWBIHHR - IERTIIRAE
BRI RERNRZHERHAZ
SRABERMTAASREINR
RABRENERASRERE
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measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The Board
has delegated the valuation work to the management to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The management reports the
findings to the directors of the Company regularly to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. ST A(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HMEEKRERBZRBEGE
(Continued)
Liquidity table EEZ &
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
Effective  or less than but less undiscounted Carrying
interestrate ~ 3months  than1year  1-2years  2-5years Over5years  cashflows amounts
BEXS  BBYER AERS
ERAE  DWSER  EORME 1% 5E BBSE B4R HEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn TEn T TEn Thn TEn
2025 20255
Trade and other payables B REMERFE = 58,083 = = = = 58,083 58,083
Convertible note TARER 17.15 - = = 80,193 = 80,193 47,208
Secured hank borrowings BEASOEE 542 662,882 961,569 305,282 19,505 - 1949238 1,892,260
Lease liabilties BHEak 585 645 193 1,096 = = 3676 3,54
721,610 963,504 306,378 99,698 - 209,190 2,001,093
2024 0045
Trade and other payables 85 REMERFE = 79,240 = = = = 79,240 79,240
Convertible note TAREE 11.38 - - - 219419 - 210419 167,954
Secured bank borrowings BERRORE 6.13 896,775 341,729 883,270 43333 23338 2188445 2,066,734
Lease fiabilties HERfR 557 657 1,938 2,496 1,089 - 6,130 5,726
976,672 343,667 885,766 263,851 23338 2493294 2,319,654
Fair value c. A¥E
() Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () AEERELZHEER

RFPEABZEHMEEZ
RFE
BOAKREZEBEEN
REHAREZQAFEE -
EFgCMAETIIERT
RERRE  AEEQTE
SHEREE GERMT NS
ANEUR -

R AFER - AEE
BUREATSUBRER
& - WEEERE R
A8 AEEZESE=
TA AR EEETH
- BEERGERINE
HEMEZAIE - AR
EE R GERN REXE
ANE - BEEBEBEEHRARAR
AEEWMEATHER A
REATERSHNREA -
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34.

&
]
0

1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value (Continued)

U]

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used).

34. MITEE)

c. DFEGE

()

REFIRIFASE M E 7
RFPETAEBZETHBEEZ
R FE ()

NER M A B0 ] B E
FeRMEEATECE
PR 2 BERM A
25 -

Fairvalue  Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy  key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
SREE H3ASIAZATE NPERE  GERGREAZE ERTABRZEA
2025 2024
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TAL
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RAVEHARMEEREZ
fEBIA
- Listed debt securities 80 100 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
- FhEkES F1 RERTSRARZLE TR
Financial assets at FVTPL
BAVEHABEZERER
- Listed equity securities 41,531 47,124 Level1  Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
- FikAES F1 RERTSRARLE TR
= Film right investment 58 14,697 Level3  Discounted cash flows — future cash Discount rate 4.35% (2024: 4.35%)
flows are estimated
-BYMERE FM FRALRE-MAARRERE  FRER4I6%Q024F - 4.35%)
= Investment in limited - 42,732 Level 3 Net asset value quoted from fund Net asset value of the underlying
partnership manager investments
-ERAREKE £ ESEBFBRNEETE RBRENEERE
= Unlisted securities 8,625 6,264 Level 3 Market comparable approach Market multiple of 3.0 and discount
for lack of marketability of 30%
- EmESR M THALRE TAREE30RMEZ TRTE0%

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would result in a slight decrease in the fair value
measurement of the film right investment, and vice versa.

The higher the market multiple, the higher the fair value,
and vice versa. The higher the discount, the lower the fair
value, and vice versa.

B FRAOTREBEEEN - FER
EXMERENAFEFERSA

7

T

B RZINA »

mSEHES
Ko PraElE -

HR o

NFESES  RZT
RNFEBE - k2T
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value (Continued)

(i)

BILEEGRAT 2024/2025 FR

34. M ITE(E)

c. DFEE

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i)  FE3RAFEFTERER
Investment
Film right in limited Unlisted
investment partnership securities Total
B IRAE BREH
BE BE FLmEFH HBEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FAET FHET
At 1 April 2023 R2023F481H 15,504 28,230 - 43,734
Additions 0 - 15,178 - 15,178
Transfer into level 3 due to Efh E R & EhEs
change of valuation technique ~ B Z= %37k - - 6,264 6,264
Unrealised fair value loss REBEAERZ K
recognised in profit or loss FIB N EEE = (712) = (712)
Exchange adjustments IE 5 B (807) 36 = (771)
At 31 March 2024 7202443 A310 14,697 42,732 6,264 63,693
Additions #hn = 785 = 785
Unrealised fair value gain R AR Z K
recognised in profit or loss BHNFEEBE - = 2,425 2,425
Realised fair value loss RBSR AR &
recognised in profit or loss RAFEEBRE = (14,545) = (14,545)
Disposal e (14,367) (28,972) - (43,339)
Exchange adjustments Rk (272) - (64) (336)
At 31 March 2025 #R2025F3HA31H 58 = 8,625 8,683

Except for the unlisted securities stated above, there were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in both years.

B EXPriEmy3E LR SN

FERNET - 2R3F 2 EWEE R -

7A P &
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. ST A (E)
@& Fair value (Continued) c. AFEE)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that (i)  RERELEMEEEZ D

are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis FlEFEZEMEERE
HBEEZ N FE

Except for the convertible note issued, the directors of the BREBTHITRRER

Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial Sh RRBEERE RN

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost A MWK RE KA

in the consolidated financial statements approximate to HEMEMEEREMEA

their fair values. B RRE B 8 E N FEAE
S

At 31 March 2025, the fair value of liability component M2025%63A31H + AR

of the convertible note issued by the Company, which is AIBITHARERERNE

recognised at amortised cost of HK$47,226,000 (2024: BEE » H D FE R EHE

HK$167,954,000) (note 26), was HK$69,148,000 (2024: XA HERR 47,226,000 7T

HK$160,729,000). The fair value is determined using (20244 : 167,954,000

Trinomial Tree Model (2024: management estimation) at Bw) (MHE26) A

Level 3. 69,148,000/ 7t (2024
4+ 160,729,000%7T) °
ATEREEIBREA=

A g EEEN (2024
FEEEMASDEE -

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group RBERR - AEBEBTIEET
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the Group: RITERERITAEB ZEER
£ :

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBT FH&T

Investment properties REYHE 1,057,900 1,211,443

PHS FHELEME 1,712,654 1,065,891

PUD FHIELERRYE 1,846,612 2,520,754

4,617,166 4,798,088
In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties and ghoh - PR E W EE S R FilFEE
future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above PUD and PHS HEEBYERBELEMERARY
are also pledged to these banks. HEMSHERBESITERTZER

7 e

&
]
0

1
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

36. REHOZH

The Group as lessor AEEERSHAA
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHT

Property rental income earned during FRRZMERS WA

the year 32,354 28,751
Less: Outgoings Vo] (3,295) (2,406)
Net rental income He WA FE 29,059 26,345

All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed lessees
for 1 to 4 years (2024: 1 to 3 years) from the end of the reporting
period without termination options granted to tenants.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

RBEPR - MERREEZYWEY
R AETE1Z4F (20244 - 123
F) BRABEFE FRILEERE-

EWEERFTIRBENKAT

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 29,094 27,424
In the second year RE=F 18,566 15,145
In the third year RE=F 6,143 4,551
In the fourth year RN F 271 =
54,074 47,120
COMMITMENT 37. KiE
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but BETAVE # KRR ER G B 5= %
not provided in the consolidated financial BEZEAAI VBN -EREE
statements in respect of — interest in NAEE R
limited partnership - 4,418
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38.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for both years. The employers’ contributions which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income were as follows:

38.

RKBRETE

AEERBESRHEABEFEE
Bl - EEREHEFREMELTE RN
B EI((RBERTE) - RARESE
BT EEEAREESAHSMHRE%K
&% 51,5008 7T ' EE WA EE(ES
BIMIR - BEXEBAMHRABRERZ
BRESHERKENHHE H1,500
BT (8B K]) © 8 BR655RERIK
B SRR ERITAE IR - A
ZHEERIIEH-RZ100% °

B F 2 30OR B #O8 W e A R R
HEFHEIHZK ERGEEEAER
HihzmbamKREENEFHF5M
T~

2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
T8 FHET
Employers’ contributions recognised in profit A8 iERR 2 B T4
or loss 465 462

As at 31 March 2025 and 2024, there were no forfeited contributions
available to reduce the contributions payable in the future years.

R2025%F M2024F3A31H © 8B R
U 9 A ZR AT A R R A oK SR B A ) FE A

K -
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2025

are as follows:

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

BILEEGRAT 2024/2025 FR

39. FEMWB AR ZFHEE

MR2025F3A318 » ARREEHBR

BZFIEIT

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRAREK/BREMBE/ RAARBERORE/
WEARERE EMRL/ RIREE Y BRRAEE HREMBAEEEAL TEXH
2025 2024
Directly held:
EERE
Fanju Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
(BVI")/ Hong Kong others
RERERRAT] AERAHE(HBRIHE LERIZT EAREMRE
Bl)/E#
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
others
ARREBRAT Eh LERIET EAREMRE
Indirectly held:
FERE
Asia Million Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEREERAT h LERIET NERE
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EM(ER)BRAT Bk LERIET NERE
City China Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
e h LERIET EXRpE
Day Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
AEREERAA h LERIER NERE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. FTEMBARZFEE)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRARE/BRERRE/ RAABBERIRE/
WBLARER EMERL/ RIREE BERAEE SREMBAEEASL EEXH
2025 2024
Indliectly held: (Continueq)
FERE (B
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERAA ik LERIET nERE
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities and
others
KEBERAA ik LaERoET BHREMRE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
tERRERAR ik EiAA%10,000%E T nERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BIEEXERAH Eh LR NERE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
EBEFERAT ik LRk nERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BREEERAF £k LERER NERR
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/

39. EEMBRRZFHBE

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share
capital/paid-up registered

Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRARE/BREMBE/ RAARBERIRE/
WBLARER HEMRL/ RIREE BRRAEE AREMBRAEEESL EEXH
2025 2024
Indliectly held: (Continued)
BgHE (8
On Channel International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ZERARBRAR ik LERIET nERE
Qvation Motion Picture Enterprise Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Entertainment and film right
Limited investment
FEEYEERAA ik LERET RERITMERE
Success Mark Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property development
JERRERRAR £k LiBAR10,0008 T NEER
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BHPEERAT ik LERET NERE
Treasure Arts International Group BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary USD1 100% 100%  Property development
Limited
EEAREEARAA EERRBE/BE TERET NEER
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REERERAT Eh LERER NERR
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

39. EEMBRRZFHBE

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

Place of incorporation/ registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment and operation stated capital  capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRARE/BRERRE/ RAARBERARE/
WEARER EMERL/ RIREE ERRAEE HREMBRAEEEAL IEXH
2025 2024
Indliectly held: (Continueq)
FERE (B
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 100% 100%  Property investment
(Non-voting deferred
shares HK$2*)
BEREERAT Y LRk 9987 T MER
(BREEELER2ET)
Well Honest Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BARABRAT Y LERET NERE
Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) PRC Registered 100% 100%  Property investment
Co., Ltd. (‘Enterprises Huzhou')™ USD300,000
(2024: USD25,544,206)
KXEEEMMERAR i FHMARA LS
(TmEZ) 300,000% 7T

(2024% : 25,544,206 7T)

* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited carry no
rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general meeting and have very
limited rights to participate in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the
repayment of the amount paid up on the shares.

* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 December 2054.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company result in particulars of excessive length.

* BEREARAFAZEBRERELERE
BERBEFRBERAGZEBE - HERR
AELRE BEAFEZERENES
TOEME - NERE - R DB AN
2B

- AMNEBER—BRPBRKIZINERE
BHME  LEHASF - HE20544F
1281408 -

REARBAEEZER - ERAIIR
ZARBMBAR  REEFEAR
FEZEBEIBRAEEEETR
My REBEARTNEZZERIIHLE
M BARZHBAESEERBRIT
o
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. Majority of these subsidiaries
operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

39.

FTEMBRE 2FHE @

RIBEHR - ARAHEEME AL
EmMErrTREEZMBRE - hE
MBRBKREDNERLE - WEFH
BRARZEEXBMBWT

Principal activities Principal places of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXEK FEEEME ML R E

2025 2024
Investment holding Hong Kong 31 31
AR £
Inactive Hong Kong 17 14
IEEER HE
Inactive PRC 2 2
E ]

50 47

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2025 or 31 March 2024.

RAEM B QT NR2025%3 4318
2024F3A31 HBITEMERHES ©
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e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 & Z 202593 A31 B It F &

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 40. ZRA R ZBEAROR R
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries and amounts due AT B A RS R FEU KB A Al
from subsidiaries and a joint venture K—M&aERAFHIE 3,491,849 3,600,334
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E IR 194 194
Tax recoverable AR EIF I8 = 186
Cash and cash equivalents RERFCEEY 28,183 39,015
28,377 39,395
Current liabilities mENAE
Other payables E IR 3,767 8,654
Bank borrowings RITERE = 77,500
3,767 86,154
Net current assets (liabilities) mEVEE(BE)FE 24,610 (46,759
Total assets less current liabilities BELBRIBAER 3,516,459 3,653,675
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERTEAE 3,756 7,936
Convertible note AR IR 47,226 167,954
50,982 175,890
3,465,477 3,377,685
Capital and reserves B R E R
Share capital (1N 10,144 1,031
Reserves (Note) A EED) 3,455,333 3,376,654
3,465,477 3,377,685

-]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2025 &, E 20253 A31 B It F &

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 40. RN T ZBAISARR & ()
(Continued)
Note: fsE -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior year are as follows: AAGIZRBEBRERNRBEEEZ2ESHMT -
Convertible
Share note equity Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus profits Total
TRREE
RIVEE BafE RAGE HARR Zehal ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T FhET FhEL FhEr Fhr
At 1 April 2023 20234 1A 2,531,694 47,493 53,194 438,102 174,722 3,245,205
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ AEERF|R 2 AMELEE
for the year - - - - 86,471 86,471
Reduction of share capital upon capital & 48 2 RAHI
reorganisation - - - 20,728 - 20,728
Issue of shares upon placing RERETRR 24,250 = = = = 24,250
At 31 March 2024 M2024F3A31A 2,565,944 47,493 53,194 458,830 261,198 3,376,664
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ NEEBER2ARXLE
for the year - - - - (38,562) (38,562)
Issue of shares upon placing RERETRR 39,527 = = = = 39,527
Rights issue of shares BRfp A% 55,456 = = = - 55,456
Transfer upon modification of terms BT Z R AR ER
of convertible note #3 - (1083,265) - - 18,233 (85,032)
Deferred tax liabiltes released BATATARR B R R
upon modification of terms BILHASE
of convertible note - 17,040 - - - 17,040
Recognition upon modification BATERR AT R ER
of terms of convertible note - 161,265 - - - 161,265
Deferred tax liability on recognition EITARRE R EER
of equity component upon modification  BES A HIETF AR E
of terms of convertible note - (26,609) - - - (26,609)
Transfer upon partial redemption HHBRABRRRERER
of convertible note -+ - (92,111) - - 32,507 (59,604)
Deferted tax liabilties released PHBRAARRERER
upon partial redemption EERERE
of convertible note - 15,198 - - - 15,198
At 31 March 2025 12025637318 2,650,927 19,011 53,194 458,830 273,371 3,455,333
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41. HREPREEFE

On 4 June 2025, the Company entered into a deed of amendment
with Goodco pursuant to which the conversion price of the convertible
note issued by the Company with principal amount of HK$70,000,000
will be adjusted from HK$0.14 to HK$0.07 per conversion share. The
modification of the terms is determined to be substantial and hence
will result in the extinguishment of the original liability component of the
2023 Convertible Note and the recognition of new liability and equity
components. Accordingly, the difference between the fair value of the
liability component of the 2023 Convertible Note (after modification)
and the carrying amount of the original liability component will be
recognised in profit or loss during the year ending 31 March 2026.

R2025F6 A48 + AR R HREREIY
EFTEE - Bt ARABITAES
¥6.570,000,000/ 7 2 AT AR E IR 2 5
BREKHERABRMDONLBTAER
0.07#7T - BRI RHERERAEEM
B EH023F A R EENERER
EE DR IERER - WHERFH & &M
TERRERD o HIt - 2023F Al AR E K
BEHS (EETDNATEREREAR
HoBREEHANEREBREZE2026
FIANBIEFEANEBRER -
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Financial Summary
MR EREE
RESULTS e

Year ended 31 March
HZE3A3TBHILEE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET FHET FHT
Revenue L 80,253 64,475 43,106 30,693 44,857
(Loss) profit before B AT (B 18) & A
taxation (190,743) 123,497 65,972 (162,339) (374,725)
Taxation i\ 9,950 (7,050) (2,400) (50,810) 9,426
(Loss) profit for the year A RIS FE(S
attributable to owners FE(BEB) &
of the Company (180,793) 116,447 63,572 (213,149) (365,299)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
At 31 March
M38A31H
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET T T FET
Total assets BAE 4,613,337 4,879,808 5,624,267 5,408,807 4,842,030
Total liabilities weE (1,732,044)  (1,864,621)  (2,389,101)  (2,361,611)  (2,027,245)

Equity attributable to PiN/NGT Sy
owners of the Company  #&# 2,881,293 3,015,187 3,235,166 3,047,196 2,814,785

-]
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Summary of Properties

YR E

At 31 March 2025 7202553 H31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A, REYE

Approximate
gross floor/

Location b HE Purpose saleable/site area  Lease-term
WHEmE, BR,
Az WwEEE MEIFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
Ground Floor B Commercial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Road 8 478 [BES =
Causeway Bay =BEH6R
Hong Kong i
Sixth Floor SBE Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652 SllE I T A
Castle Peak Road, and 650—-6525%
No. 18A Wing Hong Street NER
Kowloon X R 18A5R
Second Floor LB Industrial 2,981  Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 RAEE I T A
Cheung Sha Wan Road 79055 ~ 79258 K 7945%
Kowloon -8
Roof LB Industrial 2,910 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street X BEE205% T% h HA
Kowloon PN
Fifth Floor BE Industrial 3,402  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street K BEE205% I% HHA
Kowloon hiE
Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor #7152 Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space F= HHA
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor X122 800355
Shatin Heights P HER
No. 8003 Tai Po Road DEE 1815 F25% B &
Shatin RE T B 4657

New Territories
Third Floor &% Residential 781  Medium

No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road & B B & 16158 F= HHA
Hong Kong =&

Fr]
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Summary of Properties

YE A

At 31 March 2025 7202553 H31H

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) A BREWVFEGE)
Approximate
gross floor/
Location 3k Purpose saleable/site area  Lease-term
MPNEE, ERH
Rz WEEE MEOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

8. Easy Tower, No. 609 B Industrial/ 74,458  Medium
Tai Nan West Street D& commercial h HR
Cheung Sha Wan AN 7760955 T /m%

Kowloon K& ES

9. Shop A and B on Ground Floor,  J1ig Commercial 4,297  Medium
and Shop C on First Floor {a] 3C B 5 1138 [SES o HR
One Victory, Nos. 1, 1Aand 3 BEFIZE—9%15% - 1ASE %397
Victory Avenue, Ho Man Tin, 1 N AK B
Kowloon &k —1ECH

10.  Ground Floor of No. 50 B Commercial 905 Long
Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay, R & B i [SES KA
Hong Kong 5055 T~

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE B. RELHEZBRYH

Approximate Stage of
Location ik Purpose site area  Lease-term completion
A MO EEE HAOFH 52 B B BR
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)

1. Nos. 646, 648, 648A EE Industrial 9,206  Medium Under
Castle Peak Road FE T A development
Kowloon 646 * 648 * BABASR RS

2. Nos.1B-1E il Residential 4,940 Long Under
Davis Street EX e I F= K development
Kennedy Town E2 e RS
Hong Kong 1B - 1E5%

3. No.93and 95 B Residential 2,182 Long Under
Catchick Street EX e I F= §=3:t] development
Kennedy Town EHREA ERH
Hong Kong 935 2 955%

a5



AA

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
SWEFBRAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REEEEMERIZARA )

(Stock Code pgnftsE: 616)




	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Highlights
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Summary of Properties
	Back Cover

